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Definitions

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall have the following meanings:

RAFHA  BXEZBMREN

“Acting in Concert Parties”

[—HTBHAL]

“AGM"

[BREEFRE]

“Articles of Association”

“associate(s)”

(B2 A

“Beijing OriginWater”

[E R B KIR]

“Board” or “Board of Directors”

[E=g]

“Chairman”

[EEK]

“Company”, “our Company” or

“Yunnan Water”

[RAB %[ ERKE]

“connected person(s)”

[BAEAL]

THFREAFATRE -

Mr. Liu Xujun, member of the senior management of the Company, Mr. Huang Yunjian and
Mr. Wang Yong, member of the senior management of the Company

FRAEREEBEXREZNELE BEEREERALARREREXREEE L

the annual general meeting of the Company to be convened and held on 16 June 2020, or
any adjournment thereof

ZIK/

EI

i

%

TERNATARBETRRBFRAGXEENES

the articles of association of the Company

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB LEWRANE TZANRE

Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* (It RBICEREMDBERE D joint stock limited

liability company established in the PRC, the shares of which are listed on the Shenzhen Stock
Exchange (stock code: 300070)

IRBRKERERODER AR RPBERYHOBROER AR EROEFIELERSHET
(B& 2 X8R : 300070)

the Board of Directors of the Company

ARAMESSE

the Chairman of the Board

EER

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited* (EE/KERERNDERAD

liability company established in the PRC, the H Shares of which are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 6839)

A]), a joint stock limited

EMKERERD BRAA
B 5%  6839)

R BEMASZERDER QR - EHRER A ER EH (R

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

BB EMRANETZANRE
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Definitions

“controlling shareholder(s)” has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules
[ % A% P 3R HBEMARRE FZARE
“Corporate Governance Code” the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report, as set out in Appendix 14

to the Listing Rules

[EERSFA FHRAIMEETOAENEEE TR REERE WS

“Director(s)" the director(s) of our Company

= ZAN/NSIE-

“Domestic Share(s)” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of
the Company which are subscribed for or credited as paid up in RMB

[RERRK] NARBRBIIEHARNARARATEREEARK1.00THE BITEBER

"ESG” environmental, social, and governance

[ESG] RE g RER

"ESG Guide” environmental, social and governance guide

[ESGHE 5 | RE e kERiES

"

“Group” or “our Group the Company and its subsidiaries from time to time

EXYT ADFRETH OB AT

“H Share(s)” the issued ordinary shares at the nominal value of RMB1.00 per share in the share capital of
the Company which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange

THAZ FEMRMER ETOARRRATGREEAREI100THE HTEBR

"HK$” Hong Kong dollar(s), the lawful currency of Hong Kong

[T BERBEEEEET

“HKFRS"” Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, including Hong Kong Accounting Standards and

Interpretations promulgated by the Hong Kong Accounting Standard Board

[FEY R ®EAE ) ERAMBREER  BREREGHEARBESHENZEERMNRE
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Definitions

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

Hong Kong”
hEEEFMNTRE
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

(&%
b 2 P RE 2 T AR A

Hﬁ

“Listing Rules”
the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10

to the Listing Rules
FHARAIEE T TR EH BT AEERETESF R HNITETA

[ £ Al
“Model Code”
[g=ra))
"PPP Project” the public-private-partnership project
[PPPIE H | BEMteEASIEER
“PRC" or “China” the People’s Republic of China, and for the purpose of this annual report only, excluding Hong
Kong, Macau Special Administrative Region of the PRC and Taiwan
[ | REARANE  EXBEMNST  TEEES  FERMAFIITRRE R A E
“Reporting Period” the 12-month period from 1 January 2019 to 31 December 2019
[ &8 ) H_ - N"F-—RA—BRE_ZE-NAF+_A=+—BHIL+_EAHH
“RMB” Renminbi, the lawful currency of the PRC
[ANR¥E ] TEEETEBARE
ESEQE the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
EREMESEGES RAE GO
ordinary share(s) in the share capital of our Company with a nominal value of RMB1.00 each,

including the H Share(s) and Domestic Share(s)

[#H M E &6
AP gHREEARKI.OTHERAR  2FEHEREANE R

“Share(s)”
N/l

the holder(s) of the Share(s)

[ B 7 ]
B A A

“Shareholder(s)”
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

2 AR R A
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Definitions

“subsidiary(ies)”
[P 2 A
“Supervisor(s)"”
[ |

“Supervisory Committee”

(xR B g
“THB"
[ %= 6k ]

“Undertaking Shareholders”

[BAGEH AR

uUS$u or “UsD"

[T

“Ymcl”

[E 5

“Yunnan Province Water”

ELEE S

“op

[%)]

kS For identification purposes only

* EHZS

has the meaning ascribed to it under the Listing Rules

EBLWRANE TZANRE

supervisor(s) of the Company

ARRES

the supervisory committee of the Company

ARRIMESEERE

el

i3

Thailand Baht(s), the lawful currency of Thailand

REVEEEERK

namely YMCI, Yunnan Province Water and Beijing OriginWater

BEmRIREER  EEAKERIEREKR

United States dollars, the lawful currency of the United States of America

EBATFEBET

Yunnan Metropolitan Construction Investment Co., Ltd.* (EEE W MERICEELEEGRAR), a
limited liability company established in the PRC and is the sole shareholder of Yunnan Province

Water, the Company’s controlling shareholder and one of the Undertaking Shareholders

EHENTRERREEEARAR  RPERIMEREEA R R ERE KB —BER
RERAEBRBREESR - EABHRER

Yunnan Province Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd.* (EFEAKIEEEREABR AT, a limited
liability company incorporated in the PRC

EMEAKBEEXREBRAR  RPBEEMAINEREERT

per cent

Bt
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The Board is pleased to announce the following financial highlights:

Financial Highlights

EFZ@MASETH MNP HHE

Year ended 31 December
BZE+t-A=+—BLEE

2019 2018 Percentage
—E-NF —T—)N\F Change
RMB’000 RMB’000 23

ARET T ARETTT
Revenue I 2= 6,538,024 6,255,628 4.5%
Gross profit E5 1,832,313 1,498,009 22.3%
Profit before income tax Ffr 15 % & 7 677,549 644,226 5.2%
EBITDA (Note D BFe - FIE - WER 2,012,308 1,693,610 18.8%

S AT & R e

Profit for the year F N F 553,808 496,715 11.5%
Return on shareholders’ equity (%) BRESEFHRE(%) 6.48% 7.16% N/A 3@
Basic earnings per share (RMB) BREABF(ARMET) 0.334 0.333 0.3%

Note 1: EBITDA is the profit for the year before deduction of finance cost — net, income taxation,
depreciation and amortisation.

During the Reporting Period, the Group’s audited profit attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Company amounted to approximately RMB398.2 million (for
the year ended 31 December 2018: approximately RMB397.8 million).

Basic earnings per share for the Reporting Period was approximately RMB0.334
per share (for the year ended 31 December 2018: basic earnings approximately
RMBO0.333 per share), the calculation of such basic earnings per share amount is
based on the profit attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company, and the
weighted average number of Shares of approximately of 1,193,213,000 (2018:
1,193,213,000) in issue during the Reporting Period.

The Board recommended the payment of the final dividend of RMBO0.15 per
ordinary share for the year ended 31 December 2019 (for the year ended 31
December 2018: RMBO0.15 per ordinary share). The Company did not declare or
pay any interim dividend or special dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019.

The AGM will be held at 10:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 16 June 2020 at conference
room, 5th Floor, Yunnan Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming,
Yunnan Province, the PRC. The proposed final dividend is subject to consideration
and approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.

MR BRBERAFERE  FBH  NMERBHEARR
RUOKRAE BE FERBHEAZAFER
#| o

RAREHR  AEEBLCEXARRLBR
BREEEREMOABARE382EEHT(HE
—E-)\F+ZA=Z+—BULEFE  HAR
¥397.8EE L) °

HMEHANERERBF N AAREE0.3347T (H
E-E-N\FE+_A=+—BILEE: 5K
BRHAEARE0333T)  ZEREAEF
SEDNEALAEERBREG M KRS
HABEZEITHMNEFI’RM41,193,213,000
(== — )\ :1,193,213,0000%) i 15 & &
HE o

EEeRBRRBREBEE_T-AE+-_A=1+—
BLEFEMNRARSSRLBR AR
T(BEZZE—N\F+ZA=+—HLFE:
BREBEBRARKOIST) BE_T—hEF
+TZA=+—"BLEEFE FARARERIX
HE R BB S sk R R B -

BRERBFREGHER_B-_TFA+TRE(E
HO) EF TR ERETREFZEEAT M
BT B 2 (208 R b 18 2089 5% & R K 5518 & &
ERT-BERPABREAEBRRNBRRBF
BELBBRIGTIEER -
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Chairman’s statement

& E KU

Dear Shareholders:

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the annual report of the Group
for the financial year ended 31 December 2019.

In 2019, the world economy saw a notable slowdown and international trade
and investment activities experienced sluggish. Against the backdrop, major
economies have implemented monetary easing policies to maintain economic
stability. Despite severe domestic situation as Sino-US trade negotiations advanced
tortuously, China’s economy was steadily improving its quality from structural
adjustment. Amidst the complicated economic situation at home and abroad, the
environmental protection industry has shown new characteristics that has shifted
from the era of policy initiation to that of comprehensive policy deepening.
Various regulations have been improved and environmental supervision has been
normalized, releasing the accumulated demands for environmental protection. The
new policies brought new opportunities to the environmental protection industry,
in terms of hazardous waste treatment, smart environmental protection, waste
incineration, and rural sewage treatment. In the new circumstances, the Group will
accelerate the progress of projects under construction and increase the operational
efficiency of existing assets with careful analysis on market dynamics. It will tap
the demand on enhancement and expansion of existing assets, as well as expand
incremental assets with prudence. With the above, it would enable the Group to
lay a sound foundation for future development.
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The Board thoroughly analysed the domestic and international economic
situation and, following the principle of adaptability and forward-looking,
overcame challenges continuously in light of actual needs of the Company's
“first-rate urban
the Board led the
Group to comprehensively improve the management level of existing operating

business development. Centering on the positioning of

environmental protection integrated services provider”,

assets, prudently developed the key regional markets at home and abroad, and
proactively promoted technology research, development and innovation and quality
and efficiency enhancement for projects. In the midst of external environment
of opportunities and challenges, the Group's performance remained stable with
healthy growth and the management standard was further improved.

During the Reporting Period, under the leadership of the Board, the Group, in
the face of difficulties, proactively adjusted its asset structure and continuously
improved its project operation management, resulting in the steady and healthy
growth of operating results. During the Reporting Period, the Group recognized
a total annual revenue of approximately RMB6,538.0 million, representing an
increase of approximately 4.5% as compared to approximately RMB6,255.6
million of last year. Profit for the year was approximately RMB553.8 million,
representing an increase of approximately 11.5% as compared to approximately
RMB496.7 million of last year. Through investments in new construction and
equity acquisition, the Group has owned 220 water treatment projects with a
total treatment volume of approximately 6,220,200 tonnes per day. The Group's
business segment of solid waste treatment, an important focus of strategic
development of the Group, continued rapid development during the year. As of
31 December 2019, the Group owned 21 solid waste treatment projects with
treatment capacity of approximately 3,571,000 tonnes per day.

On the basis of the Group’s good operating results and financial position, and
considering the long-term sustainable development of the Group, the Board
proposes to distribute a final dividend of RMBO0.15 to Shareholders to repay their
long-term support and contribution to the Group. The distribution of final dividend
shall be subject to approval by Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM. The final
dividend is expected to be paid on or before 22 July 2020 (Wednesday).

In 2020, the Group will continue to pay great efforts in two principal businesses
of water and solid waste treatment. It will accelerate the progress of projects
under construction, improve the operation and management level of existing
projects, prudently conduct market development and project investment. In
addition to that, the Group will explore new technologies and sectors in the
environmental protection industry, and optimize the debt structure, aiming for the
release of corporate dividends and value enhancement.

Chairman’s statement

& E KU

EZ@RASMBEANIINEERD - NBEEE
MAEERRA  KEBEARBNKEEED
ERBER  THRRSELE TEXEER
BH#I—RNEREGARBIINEMN 2
ARAGELAEELERKE HENEH
NINEZRIE TS - BAGHEESRMHEAH
KT8 B 1R E G R o 75 7 m i 3B B Bk B A S0 3P
RER AEBEXEEBTRRIER  EEK
EE—FTE -

RMERR - AEBEEESMNEE T AHEM
O REGAREAELE  BERABEEZE
BoKE  GERESHBTFRFELER - A5E
BA¥&¢HEW,\IE%¢ﬁ@H&/\ZUAEM6 538.0
BELT BE—FEXHENARE62556A
B R4.5% 0 FRHEFLS53.8E8 T -
B FEEENDARBAGCTIEETERY
115% - AREBEBBRETEMBRERBES
R BHAKEEEEB220E  AFTEEE
m%anqwo@/HOK%lmﬁﬁ%%@
EREENERBEEYEBEBRRE  EX
FENEBEREFERE HIE-T-—NF+=
A=+—HL CHAEEREEB21ME -
B IR R 49 43,571,000, 8 °

ERNAEBRFNEEEBURTBHRR -
ERINAKSENRMASERR EFSH
AR ERAREF/RARKENST - UM
BRERBYAKENIHMER - REK
SHRESVRNBERORRBEFREG LE
PRRHLE - REIRSBRMER T Tt
AZ+ZB(EH=)RZAERN -

SEoTE R E ST KT R E R
MATE 2NBEEREERRER T
g EALBEERIOL BEMED
BEE AERE MEREBRITEHH
i - 314EH - EE(LE MBS BDORA
FIIR R (B3R -
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Chairman’s statement

& E KU

On behalf of the Board, | would like to take this opportunity to express my AANEBERXRESZS HFHUKeHAEEEE
sincere gratitude to the management and employees of the Group for their loyalty EREINDREYY BEBRT  URESE
and diligence, and also to our Shareholders, our Board members, investors and UIRE ZBEEZENE REEREAGEEHED

partners for their long-term support. The Group will continue to create great value —EYXR BUBRHE FAEEFESEN
for its Shareholders with excellent performance and contribute to the development BRMNEEABRFAEETEANEE  ARR
of environmental industry and the construction of ecological civilization. TEMNRREHEARYANEREMNIE -
Yang Tao BE
Chairman EER

A} A}
Kunming, the PRC HE R
27 March 2020 —E-FTF=A=-++tH
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In 2019, China’s environmental protection industry took on a new situation. All-
round policies and regulations on water, soil, gas and solid waste treatment have
been put in place, forming a general supervision pattern of water, soil, solid waste
and gas. Policy measures have been extended from administrative means to legal
and economic means, market-oriented means such as imposing environmental
taxation and pollutant discharge permits having been introduced one after
another, and policy benefits have gradually been seen. During that year, the pilot
program of “wasteless city” was formally put forward; “garbage classification”
was put into practice from a topic of conversation; major amendments were
made to the Law on the Prevention and Control of Environmental Pollution by
Solid Waste ( (EEE/SEIRIENAED) ). The release of quality and efficiency
enhancement plan for sewage treatment enhanced the demand for high-quality
environment control. Higher requirements were proposed for environment control
in rural areas which have greater demand. The environmental protection industry
that is further regulated, refined and technology-based has also put forward new
requirements and new challenges for environmental enterprises.

General Manager’s Report
BRI S

WO (W

ice Chairman
~ General Manager
Yu Long

—E-NF O PERRTEZREZHR/E
Kot FBEERBEHUNBREEREER
B REBEBERHAREERBEMK  BE
BEERTRFRMAER  LBEFRIEM  BR
BB AEET SR TFREERED K
RAFZE LR - SFAR > [EERT IR
BOREARH [ BIRGEEERE
B (EERRRRENEVBREREL
FKEBREREERTREM  SmERER
BERER RNREAENELRES &
RKEE - RFRITEMNE -SRI - BAL
BMEf bHRREERBE THHOER
B BB -
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General Manager’s Report
MBS TR 4R

JWEN (W

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION AND OPERATION

In 2019, the Group's task priority was to improve the operation and management
standards of projects in operation, expand the demand of enhancement and
reconstruction of existing projects, and actively accelerate the progress of projects
under construction. By improving the operation management, the Group’s
operating income in 2019 increased significantly, and the benefits from previous
expansion were gradually released. On one hand, relying on its existing operating
assets, the Group comprehensively improved its operation management capabilities.
The revenue was increased by way of the reconstruction of household watermeter
and the expansion of users. On the other hand, closely following the policy
guidance, the Group explored the demand for quality and efficiency enhancement
of projects in operation. With such enhancement and expansion, the treatment
pricing has been increased, some projects have received local government subsidies
and recognition, which further strengthened the awareness and influence of the
Group, which in turn realized considerable comprehensive benefits.

TECHNOLOGY RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Group always adheres to a core technology-supported and proprietary
innovation-driven development model and values the importance of the role
of core technologies for the long-term development of enterprises. In 2019,
the Group achieved initial success in the research and development of sludge
carbonization treatment technology, which was included in demonstration projects.
It also made tens of patent applications in respect of industrial wastewater, rural
sewage, MBR membrane technology and solid waste treatment. At the same time,
the Group accelerated the progress of smart water projects and the construction
of management and control platform for the operation center, and strengthened
the building of its own team and talent pool, thus forming operation and
management advantages with Group features.

PROJECT DEVELOPMENT

In 2019, the Group continued to adopt the strategy of prudent and quality-
focused investment by relying on resource advantages in key areas to choose
such projects with good operating efficiency and stable positive cash flow for
investment. The Group strengthened control over investment in the municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects by placing the focus on high-
quality projects and paid close attention to the proportion of operating assets in
the municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects and the financial

capacity of the local governments.

In 2019, the proportion of newly won or acquired projects continued to
decrease as the Group focused on quality projects in key regional markets such
as Guangdong and Xinjiang, which laid a good foundation for the sustainable

development of the Group.
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FINANCING

In 2019, affected by a series of uncertainties such as Sino-US trade frictions, the
PRC economic growth was under a considerable pressure of slowdown. Structural
adjustment accelerated in the environmental protection industry which was generally
confronted with the problem of liquidity crunch, with finance costs remaining
high. In view of the severe situation of tightened financing, the Group continued
to strengthen its cooperation with financial institutions and employed multiple
financial management methods. It reduced inefficient deployment of resources to
speed up capital turnover, and further improved the operational efficiency and
cash generating capacity of existing projects. By increasing the proportion of direct
financing in the bond market, the Group optimized the corporate debt structure,
and by reducing unreasonable short-term borrowings, lowering financial leverage
for finance and increasing financial leverage for operation, buffered the pressure
on its operations. In addition, the Group beefed up the collaborated arrangement
of financing management where the centralized management of internal funds was
continued, the capital usage efficiency was improved while tapping and enhancing
financing capabilities of projects in each region.

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND FUTURE
PROSPECT

Going forward in 2020, upholding the positioning of “first-rate urban environmental
protection integrated services provider”, the Group will continue to pay great
effort on two principal businesses of water and solid waste treatment and perform
well in all stages of project investment, construction and operation. It will commit
itself to further enhancing the standards of the Company's projects and operation
management, so as to improve its profitability.

One of the Group’s task priorities in 2020 is to fully accelerate the construction of
projects under construction. Existing projects obtained by the Group from previous
expansion are put into operation the earlier, the better as they can bring stable
cash inflow and sustainable momentum for the development of the Group. To this
end, the Group has put in place a relatively complete assessment and supervision
mechanism to ensure the progress of projects under construction. Meanwhile, the
Group proactively promoted the quality and efficiency enhancement of projects in
operation. Improving the efficiency of existing projects enables operation level as
well as business scale of the Group as a whole to be increased, thereby enhancing

its overall competitiveness.

In terms of new technologies, the Group will continue to promote the research
and marketing of key projects such as sludge carbonization. Through its core
technology and the joint efforts of external partners, the Group will manage to
promote its projects in large scale as soon as possible. Further in 2020, the Group
will continue to seek breakthroughs on technology research and development
with respect to integrated treatment of decentralized sewage in rural regions and
improvement in industrial wastewater treatment equipment.

General Manager’s Report

1 41 32 3

WO (W

mhE

—E-NF RPXEHERE - RIITH®E
ERENFE  BAKLEEREHRRA T
B REEFEMNELBHE LEEERSE
SERNHBEE BEXAESAT - @R
BEWEMBRETY NEBSZERCESH
BEOHEE ERZEMBEETFR R
EROEBER  NMRESHAE  E—FR
TEREENKEMAMEEEREN &
SHBEFTEREEZEMNLE  BA
AEBER BRERSTAEMEHER
FRESBUEMBER RALEUEVBER
NEREEEN - R REBTEMRF
EEBIENRENE BEBRLCLLRAAE
E2&TER RBAESEAMRE MR
‘oREASFREEESBERN -

IHEERRARRE

RE-Z-ZF  AEERBETRRI R
WA A RIS | ER - U KM E
FEMALE  MIFRERE  2&K  EL5MRE
BRIE E-—FRAAFBEBMELER
KE HERNEE -

ENHEERRERRERRASE T
TENEHTE RAZREANEE R HE
RRGMNEFERERAES  THEHFUHR
SEMNBERTRIBENR S RKRA RI5EE
BRHOEN - Bt REFEEERBRRBTEN
ERREERY  HRERZEEZREE
R BELREMNEGERTFOERS
HE BBHFERE WAEMES - TERE
MIRFEEKE BRI NEENEBER
BB RBAGERFE -

MR NREBGEEEETRERLLE
EREENMERELEE  BBAFZLK
MENBEERHORKAB N FRRRE
BRHEBHEE - —T_FF  AEEEKE
BRI OEEUSK—BIRE  TEEKERE
REB(ZHBES LM R -

Annual Report 2019 4 E #R 4 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k 18 & A 5 R A 7 15



General Manager’s Report
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In terms of financing, the Group will improve the existing capital structure and
increase its financing capacity in an appropriate way, striving for gearing ratio

lowering.

In 2020, the Group will continue to optimize operation and prudently proceed
with development as an urban environmental protection integrated services
provider. It will make scientific investments in PRC and overseas water, solid
waste treatment and other segments, with a view to further enhance the Group's
market competitiveness and strive for the sustainable development of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

INDUSTRY OVERVIEW

In 2019, key progress was made in the pollution prevention and control campaign
in China, improving the overall quality of the ecological environment. With the
formation of a general regulatory pattern in respect of water, land, solid wastes
and exhaust gas, the policies for environmental protection industry have shifted

from entirety to refining.

In late 2019 and early 2020, the amendments to the Law on Environmental
Impact Assessment* ( I35 & Z ¥ {E %) )(the “Environmental Assessment Law”)
were passed and adopted. The new Environmental Assessment Law removed legal
qualification for environmental assessment agencies and reduced the administrative
approval process. The law, however, further clarified the subjects responsible for
environmental impact assessment, with stricter regulations on the supervision
and management of environmental protection enterprises and accountability. In
January 2019, the Action Plan on Establishing a Market-oriented and Diversified
(MBI ZlbeEgR#E

&) 5t £l ) ) was issued to promote ecological protection compensation

Ecological Protection Compensation Mechanism*
18 1T
with market-oriented and diversified means and utilize market forces effectively.
That would help establish a long-term compensation mechanism to improve the
quality and level of ecological protection compensation. In March 2019, the Green
Industry Guidance Catalogue (2019 Edition)* (& EXEEHH (ZT— N F
W ) ) ) was released. The catalogue provided “green” judgment standards for
various departments to formulate relevant policies and measures, which can cape
with the difficulties encountered by financial markets during specific practices.
In May 2019, the Notice on Effectively Monitoring the Agricultural Ecological
Environment* ( (B M4 B2 A RRIRIREA TER @A) ) was issued to arrange
the overall monitoring on agricultural ecological environment. In July 2019, the
State Council issued the Guiding Opinions on Promoting the Revitalization of Rural
Industries* ( (BN EERNEXRENIES

of strictly abiding by the redlines of cultivated land and ecological protection,

Z R ) ), which proposed the concept

saving resources, protecting the environment, and promoting the coordinated
development of rural production and living ecology.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

In the era of policy refining when public awareness of environmental protection
is raising, the water business industry has become an important basic industry
for urbanization. During the year, the Three-Year Action Plan on Quality
and Efficiency Improvement for Urban Wastewater Treatment (2019-2021)*
(CHMEFKEBIREEER=F1T8H K (2019-2021 F) ) ) and the Guiding
Opinions on Promoting the Treatment of Rural Domestic Wastewater* ( B # #
ERAESICRIZMIEE E R.) ) have been promulgated. The backdrop underlying
such promulgation is strong demand for improving and upgrading urban
wastewater treatment, as well as the urgent need for popularizing treatment
system of rural domestic wastewater. Consequently, there are ample opportunities
for investment in environmental protection. Currently, the water business industry
is facing issues such as lower operating efficiency and utilization ratio during
the long-term development. Strengthening the construction of water information
technology has become inevitable for the water business industry, which means
the development of intelligent water business is an irresistible trend. What's more,
the water business industry is still fragmented and relatively regional. Industrial
integration is expected to intensify in the future, and players without core
competitiveness will be merged and absorbed by large water groups which will
lead the market then.

Solid waste treatment has been a popular field in the environmental protection
industry in recent years. The conception of waste classification and waste-free city
has placed higher requirements on discharge reduction and resources recycling
during the municipal solid waste treatment. It will also effectively promote
the integration of the whole industrial chain of solid waste treatment. On the
segment, the higher qualification barrier and regional barrier and profit margin
of the hazardous waste treatment industry will inevitably lead to the industry
concentration as the national legislation and supervision further tighten. On
medical waste, the demand for treatment under the epidemic of novel coronavirus
surged, which is driven by the government’s stringent supervision over medical
waste discharge due to the scarcity of medical waste treatment companies to be
further exposed. On incineration and power generation of domestic wastes, the
classification of urban domestic wastes and decline in power generation subsidies
have put pressure on this area. In the long run, the improvement and upgrade of
waste incineration and power generation technology is the key to sustaining stable
development.

Sludge treatment has also attracted much attention in recent years. Environmental
protection departments at all levels have launched relevant policies that clarify
the importance of strict management on sludge discharge. With the continuous
decrease of organic matters in the soil of cultivated land in China, how to return
the treated sludge to the land as organic soil is a subject that needs to be
explored continually.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2020 is a crucial year for the construction of ecological civilization. During the
year, significant progress has been made in the construction of a resource-
saving and environment-friendly society. The environmental protection industry
also shoulders important social responsibility while embracing huge market
opportunities. The Group will incorporate the social responsibility into its own
business goals, contributing to the development of environmental protection
industry and the construction of ecological civilization.

DEVELOPMENT STRATEGIES AND PROSPECT

With the formation of the general regulatory pattern in the environmental
protection industry, players are facing greater challenges accompanied
with opportunities. In the new market circumstances, quality and efficiency
enhancement and technological innovation have become the key to the Group’s
strengthening and expansion of market competitiveness. In 2019, the Group
watched closely the policy developments while optimizing the asset structure.
The Company’s asset management efficiency and operating performance have
been promoted with continued progress with the construction of projects under
construction, improvement in the project operation and management and
unremitting efforts.

In 2020, the Group will continue with the construction progress and operational
management of existing projects. On top of that, the Group will focus on market
opportunities in areas such as comprehensive treatment of solid wastes, sludge
treatment, and comprehensive improvement in rural environment, to further
improve the quality of earnings. Apart from maintaining and expanding the scale
of existing water business, the Group will speed up establishing the presence in
the field of solid waste treatment, such as industrial hazardous waste, medical
hazardous waste, and garbage power generation. With prudent and reasonable
capital expenditures, the Group will advance the implementation of annual key
investment projects as scheduled in order to achieve its organic growth.

Optimize the asset structure. The Group will accelerate the progress of projects
under construction and proposed to ensure scheduled recognition of project
profits. By increasing the proportion of assets with valuable contributions while
reducing unnecessary asset occupation and consumption, the utilization efficiency
of operating assets will be improved comprehensively. In furtherance, the Group
will continue to implement the regional management model. It will hasten key
solid waste business through prudent and reasonable capital expenditures, thus to
achieve the adjustment to income structure and the steady expansion of business.
Meanwhile, the Group will carry out capital replenishment if possible, in order
to improve the existing capital structure, enhance financing potential, and realise
upturn of performance and revaluation.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Further expand the solid waste segment. The Group will keep an eye on the
relevant policies of “waste-free city” for the purpose of “advancing resource
recycling of solid wastes and minimizing discharge”. Technological exploration and
promotion, and cooperation with government-authorized industry-leading players
of the industry will enable the Group to provide one-stop solutions in urban areas,
so as to further enhance its core competitiveness.

Improve the comprehensive ability of operation management. The Group will
accelerate the improvement of quality and efficiency of the operating projects, and
further increase the yield of wastewater treatment projects. Meantime, enhanced
efforts will be put in promoting and popularizing the Company’s intelligent
water business. That would increase the core competitiveness of the Group on
sewage treatment in villages and towns, and build its operational management
advantages.

Looking forward, the Group will continue to adhere to the development goal of
“basing in Yunnan, covering the country and going global, striving to be a leading
integrated service provider of municipal environment” (M @ EE - BRE2HE - &
MBI - K ABLEOREIRTL AR ), and monitor closely the industry
developments and get the pulse of the industry trends. The Group will further
enhance its technological capabilities, core competitiveness and social influence,
thereby continuously creating greater value for shareholders.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is one of the leading integrated service providers in the urban
environmental protection industry in China. The Group mainly adopts the
BOT (“Build-Operate-Transfer”), BOO (“Build-Own-Operate”), TOT
(“Transfer-Operate-Transfer”), TOO (“Transfer-Own-Operate”), BT (“Build
and Transfer”), EPC (“Engineering-Procurement-Construction”), ROT
(“Rehabilitate-Operate-Transfer”), O&M (”"Operation and Maintenance”)
and licensed operation models to provide customized and integrated turnkey
solutions for water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste treatment as
well as system integration services of core technologies to customers. The Group's
businesses are carried out in China and the Southeast Asian countries, the Group’s
principal businesses comprise five major segments, namely, wastewater treatment,
water supply, solid waste treatment, construction and sales of equipment and
others.

As at 31 December 2019, the Group's water related projects (including the
following wastewater treatment projects, water supply projects and all water
related projects under other business segments) had the total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 6,220,200 tonnes. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group’s solid waste treatment related projects (including the following solid waste
treatment projects and all solid waste treatment related projects under other
business segments) had the total annual treatment capacity of approximately
3,571,000 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Meanwhile, the Group has been closely following the policies introduced by the
Chinese government, and actively capturing the market opportunities to expand its
footage in the municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects. During
the Reporting Period, the Group had obtained five main relevant projects including
the phase Il drainage reconstruction and expansion project in Hetian City, Xinjiang
Uygur Autonomous Region, the rural wastewater collection and treatment project
in Longhai City, Fujian Province, the project in relation to new wastewater
treatment facilities in Yunzhong, Xinzhou City, Shanxi Province and etc.. The
business involved wastewater treatment, the integration of water supply and
solid waste treatment and etc., all the projects are carried out by way of service
concession arrangement (e.g., BOT model). As at 31 December 2019, the Group
had 32 projects in relation to the municipal environment comprehensive treatment.

Wastewater Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 124 concession wastewater
treatment projects, including 7 BOO projects, 69 BOT projects, 2 TOO projects,
21 TOT projects, 2 ROT projects and 23 municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects, with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 3,380,400
tonnes, representing an addition of 1 BOT project, 1 TOT project, 1 ROT project
and 6 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects year-on-year, and
an increase in the daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 353,200
tonnes or a growth rate of approximately 11.7% as compared with the year
ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2019, 91 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 2,478,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
(including 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a total
daily wastewater treatment capacity of approximately 16,000 tonnes), representing
an addition of 1 TOT project, an addition of 5 BOT projects, 1 ROT project and
1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project which commenced
operation year-on-year, and an increase in total daily treatment capacity of
approximately 126,000 tonnes compared with the year ended 31 December 2018.
During the Reporting Period, the Group's effective wastewater treatment utilization
rate was approximately 77.35%, and the average unit charge of wastewater
treatment was approximately RMB1.40 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2019, 33 concession projects with total daily treatment
capacity of approximately 902,400 tonnes had not commenced commercial
operation (including 22 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 544,500 tonnes),
representing an addition of 1 ROT project, 1 BOT project, 6 municipal environment
comprehensive treatment projects as compared with 31 December 2018. 5 BOT
projects, 1 ROT project and 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
project under construction converted to operation. The daily treatment capacity
increased by approximately 227,200 tonnes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Water Supply Projects

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a total of 66 concession water supply
projects with total daily treatment capacity of approximately 2,445,100 tonnes,
including 15 BOO projects, 35 BOT projects, 11 TOT projects and 5 municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects, representing an addition of 4 BOT
projects, and an increase in total daily capacity of approximately 224,100 tonnes
compared with 31 December 2018, representing a growth rate of approximately
10.1%.

As at 31 December 2019, 38 concession projects with total daily capacity of
approximately 1,405,000 tonnes had commenced commercial operation (including
1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project with a total daily
treatment capacity of approximately 30,000 tonnes), representing an addition
of 6 BOT projects, 1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project,
and a reduction of 1 BOO project, and an increase in the total daily capacity
of approximately 120,000 tonnes as compared with 31 December 2018. During
the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective water supply utilization rate was
approximately 74.27%, and the average unit charge of water supply was
approximately RMB2.46 per tonne.

As at 31 December 2019, 28 concession projects with total daily capacity of
approximately 1,040,100 tonnes had not commenced commercial operation
(including 4 municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects with
total daily treatment capacity of approximately 409,700 tonnes), representing
an addition of 1 BOO project, 4 BOT projects year-on-year. 6 BOT projects and
1 municipal environment comprehensive treatment project under construction
converted to operation, The total daily capacity increased by approximately
104,100 tonnes.

Solid Waste Treatment Projects

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 21 solid waste treatment projects with
total annual treatment capacity of 3,571,000 tonnes, 8 of which with an annual
treatment capacity of 1,169,400 tonnes had commenced commercial operation
and 13 of them with an annual treatment capacity of 2,401,600 tonnes were
under construction (including 4 municipal environment comprehensive treatment
projects with an annual treatment capacity of approximately 1,137,800 tonnes). As
compared to 31 December 2018, 2 additional solid waste treatment projects were
under construction and the total annual treatment capacity increased by 43,500
tonnes. During the Reporting Period, the Group’s effective solid waste treatment
utilization rate was approximately 85.38%.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Construction and Sales of Equipment

The Group’s construction and sales of equipment segment comprises BT projects,
EPC projects and sales of equipment. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had a
total of 11 BT projects, which were either under construction and/or completed,
among which income of 10 BT projects was recognised during the Reporting
Period.

During the Reporting Period, the Group had a total of 11 EPC projects,

representing an addition of 1 EPC project as compared with 31 December 2018.

The Group engages in the production, sales and installation of equipment for
wastewater treatment, water supply, solid waste treatment and other infrastructure
facilities. The major category of water related equipment in the Group's
production is membrane. Most of the membrane products are produced by the

own plant of the Group.
Others

During the Reporting Period, the Group also undertook O&M projects for
wastewater treatment, water supply and solid waste treatment facilities owned by
third parties as well as provision of technical and consultancy services in relation
to environmental protection. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had 30 O&M
projects, representing a reduction of 1 wastewater treatment project, and 1 solid
waste treatment project as compared with 31 December 2018. These projects
included 29 wastewater treatment projects with total daily treatment capacity of
approximately 389,700 tonnes (including the capacity of wastewater treatment
projects adopting O&M model within municipal environment comprehensive
treatment projects), and 1 water supply project with daily treatment capacity of
approximately 5,000 tonnes.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of Operation

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded revenue of approximately
RMB6,538.0 million, representing an increase of approximately 4.5% compared
with the year ended 31 December 2018. During the Reporting Period, the Group
realized a profit of approximately RMB553.8 million, representing an increase of
approximately 11.5% compared with the year ended 31 December 2018. Profit
attributable to the ordinary shareholders of the Company was approximately
RMB398.2 million, representing an increase of approximately 0.1% as compared
with 31 December 2018. Earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2019 was approximately RMB0.334.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Revenue

Revenue of the Group increased from approximately RMB6,255.6 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB6,538.0 million for the
Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 4.5%.

In respect of the business segments of the Group, revenue from wastewater
treatment decreased by 9.6% from approximately RMB3,295.0 million for the
year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB2,978.4 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from water supply increased by approximately 5.0%
from approximately RMB1,171.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB1,230.7 million for the Reporting Period. Revenue from solid
waste treatment increased by approximately 102.2% from RMB749.0 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB1,514.6 million for the
Reporting Period. Revenue from construction and sales of equipment decreased
by approximately 26.2% from approximately RMB967.9 million for the year ended
31 December 2018 to approximately RMB714.6 million for the Reporting Period.
Revenue from other business increased by 38.8% from approximately RMB71.9
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB99.8 million
for the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the wastewater treatment segment was mainly
attributable to (i) a decrease in construction revenue in the existing and new
wastewater projects due to construction progress slowdown during the Reporting
Period; and (ii) the increase in wastewater unit price and wastewater treatment
capacity of certain water plants resulting in an increase in operating revenue,
which was less than the decrease in construction revenue during the Reporting
Period.

The increase in revenue from the water supply segment was mainly attributable to
that (i) certain water supply projects which were newly acquired by the Group in
the second half of 2018 generated operating revenue during the Reporting Period,
and (ii) the increase in water supply unit price and water supply capacity of
certain water plants results in an increase in operating revenue during the

Reporting Period.

The increase in revenue from the solid waste treatment segment was mainly
attributable to an increase in construction revenue generated by certain solid

waste treatment projects under construction during the Reporting Period.

The decrease in revenue from the construction and sales of equipment segment
was mainly attributable to (i) a continuous decrease of EPC construction and sales
of equipment business during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the completion of the
exiting BT projects.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales of the Group for the Reporting Period was approximately
RMB4,705.7 million, representing a decrease of approximately 1.1% as compared
with approximately RMB4,757.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2018.
The decrease was primarily due to (i) the continuous decrease of EPC construction
and sales of equipment business during the Reporting Period; and (ii) the increase
in wastewater treatment and water supply capacity of certain water plants
resulting in an increase in operating cost, and the decrease in construction cost is

greater than the increase in operating cost during the Reported Period.
Gross Profit Margin

During the Reporting Period, gross profit margin of the Group was approximately
28.0%, representing an increase of approximately 4.0% as compared with
approximately 24.0% for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Other Income

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other income of approximately
RMB124.0 million as compared with approximately RMB144.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2018, representing a decrease of approximately 14.3%. The
decrease in other income was mainly due to a decrease in tax refund during the
Reporting Period.

Other Gains — net

During the Reporting Period, the Group recorded other net loss of approximately
RMB1.4 million, representing a decrease of approximately 113.3% as compared
with a net gain of approximately RMB10.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2018. The decrease in other gains was mainly due to fair value loss on
derivative financial asset.

Selling Expenses

During the Reporting Period, selling expenses of the Group was approximately
RMB43.4 million, which decreased slightly from approximately RMB43.9 million for
the year ended 31 December 2018.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses of the Group increased by RMB29.1 million from
approximately RMB395.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to
approximately RMB424.2 million for the Reporting Period, representing an increase
of approximately 7.4%. The increase in administrative expenses was primarily due

to an increase in legal and professional fee.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Finance Costs — net

Net finance costs increased by RMB235.7 million from approximately RMB578.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB814.2 million
for the Reporting Period, representing an increase of approximately 40.7%. The
increase in net finance costs was primarily due to an increase of bank borrowings

and the issuance of bond, and an increase in average borrowing interest rate.

The average interest rate on borrowings of the Group for the Reporting Period
was approximately 5.32% per annum, representing an increase compared with
approximately 4.86% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2018 due to
the increase in market interest rate and diversified financing channels.

Profit Before Income Tax

As a result of the above factors, the Group recorded profit before income tax
of approximately RMB677.5 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 5.2% as compared with approximately RMB644.2 million
recorded for the year ended 31 December 2018.

Income Tax Expenses

Income tax expenses decreased by RMB23.8 million from approximately RMB147.5
million for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB123.7 million
for the Reporting Period, representing a decrease of approximately 16.1%. The
decrease is caused by a change in the profitability of the Group’s subsidiaries in

respective countries and regions applying different corporate income tax rates.

Profit and Net Profit Margin for the Reporting Period

As a result of the foregoing, profit for the Reporting Period increased by RMB57.1
million from approximately RMB496.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB553.8 million for the Reporting Period, representing an
increase of approximately 11.5%. Net profit margin increased from approximately
7.9% for the year ended 31 December 2018 to approximately 8.5% for the
Reporting Period.

Receivables under Service Concession Arrangements

The Group’s receivables under service concession arrangements increased by
RMB855.2 million from approximately RMB4,223.1 million as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB5,078.3 million as at 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of approximately 20.3%. Such increase was primarily due to several
construction projects were completed and generated operating revenue during the

Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Trade and Other Receivables and Prepayments

The Group's trade and other receivables and prepayments increased by
RMB1,354.1 million from approximately RMB7,416.0 million as at 31 December
2018 to approximately RMB8,770.1 million as at 31 December 2019, representing
an increase of approximately 18.3%. Such increase was primarily due to (i) the
continuous operation of EPC construction and sales of equipment business, and
(i) the increase in large VAT deductible input tax incurred during the construction
process of the Group’s several municipal environment comprehensive treatment

projects.
Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Group's total cash balance increased by RMB254.0 million from approximately
RMB2,214.4 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately RMB2,468.4 million
as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase of approximately 11.5%.
Such increase was primarily due to new equity instruments and debt financing

instruments.

Trade and Other Payables

The Group’s trade and other payables increased by RMB692.9 million from
approximately RMB6,275.1 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB6,968.0 million as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 11.0%. Such increase was primarily due to (i) an increase in
construction services payable due to the continuous investments in municipal
environment comprehensive treatment projects under construction, and (ii) the
increase of deposit payables for municipal environment comprehensive treatment

projects under construction.
Borrowings

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had borrowings of approximately
RMB21,618.9 million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB16,934.5 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had unsecured borrowings of approximately
RMB5,121.6 million for current portion and RMB7,763.5 million for non-current
portion (31 December 2018: total approximately RMB11,702.3 million), and
secured borrowings of approximately RMB1,297.8 million for current portion
and RMB7,436.0 million for non-current portion (31 December 2018: total
approximately RMB5,232.2 million).
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Management Discussion and Analysis
BB T R A

Pledge of Assets

As at 31 December 2019, assets pledged as security for borrowings included the
Group's receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets, right-
of-use assets, land use rights, property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and
the Company’s investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture, with carrying value
of RMB8,737.7 million (31 December 2018: approximately RMB5,278.6 million).

Capital Commitments

The Group's capital commitments increased by RMB2,479.5 million from
approximately RMB10,175.5 million as at 31 December 2018 to approximately
RMB12,655.0 million as at 31 December 2019, representing an increase of
approximately 24.4%. Such increase was primarily due to the Group's increased
investments in several municipal environment comprehensive treatment projects

during the Reporting Period.
Gearing Ratio

The Group's gearing ratio (calculated as net debt divided by total capital) increased
from approximately 67.98% as at 31 December 2018 to approximately 69.14%
as at 31 December 2019. The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the
increased scale of debt financing during the Reporting Period.

Employees and Remuneration Policy

As at 31 December 2019, the Group employed 6,666 employees (31 December
2018: 6,207). During the Reporting Period, staff cost was approximately RMB605.3
million (for the year ended 31 December 2018: RMB549.4 million). The Group will
strive to ensure that the remuneration level of employees is in line with industry
practices and prevailing market conditions, and remunerations of employees will
be determined based on their performance. The remuneration package provided to
employees also includes basic and floating salaries, discretionary bonus and staff
benefits. The Group also provides external and internal training programs for its
employees.

The Group did not experience any significant labour disputes which caused any
material impact on its normal business operations during the Reporting Period.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most of the transactions being
settled in RMB, which is the functional currency of most of the group entities.
The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign operations. Foreign exchange
risk arises from the recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in foreign
operations. Currency exposure arising from the net assets of the Group’s foreign
operations is managed primarily through financing activities denominated in the
relevant foreign currencies.

The group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of foreign currencies other
than their functional currencies, primarily with respect to the US dollars (“US$"),
and Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional Currencies”). The
Group seeks to limit its exposure to foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and
minimizing its net foreign currency position. Management considers the fluctuations
in exchange rates between the functional currencies of respective group entities and
Non-functional Currencies in which the group entities conduct business will not have
significant effect on the Group’s financial position and results of operations.

Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not have any significant contingent
liabilities.

Final Dividend

The Board has resolved to declare a final dividend of RMBO0.15 per share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2019. The proposed distribution of
final dividend by the Company is subject to approval at the forthcoming annual
general meeting. Upon approval, the final dividend will be paid on or before 22
July 2020.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

— On 19 November 2019, the Company together with CATIC Construction
Engineering Company Limited* ( & i j2 £ T 12 B IR 2 &) were formally
awarded the PPP project in relation to the engineering construction of
water supply and drainage and supporting municipal infrastructures in Yila
Lake Circular Economy Industrial Park, Toksun County, which is granted by
the People’s Government of Toksun County, Turpan City, Xinjiang Uygur
Autonomous Region (FTEBA TR A AR BF ML E R ARBAT), the
PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of the project
amounted to approximately RMB381,400,000.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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On 7 November 2019, the PPP project for facilitating the Construction of
Domestic Wastewater Treatment Facilities in the Entire Qingxin District of
Qingyuan was formally awarded to the Company, Guangzhou Water &
Electricity Equipment Installation Co., Ltd.*( EM MK EREL R BR A F])
and Guangzhou Public Utilities Planning & Design Institute Co., Ltd.*( E M
NAEEBRBRFFAR ST L A) by the People’s Government of Qingxin
District, Qingyuan City, Guangdong Province ( ERA&/FETBHEAREFT),
the PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment amount of
the project was approximately RMB191,111,500.

On 23 October 2019, Guizhou Tongren City Development and Investment
Group Co., Ltd* (EMAMC MM MHAEREEBE B R A7), Guizhou
Province Shigian County Water Investment Co., Ltd.* ( & M & A B Bk ¥ &%
& B[R &2 A), Guizhou Province Yinjiang Autonomous County Yinfeng
Municipal Urban and Rural Construction Investment Group Co., Ltd.* ( &
METIEAGREWMMERIKRESE B R A A ) entered into the joint
venture agreement with the Company and China Urban Construction Design
& Research Institute in relation to the establishment of the JV Company,
namely Tongren City Yunshui Environment Co., Ltd.* (#{- T ZKIREHF R
2 &l ) in Tongren City, Guizhou Province, the PRC with a total investment
amount of RMB337,100,000.

On 30 September 2019, the Company entered into the Equity Transfer
Agreement with Beijing OriginWater Technology Co., Ltd.* ( 4t & 2 /K J& &l
R BB A F) and Mr. Lin Kehong, pursuant to which the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire, and Beijing OriginWater Technology Co.,
Ltd. and Mr. Lin Kehong have conditionally agreed to sell, the Sale Shares
(i.e. the total issued share capital of Liaocheng Chuanglian Environmental
Technology Co., Ltd.* ( B4 IE IR (R EHEBBR A A ) at a consideration of
RMB40,300,000.

On 16 September 2019, Longhai City Construction Investment and
Development Co., Ltd.* (BE/8 T M ERIREHEBR A A ), the Company,
YCIH No.1 Water Resources and Hydropower Construction Co., Ltd.* ( &
MEEE —KFKEZFZARAF) and Zhongdu Engineering Design Co.,
Ltd.* (P # TR J AR Q7)) entered into the joint venture agreement in
relation to the establishment of the JV Company, namely Longhai Yunshui
Environmental Protection Engineering Co., Ltd.* (B8 M E KRR TR A
R 72 @] )in Longhai City, Fujian Province, the PRC with a total investment
amount of RMB300,000,000.
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On 5 September 2019, the Company together with Harbin North
Environmental Protection Engineering Co., Ltd.* (MEEILLHRETREABRA
Al]) and Tianjin Municipal Engineering Design & Research Institute* ( X &
M TR JETH BT ) were formally awarded the PPP project in relation to
the new wastewater treatment facilities in Yunzhong, Xinzhou City, which is
granted by Housing and Urban — Rural development Bureau* ( { 5 0 # 4B
# 5% &) of Xinzhou City, Shanxi Province, the PRC by way of public tender.
The total estimated investment of the project amounted to approximately
RMB202,139,000.

At the beginning of 2019, the People’s Government of Shuangcheng
District proposed to optimise and rectify the PPP project, and the project
optimisation and rectification plan required revision to the Original Joint
Venture Agreement entered into between the Company and Shuangcheng
Tongda Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd.* (2 Mm@ EMHEKBR A
Al ) on 15 June 2018. On 16 August 2019, the Company and Shuangcheng
Tongda Water Supply and Drainage Co., Ltd. entered into the Joint
Venture Agreement, which is the revised document of the Original Joint
Venture Agreement. For any inconsistency between the Joint Venture
Agreement and the Original Joint Venture Agreement, the Joint Venture
Agreement shall prevail. Pursuant to the terms of the Joint Venture
Agreement, the registered capital of the JV Company shall be adjusted from
RMB240,000,000 to RMB202,102,650.

On 29 July 2019, the Company received a notice from Fujian Dongfei
Environment Group Co., Ltd* (F@ERRIRREB AR AT ), an entity as to
which 40% equity is held by the Company, that Fujian Dongfei has been
formally awarded the 2019 Yanping central district environment sanitation
and cleaning market-oriented operation services procurement project in
Nanping City, which was granted by Yanping District Urban Management
Bureau, Nanping City, Fujian Province (B2 & M FMEF @AM EERR),
the PRC by way of public tender. The term of the project is from 2019
to 2025, and its total estimated investment amounted to approximately
RMB301,951,347.6.

On 14 May 2019, the Company together with YCIH No.1 Water Resources
and Hydropower Construction Co., Ltd.* (ZEEEE—KFKEZZLER
/A@]) and Zhongdu Engineering Design Co., Ltd.* (FREB TI2:RET AR A A])
received a letter of acceptance for being formally awarded the PPP project
in relation to the rural wastewater collection and treatment system project
in Longhai City, which is granted by Bureau of Housing and Urban Rural
Construction of Longhai City, Fujian Province* ({@3&% Be/8 T X5 Mk 402 %
/& ), the PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of the
project amounted to approximately RMB1,184,001,000.
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On 8 March 2019, Qinyang Yunhuai Water has received the Notice on
Alteration of Qinyang Urban Water System Comprehensive Treatment Works
PPP Project* ( (BEFLIETMR/K ARG ERIETIZ PPPIHEZEMBA) )
issued by Qinyang Housing and Urban-Rural Development Bureau*
(b 5 M 5B M 48 2 % /) that the cooperation content of the PPP
project in relation to Qinyang urban water comprehensive treatment
works in Qinyang City was reduced from eight sub-projects to three
sub-projects due to the adjustment to the implementation plan of the
project. The total budget investment amount of the project was then
reduced from RMB1,767,973,000 to RMB737,847,500 and the registered
capital of Qinyang Yunhuai Water was adjusted from RMB442,003,000
to RMB184,467,500 accordingly. The Company, Qinbei Construction and
YCIH No.5 Construction entered into the Supplemental Agreement afresh
according to the Notices, pursuant to which, the parties agreed to amend
their respective amount of capital contribution in accordance with their
respective shareholdings as stipulated in the Joint Venture Agreement based
on the adjusted total investment amount and registered capital.

On 29 January 2019, the Company, Guangzhou Engineering Contractor
Group Co., Ltd.* (&M TR @& B EE AR QA ) and Zhongdu Engineering
Design Co., Ltd.* ( # T2 & 5t B R 2 A ) entered into the joint venture
agreement in relation to establishment of Luoding City Yunshui Environmental
Protection Co., Ltd.* (EE M E/KIRHRABBR AT ) as a joint venture company
in Luoding (a county-level city), Yunfu City, Guangdong Province, the PRC
with a total investment amount of RMB219,864,800.

On 25 January 2019, the Company entered into an investment agreement
with Waytop Investment Group Limited* (& £ #% & £ & A R 2 7)) and
Xinde Investment Limited* (£ /2 & & & PR 2 7)), both being the existing
shareholders, Mr. Wang Xinyan and Mr. Chenjian, both being the beneficial
owners and, Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co., Ltd* (@ 2 ERIR K&
EBMPRAF]), as the target company, pursuant to which (i) the Company has
conditionally agreed to acquire the 20% equity interests in Fujian Dongfei
Environment Group Co., Ltd* at a consideration of RMB120,000,000; and
(ii) the Company has conditionally agreed to subscribe for 20% equity
interests in Fujian Dongfei Environment Group Co., Ltd* at a consideration
of RMB200,000,000. On 8 February 2019, the parties to the investment
agreement entered into a supplemental agreement to the effect that instead
of the Chairman, the General Manager will be the legal representative who,
subject to the approval of the Chairman, will be responsible for attending
to the external affairs of the target company and representing the target

company in execution of commercial and other corporate documents.

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {9 & R A " Annual Report 2019 F & i &

RZZE—AF=ZANA - HE=EK
BRI TR M Z R B
RCEERIL IS T R KRR AR T2
PPPIE B #EREA) - ARIEE EER
A WETHEKREARE
THEPPPIEE WA EN A B R K&\
FHEHBHRBRE=Z@FERE  BEEMHE
BrkEwEhm ARK1,767,973,000
7Tl R B A R ¥ 737,847,500 T ¢
At B =EBRKEHEME RS
A R # 442,003,000 L AR A AR
184,467,5007C » " A& ~ WAL EFE R
EHERBEZERN BN UER
W BUFTASHREREAZED
BERBLRAMER  RBEERED
EEBRREOHETE A 2 HERE -

RZE-—NAF—A=Z+hB  XQ7 -
BEMITREABEEERATLTHEHT
REFAERAABRRPEEREETH
BEM(FAT)KILAERR  BEED
EKRRREBABR LA EHZ - #KR
&7 A ANR219,864,8007T ©

R-_TBE—NE—A=-+HH A FHE
RERREBRREESBEBERAARS
EREERAR  BExmBEEATHEAEL
£ BRESAE  RBEEBRQRRERRE
BEBEARARLEERE AR
8 A R 120,000,000 7T & 1§ 14 U B 42
EERIREEEBRAA0%KE &
(LA R {8 A R # 200,000,000 7T A & 1
REEERRRBREEEGR D AI20%5E
#HoRZIE—NE-ANB  KREWE
WEITHNAI LA BERAFRERE
(MEERIBRABEARKRB(EERE
HE)EBELBEEARNEIINER
EREXEEZAFREVYAEREMBARAX
o



Management Discussion and Analysis

— On 2 January 2019, the Company together with YCIH No.1 Water Resources
and Hydropower Construction Co., Ltd.* ( ZBEEE—KFKEEZEFRAHE])
were formally awarded the PPP project in relation to the phase Il drainage
reconstruction and expansion project in Hetian City, which is granted by
Bureau of Housing and Urban Rural Construction of Hetian City, Xinjiang
Uygur Autonomous Region* ( ¥758 # 5 B 88 & A H M (T 5B A 48 2 5%
the PRC by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of the
Project amounted to approximately RMB326,581,500.

For details of the above-mentioned significant investments and acquisitions, please
refer to the announcements published by the Company on 19 November 2019,
8 November 2019, 23 October 2019, 30 September 2019, 4 October 2019, 12
November 2019, 16 September 2019, 5 September 2019, 16 August 2019, 29
July 2019, 14 May 2019, 8 March 2019, 29 January 2019, 27 January 2019, 8
February 2019 and 2 January 2019, respectively.

Subsequent Events:

— On 7 April 2020, the Company entered into the Property Share Transfer
Agreement with Eastmoney Securities Co., Ltd.* (FR B = EHBRHERA
("Eastmoney Securities”) , pursuant to which the Company has agreed to
acquire, and Eastmoney Securities has agreed to transfer the equity interests
(representing 79.29% of the property share in Jinan Yuanchuang Yunteng
Equity Investment Partnership (Limited Partnership)* (/&M REIZERERE
BENE (BERA) ) at the Transfer Consideration of RMB290,000,000.

— On 13 March 2020, the Company together with China Municipal
Engineering Central South Design and Research Institute Co., Ltd. (Bl X
TRAmET4R AR AR ) and Jiangxi Construction Engineering Third
Construction Co., Ltd. CTFARZ T HE = £ AR K E R Al ), were awarded
the PPP project in relation to the engineering construction of a new round
of urban and rural sewage treatment infrastructures in Yingde City by the
People’s Government of Yingde City, Guangdong Province ( &3 & H & A
K B FF ), China by way of public tender. The total estimated investment of

the project amounted to approximately RMB626,850,500.
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— On 10 March 2020, Langfang Hyflux entered into (I) the Sale and Purchase
Contract and (llI) the Leaseback Contract with Great Wall Guoxing,
pursuant to which, Greatwall Guoxing has agreed to, among other things,
(i) acquire the Leased Assets from Langfang Hyflux at a consideration of
RMB380,000,000, which will be paid to Langfang Hyflux in one lump
sum and (ii) lease back the Leased Assets to Langfang Hyflux with the
Lease Term for 60 months, and a total lease payment of approximately
RMB458,236,994.99 shall be paid by Langfang Hyflux to Greatwall
Guoxingin in 10 installments at floating lease rate.

— On 6 March 2020, the Board held a meeting to pass the resolutions on
(i) proposed granting the Debt Financing Instrument General Mandate to
the Board and the Authorized Committee for the registration and issuance
of Corporate Onshore and Offshore Debt Financing Instruments; and
(ii) proposed provision of guarantees by the Group. The said resolutions
will be proposed to the forthcoming extraordinary general meeting for
Shareholders’ consideration and approval.

— On 20 February 2020, Sanming Jinliya entered into the Finance Lease
Agreement with ABC Financial Leasing, pursuant to which, ABC Financial
Leasing has agreed to, among other things, (i) acquire the Leased Assets
from Sanming Jinliya at a consideration of RMB300,000,000, which will
be paid to Sanming lJinliya by installments and (ii) lease back the Leased
Assets to Sanming Jinliya with the Lease Term for 8 years and a total lease
payment of approximately RMB371,474,504.84, the principal and interest of
which will be paid by Sanming Jinliya to ABC Financial Leasing in 32 equal

installments.

For details of the above-mentioned subsequent events, please refer to the
announcements published by the Company on 7 April 2020, 13 March 2020, 10
March 2020, 6 March 2020 and 20 February 2020, respectively.

The Impact of Outbreak of Novel Coronavirus

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in early
2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have been and continued
to be implemented across the world. The Group will pay close attention to
the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its impact on the
consolidated financial position and operating results of the Group. As at the date
of this annual report, the Group was not aware of any material adverse effects on
the consolidated financial statements as a result of the COVID-19 outbreak.
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Yang Tao, aged 44, joined the Group in August 2017 as non-executive
Director of the Company and the Chairman of the Board. Mr. Yang Tao
obtained a master’s degree in business administration from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2007. He was qualified as a senior engineer
in August 2006. Mr. Yang Tao has extensive senior management experience in
architectural engineering, urban development and cultural tourism. Mr. Yang
Tao served as vice general manager of Yunnan Construction Engineering Group
Co., Ltd.* (ZFEIEBARZAR]) from April 2009 to April 2011. Mr. Yang Tao
has been appointed as a member of the Standing Committee, deputy secretary
of the Standing Committee and head of the united front work department of
the Standing Committee of the Communist Party of China of Xishuangbanna
Autonomous Prefecture between April 2011 and August 2014. Mr. Yang Tao
was appointed as party secretary and vice chairman of the board YMCI between
August 2014 and December 2016. Since December 2016, Mr. Yang Tao was
appointed as vice party secretary, vice chairman of the board and president of
YMCI.

Mr. Yu Long (“Mr. Yu"), aged 48. Mr. Yu joined the Group in June 2011, and
currently serves as an executive Director, vice chairman and the General Manager
of the Company. Mr. Yu obtained a MBA degree from Guanghua School of
Management, Peking University in July 2013, and is now studying as a doctor
at the School of Economics and Management at University of Chinese Academy
of Sciences. Mr. Yu has more than 18 years of experience in environmental and
water works industry, market development, project management, investment
capital management, and risk control management, and he is mainly responsible
for the overall operation and management, strategic planning and business
development of the Company. Mr. Yu was appointed as general manager of
water works division and deputy general manager of Beijing Tsinghua Novel
Environmental Protection Company Limited between July 2003 and August 2007.
Mr. Yu was appointed as project management director of Kardan Water Group
Limited* (SLf1/KIEEIBRERER) between August 2007 and July 2008. Between
July 2008 and April 2009, Mr. Yu was appointed as the deputy general manager
of Ruoshi (Beijing) Investment Co., Ltd.* (A (tR) HEERAF]). Between
May 2009 and October 2012, Mr. Yu was appointed as the sales director and the
deputy general manager of Beijing OriginWater. Between June 2011 and August
2017, Mr. Yu served as General Manager and executive Director of the Company,
and as General Manager of the Company between August 2017 and December
2018. Mr. Yu has served as an executive Director, vice chairman and General
Manager of the Company from December 2018 till now. In addition, Mr. Yu has
been appointed as chairman or director of various subsidiaries of our Group since
January 2011.
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Mr. He Yuanping (“Mr. He"), aged 53, joined our Group in June 2011 as a
non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. He obtained a bachelor’'s degree in
engineering from Nanjing University of Science and Technology in July 1987. He
also completed a master’'s degree in mechanical engineering in Beijing University
of Science and Technology in February 1992 and obtained a master’s degree in
financial mathematics from the Victoria University of Wellington in New Zealand in
July 2000. Mr. He was appointed as director, deputy general manager and chief
financial officer of Beijing OriginWater Science and Technology Development Co.,
Ltd.* JtRBEKRERHERBR A R]) (predecessor of Beijing OriginWater) from
September 2005 to June 2007. From June 2007 to March 2018, he has been
the director, deputy general manager, chief financial officer and board secretary
of Beijing OriginWater. Mr. He was re-designated from a non-executive Director
to an executive Director of the Company on 30 August 2018 and re-designated
from an executive Director to a non-executive Director of the Company on 16
October 2018. Mr. He has also assumed positions such as member of fixed
income professional committee of the Securities Association of China, expert in
the PPP expert database of the National Development and Reform Commission,
business mentor of Beijing Fourth Board* (3t PU#R), committee member of the
Beijing Haidian District Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference* (1t 5=
HERBIBZE B), vice-chairman of Hydraulics Committee of the Chinese Hydraulic
Science Society* (FFEIKFIRIE &), guest teacher of the School of Accountancy of
Central University of Finance and Economics, guest teacher of University of Science
and Technology Beijing, vice president of Western Returned Scholars Association
ANZ branch. He has been appointed as chairman and director of a number of
subsidiaries of Beijing OriginWater since May 2011, and has managerial experience
of over 12 years in large-scale enterprises and the water works industry. In
addition, Mr. He has been appointed as director of Wuhan Sanzhen Industry
Holding Co., Ltd.* (RUE=SBEZERRMBER AT (the shares of which are listed
on the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code: 600168) since November 2013. Mr.
He has served as the general manager of Beijing DQY Agricultural Technology Co.
Ltd.* JEREEREERBRG AR AR) from March 2018 to June 2019, and has
acted as the chairman of ZTE Instruments (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. (fF &% CRYI)

AR 7A]) since April 2019 till now.

Ms. Li Bo (“Ms. Li”), aged 43, joined the Group in August 2014, and currently
serves as non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Li obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Dalian University of Technology in Dalian
in June 2008. Ms. Li has more than 13 years of senior management experience
in water works industry. From August 2014 to August 2017, Ms. Li acted as
shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company, and from August 2017
till now, she has been the non-executive Director of the Company. Ms. Li was
appointed as the deputy manager of the investment and financing department of
YMCI between April 2005 and May 2010, and was promoted as manager of the
investment and financing department between May 2010 and May 2012. Ms. Li
acted as the board office director of YMCI from May 2012 to December 2017,
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and she has been the Secretary to the Board and Assistant to President of YMCI
since December 2017. In addition, Ms. Li has also been appointed as the director
of a number of subsidiaries of YMCI since January 2014.

Mr. Chen Yong (“Mr. Chen”), aged 47, joined our Group in June 2019
as non-executive Director of the Company. He is a postgraduate and senior
accountant. Mr. Chen obtained a bachelor’s degree in computer science from
Xinjiang University (FT38A2) in July 1999 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Xinjiang University of Finance and Economics in June
2009. Mr. Chen has over 26 years of extensive experience in accounting and
management. From February 1992 to July 2008, Mr. Chen worked for CNPC
Xinjiang Sales Company* (R EIAMFEIHE A7) and served as a Deputy
Director of the Finance Department and a Director of the Corporate Management
Department. Since September 2010, Mr. Chen has been the General Manager
of the Equity Investment Department of Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. *(E®{E7E AR
E(EAF]), the General Manager of the Equity Investment Department of CNPC
Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (F/BEEEER B F]), the Managing Director
of Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)*
(BRERETREETREAECE (BRAE)) and an Authorized Representative
of the Executive Partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity Investment Center
(Limited Partnership)* (B2 EAEBREREFRL (BERAE%)). In addition, Mr.
Chen has been supervisor of Shandong International Trust Co., Ltd.* (LLIER& B
ZrElR DB A E]) (a company listed on the Hong Kong Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1697) since September 2014. He has been a director of Jiemian (Shanghai)
Network Technology Co., Ltd.* (FE (B)8) @EEFEBRAR]) since July 2016,
and a director of Beijing Wuerzhilu Technology Co., Ltd.* (1t~ 2 ikBI AR
‘A R]) since April 2017, and a director of Beijing Weiche Technology Co., Ltd* (it
RIBERIT AR A F]) since May 2017. Mr. Chen has been a director of Shandong
Provincial Financial Asset Management Co., Ltd.* (LEREERMEEEERND AR A
A]) since July 2018, the vice chairman of Beijing Kunlun Zhihui Technology Co.,
Ltd.* (At REREERHLB R A R]) since February 2018, and a director of Tianjin
Climate Exchange Co., Ltd.* (R)EHHERZ ZFTEMR A7) since December 2015.

Mr. Yang Fang, aged 46, joined the Group in June 2012, and currently serves
as the executive Director, party secretary and deputy general manager of the
Company. Mr. Yang Fang obtained a bachelor’'s degree in accounting and
statistics from Yunnan University of Finance and Economics in July 1998, and
further obtained an executive master’s degree in business administration from
Dalian University of Technology in June 2008. Mr. Yang Fang was qualified as a
first-class enterprise human resources managing personnel in March 2009 certified
by the Ministry of Labor and Social Security. Mr. Yang Fang served as party
secretary of the Company in March 2013, and he was subsequently appointed as
deputy general manger of the Company in November 2014, and was appointed
as the executive Director of the Company in August 2017. Mr. Yang Fang has
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more than 12 years of senior management experience in water works related
companies, and is mainly responsible for party building work, administrative and
HR work of the Company, and he is responsible for operation and management
of some regions. Mr. Yang Fang served in various positions in YMCI, including
manager of personnel and organization department, manager of the human

resources department.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Hu Song (“Mr. Hu"), aged 58, joined the Group in August 2014 as an
independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Hu obtained a master's
degree in western economics from Huazhong University of Science and Technology
in December 2002. Mr. Hu is mainly participating in making significant business
decisions and providing independent advice on corporate governance, connected
transactions, various matters of directors and scale management. Mr. Hu has 16
years of experience as senior management in enterprises, and has successively
served as director of companies such as Shenzhen Rihai Communications
Equipment Company Limited* (RIIT BB @AZREBR AR and Shenzhen
Yungong Investment Co., Ltd.* (RIIT A AL EBRAA) as well as the

consultant of Mission Hills Properties.

Mr. Ma Shihao (“Mr. Ma”), aged 81, joined the Group in August 2014
as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Ma obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in water supply and drainage study of civil engineering from
Tsinghua University in January 1963. Mr. Ma was qualified as an engineer
specializing in radioactive wastewater treatment in December 1979 by the National
Cadre Bureau of Science and Technology, and qualified as a senior engineer
specializing in wastewater treatment in August 1987 and as a senior engineer
(professor level) specializing in environmental engineering in November 1995 by
the Beijing Senior Professional and Technical Personnel Certifying Committee.
Mr. Ma is mainly participating in making significant decisions and providing
independent advice on corporate governance, connected transactions and matters
of corporate operations. Mr. Ma has more than 53 years of working experience
in the water industry. He worked in Beijing Municipal Research Institute of
Environmental Protection* (Jb R IRIZIRFERI Z24F5TFT) between January 1963 and
January 1999, and was subsequently appointed as a member of the Shandong
Xiaoginghe Wastewater Treatment Construction Technology Advisory Committee*
(LWFR/NESHCRETRREMEREZEE). Mr. Ma was appointed as independent
director of Beijing OriginWater between September 2007 and April 2014. Mr. Ma
is the author of the Beijing discharge standard of water pollutants for municipal
wastewater treatment plants (DB11/890-2012) promulgated by Beijing People’s
Government in May 2012 and the second amendment of the Beijing integrated
discharge standard of water pollutants (DB11/307-2013) promulgated by Beijing
People’s Government in December 2013. Mr. Ma was awarded by the Ministry
of Environmental Protection and the Beijing Municipal Management Committee
for preparing various feasibility reports on wastewater treatment. Mr. Ma was
awarded for his book, “The Book of Practical Water Treatment Technology”( (&
F/KEEEM#ESZ) ) in September 2002 published by China Petroleum &
Chemical Industry Federation.
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Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (“Mr. Liu"”), aged 48, joined the Group in June 2018
as independent non-executive Director of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained a
bachelor’s degree in accounting and a master’s degree in accounting from RMIT
University of Australia in 1996 and 2002, respectively. He subsequently obtained
a master’'s degree in business administration from Deakin University of Australia
in 2004. Mr. Liu has more than 21 years of experience in accounting, auditing
and management and is a qualified accountant of CPA Australia and Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Liu has worked at KPMG since 1996
as a manager, senior manager and supervisor. From 1996 to 1999, he worked
in the audit department of the Hong Kong office of KPMG. From 1999 to
2010, he worked in the financial advisory service department of the Guangzhou
office and Shenzhen office of KPMG. From October 2010 to December 2013,
Mr. Liu was chief financial officer and company secretary of Leoch International
Technology Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 842).
From December 2013 to May 2017, Mr. Liu was executive director, chief financial
officer and company secretary of Yestock Car Rental Company Limited. Since
May 2017, Mr. Liu has been the managing director of member companies of
Heungkong Financial Group.

SUPERVISORS

Mr. Long Limin (“Mr. Long”), aged 52, joined the Group in August 2017 as
a shareholder representative Supervisor of the Company and Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee. Mr. Long obtained a bachelor’s degree in engineering
from Chongqging University in 1991 and a master’s degree in business
administration from Tsinghua University in 2004. Between 1991 and 2000, Mr.
Long acted as deputy factory director of Beijing Plumbing Equipment Factory 1
(b R /KBE 2247 — 7). Between 2000 and 2010, Mr. Long served as vice general
manager of TsingHua TongFang Artificial Environment Co., Ltd* (B[R A TRIE
BMRAF]). Between 2010 and 2011, Mr. Long was the director of operation and
the manager of procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. Between 2011
and 2013, Mr. Long served as the general manager of Shandong Yashi Co., Ltd.*
(IWEHELEK D BRAR]). Between 2013 and 2016, Mr. Long was the director
of enquiry and procurement department of Beijing OriginWater. From 2016 to
March 2018, Mr. Long was the director of operation planning centre of Beijing
OriginWater, and he has been the director and deputy general manager of Beijing
OriginWater since March 2018.
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Mr. Zhu Zhen (“Mr. Zhu"), aged 35, joined the Group in August 2017 as a
shareholder representative Supervisor. Mr. Zhu obtained his master's degree in
law from Tsinghua University in September 2009. Mr. Zhu has almost 10 years
of experience in law and investment related industries. Mr. Zhu was the deputy
general manager of the auditing and legal department of YMCI from October
2013 to September 2016, and he was promoted as the general manager of the
legal department of YMCI in September 2016. Mr. Zhu has also acted as the
general manager of the leisure industry department under the investment and
management center of YMCI since 2018. In addition, Mr. Zhu has served as
director and supervisor in various subsidiaries of YMCI since September 2014.

Mr. Huang Yi, aged 43, joined the Group in June 2011, and he is currently
an employee representative supervisor, the deputy general manager of the
technology and risk control center and the general manager of the southwest
region of the Company. Mr. Huang Yi obtained a bachelor’s degree in Computer
and Application from Yunnan University in July 1998 and a master’s degree in
Business Administration from Nanjing Normal University in July 2001. From July
2001 to November 2003, Mr. Huang Yi served as a principal staff member of
the economic and trade division in the Kunming Resident Office of the National
Audit Office. From November 2003 to May 2009, Mr. Huang Yi served successively
as senior analyst in the planning and development department, assistant to the
director of the audit department and deputy director of the discipline inspection
office of Yunnan Malong Industry Group Company Limited* (EfSEEXEE
& 1nEBRAR]). Since June 2011, Mr. Huang Yi has served successively as deputy
manager of the investment development department, manager of the investment
development department, deputy general manager of the market and investment
center , the general manager of the technology and risk control center and the
general manager of the southwest region of the Company. In addition, since
August 2007, Mr. Huang Yi has served as chairman or general manager of certain
subsidiaries of the Group.

Ms. Tang Shuang (“Ms. Tang”), aged 35, joined the Group in January 2015
as an employee representative Supervisor of the Company. Ms. Tang obtained a
bachelor’s degree in management from Yunnan University in Yunnan in July 2007,
and she obtained the qualification as an accountant in May 2006 awarded by the
Ministry of Finance. Ms. Tang is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors,
managers and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws
and regulations, the Articles of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’
meetings. Ms. Tang has more than 11 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises. Ms. Tang was an employee of the Yunnan branch office of Ping
An Life Insurance Limited between July 2007 and June 2008, later she served
as the accountant for the Beijing branch office of Ping An Property & Casualty
Insurance Company of China Limited from July 2008 to March 2010. From
March 2010 to February 2015, Ms. Tang served in the business department of
Yunnan OriginWater Technology Company Limited. Ms. Tang served as the deputy
manager in the bidding and procurement department of our Company from
March 2015 to November 2015. Since December 2015, she has been the deputy
manager in the business department of our Company.
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Mr. Tan Hairui ("Mr. Tan"”), aged 49, joined the Group in January 2015 as an
independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Tan obtained a bachelor’s degree
in economics from Yunnan Finance and Trade College (now known as Yunnan
University of Finance and Economics) in July 1993. Mr. Tan obtained the certificate
as a registered accountant issued by Accountant Examination Committee of
Ministry of Finance of the PRC in April 1999 and a Lawyer’s License in August
2004. Mr. Tan has more than 19 years of working experience in large-scale
enterprises, and he is mainly responsible for supervising the Directors, managers
and other management personnel to ensure compliance with laws and regulations,
the Articles of Association and the resolutions of Shareholders’ meetings. Mr.
Tan was the deputy manager of the financial department of Yunda Science &
Technology Industry Company from 2000 to December 2001. Mr. Tan joined
Yunnan Hengxin Law Firm as trainee solicitor and lawyer from January 2002 to
August 2007. Mr. Tan joined the Yunnan Quzhi Law Firm as lawyer between
September 2007 and March 2009. Mr. Tan worked in Yunnan Geyuan Law Firm
as a lawyer from March 2009 to January 2018. Since January 2018, Mr. Tan has
been working in Beijing Yingke (Kunming) Law Firm (dt RZ&% (EBR) 2 EKA)

as a lawyer.

Ms. Zhang Ling (“Ms. Zhang"), aged 44, joined the Group in January 2018
as an Independent Supervisor of the Company. Mr. Zhang Ling is the deputy
professor and Master’s tutor of law school of Yunnan University of Finance
and Economics and director of the collaborated regional resources law research
center of law school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics. Ms. Zhang
obtained her law degree in July 1997 at Wuhan University and master degree in
international business law and European Union law at University of Sheffield in
November 2004. Since September 2005, Ms. Zhang has been working at the law
school of Yunnan University of Finance and Economics, responsible for teaching,
research and application of law. Ms. Zhang had published dozens of professional
academic papers on law, held discussions on national social topics and research
on provincial laws. She was invited by the Legal Affairs Office of the State
Council* (BT EFIH), the Ministry of Civil Affairs* (RIEXEE) and the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs* (N3 EB) to participate in the amendments of two laws and
regulations and legislative consultation. She has received the research award of
(EEE T2 SR EMRER) twice.

In addition, Ms. Zhang had approximately 21 years of solid experience in the legal

Yunnan Philosophical Social Science Society*

field. Since she was qualified as a practicing lawyer in November 1999, Ms. Zhang
had worked in five different law firms in Yunnan Province and is currently working

(Z7/\GREEDEFEFR).

on or part-time basis at Yunnan Bagian Law Firm*
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Liu Xujun (“Mr. Liu"), aged 47, joined our Group in June 2011 and
currently serves Deputy General Manager of the Company. Mr. Liu obtained
a bachelor’s degree in water supply and drainage engineering from Tongji
University in Shanghai in July 1995. Later, he further obtained a master’s
degree in environmental engineering from Kunming University of Science &
Technology in Kunming in June 2009, and he obtained a doctorate degree in
environment engineering at Tongji University in Shanghai in September 2017. Mr.
Liu was qualified as a senior engineer specialized in water supply and drainage
in September 2006 by the Kunming Architecture Senior Engineer Certifying
Committee (EFMEEIRS R IREMIAER).

professional manager in June 2007 by the Human Resources and Social Security

He was also qualified as a

Bureau of Yunnan Province of the PRC. Mr. Liu has become a member of the
¥IK ) since January 2013. He was
subsequently qualified as a professorate senior engineer specialized in water supply

International Water Association (IWA)

and drainage in November 2014 by the Yunnan Professorate Senior Engineer
Certifying Committee (ZMA E= A TRAMFFEZ S E). Mr. Liu has more than
23 years of technical experience in the water works industry, including 9 years
of senior management experience in water works enterprises, mainly responsible
for the technical management, research and development, and services of the
Company. Mr. Liu served as engineering staff in Kunming Municipal Sewerage

0., Ltd., a deputy director and later a director of World Bank project office
between July 1995 and October 2005. Mr. Liu worked as a procurement specialist
for the World Bank Resident Mission from December 2007 to October 2009. He
served as chief engineer and deputy general manager of Yunnan Province Water
from January 2010 to June 2011. Mr. Liu served as executive director and deputy
general manager of the Company from June 2011 to August 2017. He has been
the deputy general manager of the Company since August 2017.

Mr. Huang Yunjian (“Mr. Huang”), aged 54, joined our Group in December
20Ny
Company. Mr. Huang obtained a degree in environment engineering from

and currently serves as secretary of the disciplinary commission of the

Kunming University of Science and Technology in Kunming in July 1988.
He obtained a certificate for senior research studies on modern economics
management in 2005 and a certificate for the “Western China Environmental
Infrastructure Technologies and Projects” course in December 2005. Mr. Huang
subsequently obtained the qualification of a Chinese professional manager in June
2006 awarded by Chinese Professional Manager Coalition. Mr. Huang has more
than 20 years of experience in operation management and senior management in
companies related to water works, and he is mainly responsible for management,
strategic planning and business development of our Group. Mr. Huang was
appointed as engineer and plant manager of the 4th sewage plant of Kunming
Ltd. from April 1998 to June 2005. Mr. Huang was
appointed as the legal representative, executive director and general manager of
Kunming Wastewater Treatment Co. Ltd. between June 2005 and July 2008. Mr.

Municipal Sewerage Co.,
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Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management

.

-

Huang served as assistant to the general manager and deputy general manager of
Yunnan Province Water, our controlling shareholder, between January 2010 and
June 2011. Mr. Huang served as executive director and deputy general manager
of the Company from December 2011 to August 2017. He has been the deputy
general manager of the Company from August 2017 to March 2020. Mr. Huang
has served as full-time secretary of the disciplinary commission of the Company
since March 2020. In addition, Mr. Huang has also been a part-time professor of
Kunming University of Science and Technology since January 2013.

Mr. Wang Yong (“Mr. Wang”), aged 48, joined the Group in January 2013
and is currently the financial controller of the Company. Mr. Wang obtained a
bachelor’'s degree in economics in July 1993 from Yunnan Finance and Trade
College (now known as Yunnan University of Finance and Economics) and a
master’s degree in business administration in January 2009 from the Yunnan
University. He was qualified as an accountant in the PRC in May 1996, and also
qualified as a registered tax agent in the PRC in October 2000, later he was
promoted to a senior accountant in October 2004. From April 2002 to January
2013, Mr. Wang was appointed as the manager of finance department of
Kunming Sino-Platinum Metals Catalyst Co., Ltd* (RFASHHE/LEBR A F]). Mr.
Wang joined the Group in January 2013 as manager of finance department of the
Company, subsequently he was appointed as financial controller of the Company
in November 2013. Mr. Wang has more than 16 years of senior management
experience in large-scale enterprises and extensive experience in accounting, and
he is mainly responsible for the finance, financing, internal control, securities and
project investment risk control of the Company.

Mr. Zhang Song (“Mr. Zhang"), aged 46, joined the Group as the investment
director in October 2015 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhang obtained a master’s
degree in business administration from Tongji University in 2005. Mr. Zhang
has over 25 years of rich experience in environmental protection and relevant
industries. Mr. Zhang served as a member and representative of the preparatory
group of Hedong Sewage Treatment Plant at the construction committee of
Urumgi from 1995 to 2002 and as the president of China region of Salcon
Berhad, Malaysia from 2004 to 2015.
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Mr. Zhao Peng (“Mr. Zhao"), aged 40, joined the Group as the general manager
assistant and general manager of the marketing and investment centre of the
Group in June 2011 and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the
Company by the second session of the Board. Mr. Zhao obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hebei University of Economics and Business in July 2003.
Mr. Zhao has approximately 17 years of rich experience in the environmental
protection industry. Mr. Zhao served as the business manager of Beijing Novel
Environmental Protection Co., Ltd.* (ERAKFIRIRAMRAF]) from September 2003
to April 2004 and subsequently as the marketing director for North China area of
Veolia Water Solutions & Technologies (Beijing) Co., Ltd.* (E{3ZHE/K# T2 (4LR)
BBRAA]) from May 2005 to June 2011.

Mr. Ma Xiangyi, aged 45, joined the Group in February 2016, successively served
as the deputy general manager and general manager of the project management
center and was appointed as a deputy general manager of the Company by the
second session of the Board. Mr. Ma Xiangyi obtained a bachelor’s degree in
industrial and civil construction from Yunnan Polytechnic University in July 1997
and the qualification of intermediate engineer (in water supply and drainage) in
August 2002. Mr. Ma Xiangyi has over 23 years of rich experience in water and
relevant industries. Mr. Ma Xiangyi served as an engineer at the infrastructure
construction division of Kunming Municipal Water Discharge Company* (&3
W HEZK A E]) from August 1997 to August 2005, a deputy general manager of
(RBREMIEER BIEAA]) from
September 2005 to October 2012 and a standing deputy general manager of
PR RRE R AA)
from November 2012 to February 2016. In addition, Mr. Ma Xiangyi served as

Kunming Dianchi Project Management Company*
Kunming Dianchi Construction Management Company* (£

the chairman or a senior management member of a number of subsidiaries of the
Group since September 2016.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo (“Mr. Li"”), aged 41, joined the Group in May 2013 as company
secretary of the Company and was appointed as Secretary to the Board since
August 2013. Mr. Li graduated from Capital University of Economics and Business
in Beijing with a bachelor’s degree in economics in July 2001 and obtained a
master’s degree in accounting from Macquarie University in Australia in April
2006. Mr. Li is currently a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and a member of the Certified Public Accountants of Australia. He
is mainly responsible for assisting with the operation of our Company and the
operation of the Board. Mr. Li has more than 10 years of experience in finance-
related senior positions. Mr. Li was engaged by Audit Office of New South Wales
as an auditor since August 2007 and was later promoted to senior auditor.
From March 2011 to June 2013, Mr. Li served as the financial controller and the
company secretary of Beijing Jingkelong Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 814).
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Group (the “Financial Statements”) for the year ended 31
December 2019 to the Shareholders.

SHARE CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2019, the total share capital of the Company was
RMB1,193,213,457, divided into 1,193,213,457 Shares of RMB1.00 each. Details
of changes in share capital of the Company during the year are set out in note
26 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any
of the listed securities of the Company during the Reporting Period.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association and the laws of the PRC, the Company
is not subject to any pre-emptive rights requiring it to propose new issues to its

existing Shareholders in proportion to their shareholdings.

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS

The Group is an operator primarily engaged in municipal environmental integrated
services and the only urban environmental integrated service provider in Yunnan
Province. The Group is also one of the few integrated operators in municipal
environmental services in China that has expanded overseas successfully, and our
overseas business is mainly located in Southeast Asian regions. In addition, the
Group operates upstream and downstream development industries to improve the
Group's profitability structure and broaden the sources of income. The Group has
good track records in projects such as urban wastewater treatment, tap water and
raw water supply, watercourse management, solid waste treatment and others.

The major business segments of the Group include investment, construction and
management services for urban water supply, waste water treatment, solid waste
treatment, and comprehensive environmental treatment projects, construction
and sales of equipment and other environmental protection related services. The
corporate strategy of the Group is to set our foundation of business in Yunnan,
identify overseas investment opportunities continuously, and gradually expand our
business to other favourable regions in China and overseas emerging markets, in

order to secure stable income sources.
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RESULTS

The audited results of operations of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2019 are set out in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page
90 to 91. The financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019 is set out
in the consolidated balance sheet on page 92 to 94. The consolidated cash flow
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019 is set out in the consolidated
statement of cash flows on page 97 to 98.

Discussion and analysis about the operating performance and significant elements
affecting the results of operations and financial condition of the Company during
the Reporting Period are set out in the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this annual report from page 17 to 34.

DISTRIBUTIONS AND DIVIDENDS

The Board has resolved to declare the final dividend of RMBO0.15 per Share (tax
included) for the year ended 31 December 2019. The proposed final dividend
is subject to the consideration and approval by the Shareholders at the AGM.
The final dividend is payable to the Shareholders whose names are listed in the
register of members of the Company on 29 June 2020, in an aggregate amount
of approximately RMB179.0 million.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Articles of Association, the final dividend will
be denominated and declared in RMB. The final dividend on Domestic Share will
be paid in RMB and on H Share will be paid in Hong Kong dollars. The relevant
exchange rate for conversion shall be calculated by the average median exchange
rate for converting RMB into Hong Kong dollar as quoted by the China Foreign
Exchange Trading Centre for the week immediately before the date on which
the dividend was declared (i.e. Tuesday, 16 June 2020). Upon approved, the final
dividend is expected to be distributed on or before Wednesday, 22 July 2020.

The Company has established a sound decision-making process and profit
distribution mechanism. Emphasis is placed on Shareholder returns and cash
dividends are distributed to Shareholders regularly. In formulating the profit
distribution plan, the Board has fully considered the opinions and demands of
Shareholders to, after taking into account the statutory interests of minority
Shareholders, and has submitted the profit distribution plan at the general
meeting for approval. Also, the independent non-executive Directors have properly
carried out their duties in regards to the decision making process of the profit
distribution plan.

Under the relevant tax rules and regulations of the PRC (collectively the “PRC Tax
Law”), the Company is required to withhold corporate income tax at the rate of
10% when distributing the final dividend to non-resident enterprises (such term
shall have the meaning as defined under the PRC Tax Law) whose names appear
on the H Shares register of members of the Company.
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In accordance with the PRC Tax Law, the Company is also required to withhold
individual income tax when distributing the final dividend to individual
shareholders whose names appeared on the H Shares register of members of the
Company. The Company will determine the country of domicile of the individual
holders of H Shares based on the registered addresses as recorded in the H Shares
register of members of the Company on the record date with details as follows:

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are Hong Kong and Macau residents
and those whose country of domicile is a country which has entered into
a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10%
on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of less than 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of them. The Company would
make applications on their behalf to seek entitlement of the relevant agreed
preferential treatments pursuant to the Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential Treatment
Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative) (Guo Shui Fa [2009]
No. 124)( (EIRBBABBANDE CGEEREXHKBEFBEEEIE (R
7)) eviman) (ERE[2009]1245%) ).

—  For individual holders of H Shares whose country of domicile is a country
which has entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend
tax rate of higher than 10% but lower than 20%, the Company would
withhold and pay the individual income tax at the agreed-upon effective tax
rate on behalf of them.

—  For individual holders of H Shares who are residents of those countries
without any tax treaties with the PRC or having tax treaties with the PRC
stipulating a dividend tax rate of 20% or more, and other situations, the
Company would withhold and pay the individual income tax at a tax rate of
20% on behalf of them.

If individual shareholders of H Shares have any queries on the above arrangement,
they may consult their tax advisers for advice on the taxation effects involving
the ownership and disposal of H Shares in PRC, Hong Kong and other countries
(regions).
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to determine the list of Shareholders who are entitled to attend and vote
at the AGM, the register of holders of H Shares of the Company will be closed
from 16 May 2020 to 16 June 2020 (both dates inclusive), during which period
no transfer of Shares will be registered. Holders of H Shares whose names appear
on the register of holders of H Shares of the Company at the close of business on
15 May 2020 are entitled to attend and vote at the AGM.

In order to attend and vote at the AGM, any holder of H Shares whose transfer
has not been registered shall lodge the transfer documents together with the
relevant share certificates with the Company’s H Share registrar, Tricor Investor
Services Limited at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai,
Hong Kong, by no later than 4:30 p.m. on 15 May 2020.

For the purpose of determining entitlement for the final dividend for the year
ended 31 December 2019, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Tuesday, 23 June 2020 to Monday, 29 June 2020 (both dates inclusive)
during which registration of transfer of Shares will be suspended.

To be eligible to receive the final dividend, all transfer documents must be lodged
with the Company’s H Share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at 54nd Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong (for
holders of H Shares), or the secretariat of the Board, located at 5th Floor, Yunnan
Water, 2089 Haiyuan Bei Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan Province, the
PRC (for holders of Domestic Shares), by no later than 4:30 p.m. on Monday, 22
June 2020.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movement in property, plant and equipment of the Group during the

Reporting Period are set out in note 17 to the Financial Statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the Reporting Period
are set out in consolidated statement of changes in equity, of which details of
reserves available for distribution to Shareholders are set out in consolidated
statement of changes in equity.
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DONATIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group made external donations of approximately
RMB1.7 million (contractual value) (excluding personal donations by employees).

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of bank and other borrowings of the Group as of 31 December 2019 are
set out in note 29 to the Financial Statements in this annual report.

DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Certain information concerning the Directors and the Supervisors and senior
management of the Company during the Reporting Period and as at the date of
this annual report is set out below.
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Directors =
Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
] RA QBB ROEHMNEERN
Executive Directors
HITES
Mr. Yu Long Executive Director, vice-chairman, Appointed as the general manager
general manager on 28 August 2017 and appointed as
an executive Director and Vice-chairman
on 12 December 2018
FEEE WITESE BlESRK - BKE —E—+FENAZTNBEZER
wmrE - N\F+-A+=H
BEZERVPTEERREEER
Mr. Yang Fang Executive Director, 28 August 2017
deputy general manager
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Date of Appointment
Name Title in the Company for the Current Term
HE R 2 A 7] B B A ROEHNEERSN
Non-executive Directors
FHTES
Mr. Yang Tao Non-executive Director, Chairman 28 August 2017
e & FEBMITESE BEFK —T—tFNAZ+/\H
Ms. Li Bo Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
FREL FEMITESR —T—tFNAZ+N\H
Mr. He Yuanping Non-executive Director 28 August 2017
{a] BB 5 & FEMITESR —E—+EFENA=Z+/\H
Mr. Chen Yong Non-executive Director 13 June 2019
BRE L& FERITES —E-AEXA+T=H

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (Resigned from

non-executive Director on 13 June 2019)

BHEEEE(RZTE-—NFSAT=H
BEEFEMITEF)

Independent Non-executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

BhIksE

Mr. Hu Song

ARk £

Mr. Ma Shihao

BExEE

SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR

Non-executive Director

FHTES

Independent Non-executive Director
BIYFATES
Independent Non-executive Director
BIUFRATES

Independent Non-executive Director

BIAFBHTES

MANAGEMENT

28 August 2017

—E2—+FNA=+/\H

13 June 2018
—ZE-N\FEXA+=H
28 August 2017
—ET—tFN\AZ+N\H
28 August 2017
—ZT—tFNA=-+N\H

EEREREEE

Date of Appointment

Name Title in the Company for the Current Term

e RAERQXBNBE BOEHNEERD

Supervisors

E=

Mr. Long Limin Chairman of the Supervisory Committee, 28 August 2017
shareholder representative Supervisor

REFIR & EEQIE BRRRRES —Z—+tHFNA=Z+/\B

Mr. Zhu Zhen Shareholder representative Supervisor 28 August 2017

RIR 5T E R REE —ZTZ—tFENAZ+/\B

Mr. Tan Hairui Independent Supervisor 28 August 2017

BEHREE BYES —ZTZ—tFENAZ+/\B

Ms. Zhang Ling Independent Supervisor 5 January 2018

BRI+ BYES —ZE-NF—HAEH

Ms. Tang Shuang Employee representative Supervisor 28 August 2017

BRE L BIKKES —E—+FNRA=+/\H

Mr. Huang Yi Employee representative Supervisor 21 May 2018

BEEE BIRKES - N\FRA=+—H
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Name

g

Title in the Company
RED A BB

Directors’ Report
EERRE

Date of Appointment
for the Current Term
RITEHNZEEAH

Senior management
BREERE

Mr. Liu Xujun

ZIBE L&

Mr. Huang Yunjian

(Resigned on 11 March 2020)

BEERAL

M=B-FE=A+-BEMH

Mr. Wang Yong

Deputy general manager
Bl e a8
Deputy general manager

Bl g

Chief financial controller

FEELE B 75 48 Ba

Mr. Zhang Song Deputy general manager

SRR ST 4 Bl

Mr. Zhao Peng Deputy general manager

5 7 £ Bl e

Mr. Ma Xiangyi Deputy general manager

FrELE Bl s 12

Mr. Li Bo Company Secretary, Secretary to the Board
FEEE AAWE BFGWE

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times met the requirements of
the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent non-
executive Directors representing one-third of the Board with one of whom
possessing appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation of independence from
each of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules, and considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent from the Company.

BIOGRAPHIES OF THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The biographical details of Directors, Supervisors and senior management of
the Company are set out on page 35 to 44 of this annual report. There are no
relationships among the Directors, Supervisors and senior management of the
Company, including financial, business, family or other material relationships as
defined in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

28 August 2017
—tFNAZ+NH
28 August 2017

—E—+FN\AZ+/\H

28 August 2017

—+tF# A=+ N\H
31 October 2017
—tE+A=1-8

31 October 2017
—E—+tF+A=+—8
31 October 2017
—t¥+A=+—H
31 October 2017
—tF+A=+—H

e
2 1E

EHAN EETE-—EFSLETMBRANEH
ELCEBUFRTEE(HEEEAY
D) MERE—RBYIERTEEE
AEABEXERN ST REHMBERR
EHBZRTE -

S

ARFERESBIYUFATESRELTR
AFEIBREHNFERB I MRRE - IRA

BEYFATEETHABINARANA
+ .

EX EERCREEEME

ARRERE EENEREEZEHENFE
BN AFREISEAE o R LR BIK &
THARRAESE EEREREEBRIME
BEPE X% REFHEXEMEKRE
o
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EERRE

SERVICE CONTRACTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors and
Supervisors containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with
relevant laws and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and
provision on arbitration. The service contracts may be renewed in accordance with

the Articles of Association and applicable rules.

None of the Directors or Supervisors has entered into any service contract with
the Company during the Reporting Period which is not terminable within one year
nor may be terminated by the Company without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

DETERMINATION OF AND BASIS FOR
DETERMINATION OF THE REMUNERATION OF
THE DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration of the Directors, Supervisors and senior management is subject
to the recommendations of the Remuneration Committee and determined by the
Board.

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for recommending remuneration for
Directors, Supervisors and senior management to the Board with reference to,
among other factors, salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment

and responsibilities and employment conditions elsewhere in the Company.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of the emoluments of the Directors and Supervisors of the Company are
set out in note 38 to the Financial Statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

During the Reporting Period, there were no transaction, arrangement or contract
of significance subsisting in relation to the Group’s business in which the
Company or any of its subsidiaries was directly or indirectly a party and any
Director or Supervisor had a material interest.

CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in this annual report, at no time during the Reporting Period
had the Company or any of its subsidiaries entered into any contract of
significance with any controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries, nor had
any contract of significance been entered into for the services provided by any
controlling shareholder or any of its subsidiaries to the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS IN
COMPETING BUSINESS

During the Reporting Period, to the best knowledge of the Board, none of the
Directors and Supervisors and their respective associates has any business or
interest that competes or may compete with the business of the Group or have or
may have any conflict of interest with the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

The Company has not entered into any equity-linked agreement during the
Reporting Period.

INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS OF DIRECTORS,
SUPERVISORS AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES IN SHARES,
UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2019, the Directors, Supervisors and chief executives of
the Company had the following interest in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which were required, pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO or otherwise, to be entered in the register maintained thereunder, or
which were required, pursuant to the Model Code, to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange, or held interest in the Company as follows:

Directors’ Report
EERRE

EERESERBRFEXBNES

R|EHMAN EFERTANBEETRESR
BEEABMBANTAER I EGHAEE
EBRBRBEFRAIRBERRFREAEEE
FX 3R T BE 48 AR AR ] LA M 22 T 2R -

B 5= 5 #9175 58
A2 B3 R 25 B0 9 3 5K 4T 7 £ 1 R SR 4 1
-

BEE EENBSITHAER
%ﬁﬁ~$ﬁ@ﬁ§ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁ2ﬁ5§
KB

RZZE-—NF+ZA=+—8  KAAESE"
EERESITHASRA LR B SRHEREE
B(EERESRAE GO EXVE) D -
HEAROD REST  HEAEREBEIESFLRBEK
PISE 35215 IAE b7 RN A# AR R RREZ
BGXEENELEMAER  BRERE
SRABMERARABRBIMOERS  HEH
BEWARBERMT

Percentage
Percentage of of the total
the respective number of
Name of Director, type of Shares Shares in
Supervisor and chief in issue (%) issue (%)
executive Number of HE 1T HE#1T
EE EERES Capacity Type of Shares  Shares held Rl R 5 FEY
TRASHE &6 BROER BHEROEE H9 Lt 51(%) #9 Lt 5(%)
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
TREE EREBA AER  10,820,000(L) 1.30 0.91
Mr. Yu Long Beneficial owner H Shares 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
FiEEE EnEBA HAR 770,000(L) 0.21 0.06
Mr. Yang Fang Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
B 5L BB A NE K 1,755,000(L) 0.21 0.15
Mr. Huang Yi Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
BEHSE EREBA NE R 1,560,000(L) 0.19 0.13
Notes: B 5
(L) refers to long position (L RERGFE
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Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31
December 2019, none of the Directors, Supervisors and the chief executives of the
Company had any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or
debentures of the Company or its associated corporation which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES

To the Company’s best knowledge, as at 31 December 2019, the following
persons (other than Directors or Supervisors whose interests are disclosed in the
section headed “Interests and Short Positions of Directors, Supervisors and Chief
Executives in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures” above) had interests or
short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company
which were required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of
Part XV of the SFO, or had interests or short positions in 5% or more of the
respective type of share capital in issue of the Company which were recorded in
the register required to be kept by the Company under Section 336 of the SFO:

BEXREEIN  BARRMARM R_F
—hWFE+ZA=+—H #BEEF EFX
ARBAHZEBITHRABRARAREAEZE
BEMBLD BEAKROREST  EERIE
FEBHRRAEGRIEIRIGABARRABELS
MoEs AR RBBREFIANESTAEG
RAR R RFTEERS -

ggﬂﬁﬁm&ﬁqﬂ AY R 28 BOK

BARRMMARA R-ZE-AF+-_A=+—
B TOAL(ARANEERESRI - &K
E7REREXES EERESTBRAE
ERD - HERDREFZEE AR ]
WEI)RARBBRD  HERORESTHES
RIBECGES R B GBI EXVEEE2 R E30 &
BRAARNRRBRERAIORR HRIEEF K
B P 336 1% AT EE AR R E LM A8k
MESIAR  BEAGARBEMNEBITR
AR5%HIA LR IOXE ¢

Percentage Percentage
of the of the
respective total number

type of Shares of Shares

in issue (%) in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares HRIR G0 4R 17
RE BB BR 54 R 13 28 5l R4 &8 £ 51(%) H9 tE B1(%)
Yunnan Province Water' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
ErE K BEREAA  HE—EA W&k 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THEREER
Mr. Huang Yunjian' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
HEERAL ERBEAA  BE—BA A& 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THAFEER
Mr. Liu Xujun' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
FBESLL EREAA BE—FEA ANE Rk 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30

THERA#ER
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-

B

Percentage

of the
respective
type of Shares
in issue (%)

EEHE

Percentage
of the

total number
of Shares

in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares R4 1 w5
BRREB BREH B 17 Bl R & A £ B(%) H9 tE B1(%)
Wang Yong' Beneficial owner, Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
interests held jointly with
another person
S5 BRAEA HE—HBA A&’ 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
THAFEER
YMCI! Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
corporation, interests
held jointly with another
person
EREREE MR LB ER - E5R A& Rk 361,487,162 (L) 43.58 30.30
—BAATHRAFEER
Beijing OriginWater Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 286,650,000 (L) 34.56 24.02
JERE KR EREBA NE MK
China National Petroleum Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Corporation? corporation
FEARARAREERR QAR AR EE RS W&k 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
CNPC Capital Company Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Limited? corporation
AR B E ARk D REEE NS WER 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
ARRATE?
CNPC Capital Limited? Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
corporation
hEAREEEAFR NEEEE S W& W& 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
BERA
CNPC Assets Management Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
€0, i corporation
FHEEBEARAF? MR EE SR NERR 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Kunlun Trust Co. Ltd.? Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
corporation
EmEEEREEAR? AR A B R ANE Rk 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
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Percentage

of the
respective
type of Shares
in issue (%)

Percentage
of the

total number
of Shares

in issue (%)

Number of HE BT HE BT
Name of Shareholder Capacity Type of Shares Shares R4 1 Y
BRRERB BREH B 17 8 Bl R 8 A £ B(%) H9 tE B1(%)
Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Interests in controlled Domestic Shares 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
Equity Investment
Management Partnership
(Limited Partnership)?
ERERETREREERE N NEl o) A& Rk 124,754,169 (L) 15.04 10.46
aRbE (ARER)?
Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Beneficial owner Domestic Shares 124,754,169 15.04 10.46
Equity Investment Center
(Limited Partnership)?
BaEaRBRERESR D BEaREAA WA 124,754,169 15.04 10.46
(BRER)?
The National Council for Social ~ Beneficial owner H Shares 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
Security Fund of the PRC*
ZEMERELCESE EnEaA HA% 30,454,900 (L) 8.37 2.55
Caiyun International Beneficial owner H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
Investment Limited'
FEBBRREERA A BB A HA% 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
YMCI! Interests in controlled H Shares 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71
corporation, interests
held jointly with another
person
SRR EE MR BN ER - 5 HR% 8,449,000 (L) 2.32 0.71

—BANTHERAER

56 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {9 & R A " Annual Report 2019 F & i &



refers to long position

Yunnan Province Water is wholly owned by YMCI and is the beneficial owner of 358,757,162
Domestic Shares. Caiyun International Investment Limited is wholly owned by YMCI and is the
beneficial owner of 8,449,000 H Shares. YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic
Shares held by Yunnan Province Water and H Shares held by Caiyun International Investment
Limited pursuant to the SFO which representing approximately 31.01% of total issued Shares.
By virtue of the acting in concert agreement (the “Acting in Concert Agreement”) dated
24 July 2014 entered into between Yunnan Province Water, Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and
Wang Yong, each of Liu Xujun, Huang Yunjian and Wang Yong agreed to act in concert with
Yunnan Province Water in exercising their voting rights in the Shareholders’ meeting of the
Company. Each of Yunnan Province Water and YMCI is deemed to be interested in all the
Domestic Shares held by Huang Yunjian, Liu Xujin, Wang Yong and Yunnan Province Water
itself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Huang Yunjian is the beneficial owner of 1,950,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting
in Concert Agreement, Mr. Huang is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares
held by Yunnan Province Water, Liu Xujun, Wang Yong and Mr. Huang himself in aggregate
pursuant to the SFO.

Liu Xujun is the beneficial owner of 195,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by Yunnan
Province Water, Huang Yunjian, Wang Yong and himself in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Wang Yong is the beneficial owner of 585,000 Domestic Shares. By virtue of the Acting in
Concert Agreement, he is deemed to be interested in all the Domestic Shares held by himself,
Yunnan Province Water, Huang Yunjian and Liu Xujun in aggregate pursuant to the SFO.

Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan Equity Investment Management Partnership (Limited Partnership)
(“Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan”) is a general partner of Yantai Xinzhen Tianying Equity
Investment Center (Limited Partnership), holds 3.85% equity interests in Xinzhen Tianying and
is the beneficial owner of 124,754,169 Domestic Shares; Ningbo Kunlun Xinyuan is owned as
to 99% by Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd.; Kunlun Trust Co., Ltd. is owned as to 82.18% by CNPC
Assets Management Co., Ltd., which in turn is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Limited; CNPC
Capital Limited is wholly owned by CNPC Capital Company Limited, which in turn is owned
as to 77.35% by China National Petroleum Corporation.

Save as disclosed above, to the best knowledge of the Company, as at 31

December 2019, no person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and chief

executives) had informed the Company that he had interests or short positions in

the Shares or underlying Shares of equity derivatives of the Company which were

required to be notified to the Company under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the

SFO, or which were recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company

under Section 336 of the SFO, or held any interests or short positions in 5% or

more of the respective types of capital in issue of the Company.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the Company’s business
were entered into or existed during the year.

CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the Reporting Period, the Group conducted a number of non-exempt
continuing connected transactions. The table below shows the annual caps
and actual transaction value of such continuing connected transactions for the
Reporting Period:

BEEEHN

BREBREADIN EEENLLERDE
RAEMEA RS AR B LB E I RATHE
STRFETAAL -

HEBEBRERS

RBEMA - AREEEITSETERLHE
HHERD  TEARIZSHEMER SR
BEMROFE LREERR S EE :

Actual
transaction
Nature and Annual cap amount
Name, date and term of description of Basis for determining for 2019 in 2019
the agreement Connected Persons the transaction the consideration —E-NEFE —E-NF
HEEE - BHRER BEAL XS HERER EEEH# IR EBERXZEE
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR®T AR®T R
Membrane Ancillary Material Beijing OriginWater Yunnan Water On an arm'’s length 30,000 3,973
Procurement Master Agreement and its subsidiaries purchases membrane basis and on normal
ancillary materials commercial terms
from Beijing
OriginWater
RERREE R E L REKR TEABAEREKER AFRERREZEGER 30,000 3,973
REWBRA REBRE R
It was entered into on
22 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
RIB—tF+-A-+RFL
NRE_E-N\FE_T_TF
=FEERH LR o
Master Sale and Purchase Agreement YMCI and its subsidiaries ~ Yunnan Water provides On an arm'’s length 54,000 771
for Engineering Services Engineering Services basis and on normal
to YMCI commercial terms
TiRRIBAHH ERREE ERABRERRR  ATRAR—REEER 54,000 771
REMBERA SERHETRER

It was entered into on
29 December 2017 to set
the annual cap of transaction
for 3 years from 2018 to 2020.
RZE—+E+-A=+NBEx-
NRE_ZB-\FE_Z_TF
“EFERH LR -

58 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {9 & R A " Annual Report 2019 F & i &



Several related-party transactions as disclosed in Note 36 to the Financial
Statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS fall under the definition of
“continuing connected transaction” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Company has complied with the requirements in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Review by and confirmation of independent non-executive
Directors of the Company

Pursuant to Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the independent non-executive
Directors have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions and
confirmed that such transactions were:

(1) entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(2)  carried out in normal commercial terms or better;

(3) carried out according to the relevant transaction agreements, the terms of
which are fair and reasonable, and in the interests of the Shareholders as a

whole.
Auditor’s Letter

The auditor of the Company was engaged to report on the Group’s continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or
Reviews of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 "Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the
Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing the
conclusions in respect of the abovementioned continuing connected transactions
in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter
has been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

The Directors confirmed that the Company has complied with the requirements
under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with regard to the above continuing

connected transactions.

Directors’ Report
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COMPLIANCE WITH THE NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKING

Each of the Acting in Concert Parties signed a non-competition undertaking on
6 May 2015, in favor of the Company (the “Non-competition Undertaking”).
Pursuant to the Non-competition Undertaking, each of the Acting in Concert
Parties has irrevocably undertaken that it will not, and will procure that its
associates (except the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as
principal or agent, either on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf
of any person, firm or company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other
things, carry on, engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any
services to or otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with
the business of the Company from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
Each of the Acting in Concert Parties has also undertaken to the Company that, if
there is any new business opportunity in the Restricted Business, it shall within a
reasonable period of time refer such new business opportunities to our Company
on a pre-emptive basis.

The Acting in Concert Parties have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Undertaking for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Acting in Concert Parties regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Undertaking and had determined that the Acting in Concert Parties have fully
complied with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Undertaking during
the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
AGREEMENTS

The Undertaking Shareholders signed non-competition agreements (the “Non-
Competition Agreements”) on 6 May 2015, in favour of the Company. Pursuant
to the Non-competition Agreements, each of the Undertaking Shareholder has
irrevocably undertaken that it will not and will procure that its associates (except
the Company) will not, directly or indirectly, whether as principal or agent, either
on its own account or in conjunction with or on behalf of any person, firm or
company, whether inside or outside the PRC, among other things, carry on,
engage, participate or hold any right or interest in or render any services to or
otherwise be involved in any business which is in competition with the business
of the Company from time to time. Each of the Undertaking Shareholders has
also undertaken to the Company that, if there is any new business opportunity in
the Restricted Business, it shall within a reasonable period of time refer such new

business opportunities to our Company on a pre-emptive basis.
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The Undertaking Shareholders have confirmed in writing to the Company of their
compliance with the Non-competition Agreements for disclosure in this report
during the Reporting Period.

The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the information provided
by the Undertaking Shareholders regarding compliance with the Non-competition
Agreements and confirmed that all Undertaking Shareholders have fully complied
with and are not in breach of the Non-competition Agreements during the
Reporting Period.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Reporting Period the total amount of procurement from the five largest
suppliers of the Group accounted for 63.86% of the total amount of procurement
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The procurement from the largest supplier
accounted for 36.85% of the total amount of procurement for the year ended 31
December 2019.

During the Reporting Period, the total amount of sales for the year ended 31
December 2019 to the five largest customers of the Group accounted for 14.63%
of the total amount of revenue, and the total amount of sales to the largest
customer accounted for 10.47% of the total amount of revenue of the Group for
the year ended 31 December 2019.

The Directors and the Supervisors of the Company, and their respective close
associates, or any Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the Directors own
more than 5% of the issued Shares of the Company) do not hold any interest in
the top five customers and top five suppliers of the Group.

RETIREMENT AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SCHEME

Please refer to the Note 2.27 to the Financial Statements for detailed information

on the retirement and employee benefits scheme of the Company.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Company’s business review and the discussion and analysis of the Group’s
performance for the year and material factors relating to its results and financial
conditions are respectively set out in the chapter headed “General Manager's
Report” from page 13 to 16 and the chapter headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” from page 17 to 34 in this annual report. Such discussions

constitute an integral part of this annual report.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

As one of the leading integrated urban environmental treatment services providers
in the PRC, the Company is committed to operating its various business segments
in an environmentally-friendly manner. The Board believes that compliance
with the relevant environmental protection rules and regulations is crucial to
the long term development and success of the Group’s businesses. In order to
maintain a high standard of staff awareness of the relevant rules and regulations,
the Company offers periodical trainings to the key technical personnel at the
various water treatment plants and solid waste treatment plants. As a result
of the Company’'s commitment to environmental protection and through the
implementation of advanced technologies, the Group has achieved safe and

environmentally-friendly production during the Reporting Period.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Board believes the compliance with laws and regulations as the cornerstone
of a business and attaches considerable importance to it. To the best knowledge
of the Board, during the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with the
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the Company.
Furthermore, as the H Shares of the Company are listed on the Stock Exchange,
the Company shall be bound by the Listing Rules and the SFO.

RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's business, future results of operations and prospects could be affected
by certain risks and uncertainties. Please refer to the chapter headed “General
Manager's Report” from page 13 to 16 in this annual report for detail analysis of

the relevant risks and uncertainties.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

During the Reporting Period and up to the date of this annual report, the
Company has undertaken and maintained a collective liability insurance policy
covering, among others, all directors of the Company and its “associated
companies” (as defined under the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the laws
of Hong Kong)).

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ RIGHTS TO
ACQUIRE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the Reporting Period were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any
Director and Supervisor or their respective spouses or minor children, or were any
such rights exercised by them; or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a
party to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in any
other body corporate.
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DEBT AND PERPETUAL INSTRUMENTS ISSUANCE

During the Reporting Period, the Group issued the following debt financing
instruments for purposes of meeting the daily business operation needs, adjusting
the debt structure, replenishing working capital and project investment.

On 18 March 2019, the Company issued publicly the tranche 1 of short-term
financial bonds in the principal of RMB600,000,000, with a term of one year and
an interest rate of 4.18% per annum;

On 19 April 2019, the Company issued publicly the tranche 1 of ultra-short-term
financial bonds in the principal of RMB600,000,000, with a term of 180 days and
an interest rate of 4.60% per annum;

On 22 August 2019, the Company issued publicly the tranche 2 of short-term
financial bonds in the principal of RMB1,000,000,000, with a term of one year
and an interest rate of 4.99% per annum;

On 12 September 2019, the Company issued publicly the tranche 2 of ultra-short-
term financial bonds in the principal of RMB400,000,000, with a term of 180 days
and an interest rate of 4.98% per annum;

On 15 November 2019, the Company issued publicly the tranche 3 of ultra-short-
term financial bonds in the principal of RMB400,000,000, with a term of 180 days
and an interest rate of 5.40% per annum.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view to safeguarding the interest of shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the

interests of shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code. Details of the corporate governance
practice of the Company are set out in the Corporate Governance Report from
page 66 to 81 in this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and to the best
knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained the prescribed minimum
percentage of public float approved by the Stock Exchange and permitted under
the Listing Rules as at the date of this annual report.
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SIGNIFICANT LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group had not been involved in any
material litigation nor arbitration and the Directors are not aware of any litigation
or claims of material importance pending or threatened against the Group.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Details of the events after the Reporting Period of the Company are set out in the
chapter headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” from page 17 to 34 in
this annual report.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy (the “Dividend Policy”), pursuant
to which, before declaration or proposed distribution of dividends, the Board shall
consider the following factors:

—  the actual and expected financial performance of the Company;

—  the retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and the

subsidiaries of the Group;

—  the working capital requirements, capital expenditure requirements and
future expansion plans of the Group;

—  the liquidity of the Group;

—  the overall economic conditions, the business cycle of the Group's business
and the inherent or external factors that may affect the business, financial
performance and positioning of the Company; and

— Other factors that the Board considers relevant.

The distribution of dividends is also subject to any applicable laws and the Articles
of Association.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company has reviewed the annual results and the

Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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AUDITOR

PricewaterhouseCoopers was appointed as auditor of the Company for the
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance with HKFRS for the year
ended 31 December 2019. The Group’s consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2019 prepared in accordance with HKFRS have been
audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers. The Company has retained the services of
PricewaterhouseCoopers since 2013.

A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as the auditor of the Company
for the year of 2020 will be proposed at the AGM.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Summary of results of operation and the position of assets and liabilities of the
Group for the recent five financial years is set out on page 215 in this annual

report.

For and on behalf of the Board
Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited*

Yang Tao
Chairman

Kunming, the PRC
27 March 2020
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Corporate Governance Report

The Board is pleased to present this corporate governance report of the Company
for the Reporting Period.

The Group strives to maintain high standards of corporate governance to enhance
Shareholder value and safeguard Shareholders’ interests. The Company’s corporate
governance principles emphasize the importance of a quality Board, effective
internal control and accountability to the Shareholders.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
CODE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of corporate
governance with a view of safeguarding the interest of Shareholders and
enhancing corporate value. The Board believes that good corporate governance
is one of the factors leading to the success of the Company and balancing the
interests of shareholders, customers and employees.

During the Reporting Period, the Company has complied with all code provisions
as set out in the Corporate Governance Code.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Group has adopted the Model Code as the code of conduct regarding
securities transactions by the Directors and Supervisors. The Group has made
specific enquiries with all of its Directors and Supervisors, and all Directors and
Supervisors have confirmed that they have fully complied with the required

standard set out in the Model Code during the Reporting Period.
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TrEERME

BOARD OF DIRECTORS EEg
Board composition EEEMER
The Directors who held office during the Reporting Period are: RBEHAERNEES -
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Yu Long (Vice-chairman, General manager) TFRREAEE(BIZEFR  AAKHE)
Mr. Yang Fang (Deputy General manager) 1575 S (Bl AB A FE)
Non-executive Directors FHITES
Mr. Yang Tao (Chairman) BELE(EER)
Ms. Li Bo TRt
Mr. He Yuanping o] B8 52 4
Mr. Chen Yong BRE 54

(appointed on 13 June 2019) (R=ZF—NFNA+=HEZ)
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi AL & 5T &

(resigned on 13 June 2019)
Independent Non-executive Directors

(RZF—AFNHA+=HEEEL)
BYFHTES

Mr. Hu Song
Mr. Ma Shihao
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong

To the best knowledge of the Company, none of the Directors has any financial,
business, family or other material/relevant relationships with each other. In
particular, there is no such relationship between the Chairman and the general
manager. The roles of Chairman and the general manager are assumed by Mr.
Yang Tao and Mr. Yu Long, respectively. For details, please refer to the section
headed “Chairman and Chief Executive Officer” below.

The biographies of the Directors are set out in the section headed "Directors,
Supervisors and Senior Management” in this annual report.

The Company has entered into a service contract with each of the Directors
containing terms relating to, among other things, compliance with relevant laws
and regulations, observation of the Articles of Association and provision on
arbitration. Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Directors (including the
non-executive Directors and the independent non-executive Directors) shall serve a
term of three years from the date of he/she takes up the appointment.

During the Reporting Period, the Board at all times complied with the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive Directors (at least one-third of the Board) with at
least one independent non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management expertise.
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The Company has received written confirmation from each of the independent
non-executive Directors of his independence during the Reporting Period pursuant
to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all independent non-
executive Directors to be independent during the Reporting Period in accordance
with the independence guidelines as set out in the Listing Rules.

All Directors, including the non-executive Directors and the independent non-
executive Directors, have brought a wide spectrum of valuable business experience,
knowledge and professionalism to the Board for its efficient and effective
functioning.

Responsibilities of the Board

The Board’s fundamental responsibility is to exercise its best judgement and to
act in the best interests of the Company and its Shareholders. The Board oversees
management’s efforts to promote the Company’s success while operating in an
effective and responsible manner. The Board also formulates the Company’s overall
business strategies and monitors management'’s execution of such strategies.

By discharging its responsibilities, the Board has defined the business and
governance issues for which it needs to be responsible, and these matters reserved
for the Board have been separately defined, and are reviewed periodically, to
ensure that the Company maintains the proper level of corporate governance and
to ensure they are up to date. In this regard, the Board discharges, among others,
the following duties:

(1) to be responsible for convening general meetings, to propose at a general
meeting to pass the relevant matters and to report on its work to the
general meeting and to implement the resolutions of the general meetings;

(2)  to decide on the Company’s business plans and investment plans;

(3) to formulate the Company’s proposed annual preliminary and final financial
budgets and profit distribution plans and plans for recovery of losses;

(4)  to draw up plans for the material asset acquisition or disposal, repurchase
of shares of the Company or merger, division, dissolution and alteration of

corporate form of the Company;

(5)  to decide on the proposals for salaries, incentives and punishments of the
Company’s staff;

(6)  to decide on the establishment of special committees under the Board and
to appoint or remove its person-in-charge;
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(7)  to propose at general meetings for the appointment, renewal or remove of
accountants’ firm conducting auditing for the Company; and

(8) to review and supervise the policies and practices of the Company in
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements.

The Board delegates the responsibility of day-to-day business and operations to
the Company’s senior management, which includes its chief administration officers,
the general manager and deputy general manager. The senior management
meets regularly or as frequent as necessary to formulate policies and make
recommendations to the Board. The senior management administers, enforces,
interprets and supervises compliance with the internal rules and operational
procedures of the Company as well as its subsidiaries and conducts regular
reviews, recommends and advises on appropriate amendments to such rules and
procedures. The senior management reports to the Board on a regular basis and
communicates with the Board whenever required.

Corporate Governance Functions of the Board

The Board is responsible for formulating the corporate governance policies and
performing the corporate governance duties, which include, among others:

(1) to develop and review the policies and practices of the Company on

corporate governance and make recommendations;

(2)  to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of the Directors and Senior management;

(3) to review and monitor the policies and practices of the Company on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

(4)  to review and supervise the compliance of the Directors and employees of
the Company and its subsidiaries with the required standards as set out in
the Model Code; and

(5)  to review the compliance of the Company with relevant code provisions as
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and make its disclosure in the
corporate governance report prepared under the Listing Rules.
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Operation of the Board

Regular meetings of the Board shall be held at least four times a year. Meetings
shall be convened by the Chairman and notice of and documents for such
meetings shall be sent to all Directors and Supervisors 14 days before the meeting
is held. The Chairman, any Shareholder(s) representing more than one-tenth voting
rights, more than one-third of the Directors, or the Supervisory committee or more
than one-half of the independent non-executive Directors or the general manager
may propose the holding of an extraordinary meeting of the Board. The chairman
shall convene and preside over the extraordinary meeting of the Board within ten
days upon receipt of the proposal, and shall give written notice to all Directors
and Supervisors five days before the meeting is held. During the Reporting Period,
the Board held 62 Board meetings, one annual general meeting.

In case of urgency, the extraordinary Board meeting may be held upon approval
by the chairman, not subject to the requirement of meeting notice as set out
in the Articles of Association, provided that reasonable notice shall be given to
Directors, Supervisors and the general manager.

Nomination, Appointment and Removal of Directors

The Company has formulated formal and transparent procedures for the
appointment of new directors to the Board. The nominations of new directors are
considered first by the nomination committee and the remuneration committee,
then they will make recommendations to the Board for consideration. All
nominees of new directors must be approved by the Shareholders at the general
meeting of the Company. Dismissal of members of the Board must also obtain

approval of the shareholders at the general meeting of the Company.
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Attendance of Board Meetings and General Meetings

During the Reporting Period, the Board held 62 Board meetings. All Directors
duly performed their duties and attended the meetings in person or by electronic
communication means. They made informed decisions to safeguard the interests of
the Company and the Shareholders as a whole. The attendance of Directors is as

/\_J.LL/‘\-A—\
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follows: T
Attendance/
Number of
Board Meetings
BEEgHERES
Name of Director EEHE BITR™
Mr. Yang Tao HBE kA 62/62
Mr. Yu Long FREEE 62/62
Ms. Li Bo TR+ 62/62
Mr. He Yuanping fa] B8 % A& 62/62
Mr. Yang Fang % kA& 62/62
Mr. Chen Yong (appointed on 13 June 2019) BRBAE(RZ-_TE—hLEFAAT=-BEZT) 43/43
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (resigned on 13 June 2019) BHRAEEE(R=2ZE—-—NEAT=ZHET) 19/19
Mr. Hu Song AR % A& 62/62
Mr. Ma Shihao Bt xEE 62/62
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BfIiE 62/62

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held a meeting with the
independent non-executive Directors without the presence of executive Directors
during the year ended 31 December 2019.

During this Reporting Period, the Board considered and approved important
proposals, mainly including:

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2018 annual report of the
Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2018 profit distribution plan of
the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2018 financial statements and the
2019 financial budget report of the Company

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the re-appointment of PricewaterhouseCoopers
Zhong Tian LLP as the PRC auditor and PricewaterhouseCoopers as the
international auditor of the Company
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—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the changes in the composition of
the second session of the Board

—  Proposal in respect of the approval of the 2019 interim results report of the
Company

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, general meetings comprise annual general
meetings and extraordinary general meetings. Annual general meetings are held
once every year and within six months after the conclusion of the previous
financial year. During the Reporting Period, an annual general meetings were held.
The attendance of Directors is as follows:

— BRMERRRE_EEFENEE

FES

—  BRHLERRF019FFRHEEREN

}

2
S

BREB(RABER) BREAXEORBRRBEX
BNMERRERE -BRRAEFASTFAH
—RAER E—EAMBEREERENNE
HARST RBEHR - HAXEHET —
BREBFRE -BEREHHERMNT ¢

Attendance/

Attendance/ Number of

Number of annual extraordinary

general meeting general meeting

RRBFRE HERRAE

HERE HERE

Name of Director EEHR EEVE EEVS

Mr. Yang Tao BEEAE 1/1 0/0

Mr. Yu Long FiExEE 11 11

Ms. Li Bo g g 11 0/0

Mr. He Yuanping fa] B %2 A& 11 0/0

Mr. Yang Fang 57 EHE 11 0/0

Mr. Chen Yong R B 5 A& 1/1 0/0
(appointed on 13 June 2019) (RZZE—NFAAT=ZHEZM)

Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi At A& 11 0/0

(resigned on 13 June 2019) (R=ZZ—NFNA+=HBEE)

Mr. Hu Song AR & 1/1 0/0

Mr. Ma Shihao Btz A4 11 0/0

Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BTk 11 0/0
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Continuous Professional Development of Directors and
Supervisors

Directors shall from time to time understand their responsibilities as Directors of
the Company, and the mode of operation, business activities and development of
the Company.

All newly appointed Directors will receive formal, comprehensive and tailored
induction on the first occasion of his/her appointment, so as to ensure that newly
appointed Directors have appropriate understanding of the business and operations
of the Company and are fully aware of their responsibilities and obligations under
the Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements. During the Reporting
Period, Directors of the Company have participated in the training about
“Obligations of Directors of Listing Companies” conducted by the legal advisers.

Directors should participate in appropriate continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution
to the Board remains informed and relevant. The Company constantly arranges
internal seminars and provides reading materials on relevant topics to Directors,
and all Directors are encouraged to attend relevant training courses.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, apart from provision of general
introduction for newly appointed Directors, the Company also arranged the
Directors, Supervisors and relevant senior management members to participate in
a training seminar on “Duties of Directors of Companies Listed in Hong Kong”
on 13 June 2019 hosted by the Company’s legal adviser, with a view to raise
the level of standard operations among the Board and senior management of the

Company.

Mr. Yu Long, Ms. Li Bo, Mr. Chen Yong, Mr. Yang Fang, Mr. Liu Shuen Kong,
Mr. Hu Song, Mr Tan Hairui, Ms. Zhang Ling, Mr. Huang Yi, Ms. Tang Shuang,
Mr. Huang Yunjian, and Mr. Wang Yong have participated in relevant training
programs and have provided the relevant records to the Company. The Directors
develop and update their knowledge and skills through participation in the
training programs, which in turn ensure that they could make suitable contribution
to the Board.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles and duties of the chairman and the general manager are separate
and held by different persons and have been clearly defined in the Articles of
Association. Mr. Yang Tao serves as chairman in the second session of the Board,
and Mr. Yu Long serves as general manager. The chairman is elected by a majority
vote of all Directors, and the general manager is nominated and appointed by the
Board.
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The Chairman places great emphasis on the communication with the independent
non-executive Directors. The chairman holds meetings with the independent non-
executive Directors at least once every year, in respect of development strategy,
corporate governance, operational management, at which no executive Director is
present.

The Chairman encourages open and active discussions. Directors may speak freely
at the Board meetings and actively participate in the discussions of significant
decision making in the Board meetings.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board had delegated certain responsibilities to various committees. The
Company had established four Board committees, being the Nomination
Committee, the Remuneration Committee, Compliance Committee and the Audit
Committee.

(1). Nomination Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Nomination Committee include:
reviewing and monitoring the structure, size, composition and diversity
of members of the Board in light of the Company’s strategy; identifying
suitably qualified individuals and making recommendations to the Board to
be new Board members; reviewing and making recommendations to the
Board on individuals nominated to be Directors by Shareholders; assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors; and reviewing
and monitoring the implementation of diversity policy of Board members of
the Company. Terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Nomination
Committee consists of one non-executive Director, Mr. Yang Tao (as
chairman) and two independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Hu Song and
Mr. Ma Shihao.

During the Reporting Period, the Nomination Committee of the Company
had held one meeting, to discuss the nomination and appointment matters
of Directors of the second session of the Board of the Company, and review
the structure, size and composition of the Board and the independence of
the independent non-executive Directors. At such meeting, Mr. Chen Yong
was nominated as a candidate for an non-executive Director of the second
session of the Board.
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The attendance record of the committee members are as follows:

TEERRSE

ZEGZREHERENAT

Attendance/

Number of Meetings

HERE,

Name of Director EEHE BRI
Mr. Yang Tao BT E 11
Mr. Hu Song [ A 1/1
Mr. Ma Shihao Hit =4 11

The Company had adopted a board diversity policy with a view to
achieving the diversity of the Board. The Company recognizes and embraces
the benefits of having a diverse Board to enhance the quality of its
performance. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of
the Company’s business. All Board appointments will continue to be made
on a merit basis with due regard to the benefits of diversity of the Board

members.

The Nomination Committee will follow a range of diversified perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be made upon the possible contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

Remuneration Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee include,
among others, making recommendations to the Board on the policy and
structure of remuneration for all Directors and senior management members
and on the establishment of a formal and transparent procedure for
developing remuneration policy; review and approval of the remuneration
proposals from the management; making recommendations to the Board
on the remuneration packages of individual executive Directors and senior
management members; and to advise Shareholders of the Company with
respect to the service contracts of Directors that require Shareholders’
approval under the Listing Rules. Terms of reference of the Remuneration
Committee have been published on the website of the Company.

During the Reporting Period, the second session of the Remuneration
Committee consists of one executive Director, Mr. Yang Fang and two
independent non-executive Directors Mr. Hu Song (as chairman) and Mr. Ma
Shihao.
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(3).

(4).
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In 2019, the Remuneration Committee provided recommendations to
the Board on the remuneration and performance management policy
and framework for the Directors and senior management. Meanwhile, it
inspected and assessed the performance of duties by the Directors and
senior management and the annual performance. During the Reporting
Period, the Remuneration Committee of the Company had held the meeting

R-ZZT-NF FHZRESHNESM
BREEABNHMMAREERER
RENEZSRMUER R HE=R
MEREBABNBTREABIREE
BRETRE NG - RBREHAR K
REAFHEEGHBT—RER  £8

once. The attendance record of the committee members are as follows: ZHKEBZHFERLENT ¢
Attendance/
Number of Meetings
HERE
Name of Director BEEHSR BEAE
Mr. Hu Song AR 5 A& 11
Mr. Yang Fang e Dl 1/1
Mr. Ma Shihao HFit =4 11

Compliance Committee (). EREEE

The principal responsibilities of the Compliance Committee are to conduct
independent investigation and make decisions on compliance matters
with respect to our business operations by authorization from the Board.
The Company has established the Compliance Committee to ensure the
operation of any projects acquired and operated by us are in compliance
with the Group’s internal control standards and the relevant PRC laws and
regulations. During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee of the
Company had held the meeting once, all the members were attended.

During the Reporting Period, the Compliance Committee was consisted of
two executive Directors, Mr. Yu Long (as chairman) and Mr. Yang Fang,
three independent non-executive Directors, Liu Shuen Kong, Mr. Hu Song
and Mr. Ma Shihao, and one employee representative Supervisor, Mr. Huang
Yi.

Audit Committee

The principal responsibilities of the Audit Committee include reviewing and
supervising the financial reporting process, risk management and internal
control systems of the Company, including making recommendations on
appointing or changing the external auditor and its terms of engagement;
reviewing and monitoring external auditor’'s independence and audit
process objectively; monitor the truthfulness, accuracy and integrity of the
Company’s financial statements, annual report and accounts and half-
year report; oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system, risk
management and internal control system; and other matters that the Board
has authorized it to deal with. Terms of reference of the Audit Committee
have been published on the website of the Company.
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During the Reporting Period, the Audit Committee was consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Liu Shuen Kong (as chairman), Mr. Hu
Song and Mr. Ma Shihao.

In 2019, the Audit Committee of the Company had held three meetings,
to review the annual report 2018, interim report 2019 of the Company, to
propose the payment of dividends, to consider and approve the auditors
and fix their remuneration, and to discuss and make recommendations on
matters such as internal control and internal audit procedures. During the
Reporting Period, the attendance of the committee members are as follows:
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Attendance/

Number of Meetings

ke

Name of Director EEpE EEYS
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BRI E 3/3
Mr. Hu Song HAAA S A 3/3
Mr. Ma Shihao Bitt T A 3/3

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The Company has established a formal and transparent procedure for formulating
policies on remuneration of senior management of the Group. Details of the
remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2019 are
set out in Note 38 to the Financial Statements.

Pursuant to paragraph B.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the remuneration
paid to the senior management (excluding the Directors) by bands for the year
ended 31 December 2019 is set out below:

EERGREBAESNEMH

ARARERHFTAEEDREIRA SN FHMH
BEEVIEALAERENEF BE_F
—hF+RA=+-RIEFEREEHFID
FEHRN YRR E3S -

RIEREEARTAFEBISE  TRHEINEE

—hE+T-_A=t—HLEFEZRMHI
DN TREEEAR (TERBES)NHH

Number of individuals

Remuneration bands (RMB) FHER(ARYE) AE
Nil to 1,000,000 = % 1,000,0007T 4
1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001t 21,500,0007T 3
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the Financial
Statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019. The Directors
consider that the Group has adequate resources to continue in business for the
foreseeable future and are not aware of material uncertainties that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue its operation as a going

concern.

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules and other statutory and

regulatory requirements.

The management has provided to the Board such explanation and information
as are necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of the
Company'’s Financial Statements, which were put to the Board for approval.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

The Group believes that effective environmental, social and corporate governance
("ESG") management policies are crucial to the sustainability of the Group's
business. As such, the Group proactively enhances its understanding of the
latest laws and regulations and the best practices both within and outside the
PRC, which are relevant to the Group’s business, as well as its management
approach and management system. As a responsible corporation, the Group is
also committed and dedicated to maintaining the highest environmental and social
standards.

The Group has complied with all relevant laws and regulations in relation to its
business, including but not limited to health and safety, workplace conditions,
employment and the environment. The Group understands that a better future
depends on everyone’s participation and contribution. To that end, it has
encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and other stakeholders to participate
in environmental and social activities which benefit the community as a whole.
The Group also maintains strong relationships with its employees, has enhanced
cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality products and services

to its customers so as to ensure sustainable development.

An ESG report (the “ESG Report”) has been prepared with reference to Appendix
27 ESG Report Guide to the Listing Rules. The report presents our contributions
to sustainable development during the Reporting Period, and covers the major
environmental and social policies, environmental indicators of our Group, measures
adopted for reducing emissions by the Group and the relevant achievements of
the Group. The ESG Report is set out on page 216 to 232 in this annual report.

78 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {9 & R A " Annual Report 2019 F & i &

B E R EZF
EFERATREALNRABE_ZT-NF+=
A=+t BLEFENUBRREE -EF
ARAEEAEERRERNER RSk & E
e MmMAX T MEA RS MARF R
BRBEEEEBRRERRHNERTHEA
ESE

EXCHAEEREERFTHERE  AEHES
D RIBE ETARAREMEEREERTE
MABRRZEMBBEE2®REL TFE  BEWR
AT IR AR 2 REA o

EEECMEFSRULENEEREUR
REFGUHMRRTEZSHAENLT AR
BHRERELAMBFE -

BE -#HEREEER

FEBERR BHNRE HEROEEAR
EERRARAREXEBNIHEEREMH
EZ Al AEEBBINATHELAEE
i HEBIHRERRGEBOPEE
NI ZFERPERARZEERE - (FR—
REEAENEE  AEETRALCER ISR R
SHRERTEGRE -

AEBERETEREEGHMARBERZR
ERBRRBRETRMBERLE T
BRE EBEERRREITEAERRESR - &K
SEPARE  EXHFNARFTELS LS —
BEAZ2EAZ ATEREBAER AEH
HEER FFP HEBREMBROKEE
SEHHRERARANRRERLEED - 1t
S ARBEBEEREHFREMNER T NR
HEMERNAE UEMERFPREHER
EmERY  EUBRAUSEER -

KRARRELR ETRBMEE - +LESGRE
EomE—DRE HERERRE - WA
2NRFARBERNNEAHEERNERE
TRETAEBENIERERTEERR
B - PSR EX A0 R K BE B B 45 e A S AR R
AR -ZRE HEREARESHANEF
WE216%E232H



Corporate Governance Report

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk management and
internal control system to safeguard the Shareholder’'s investments and the
Company’s assets and reviewing the effectiveness of such system on an annual
basis with the support of the Audit Committee.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, has reviewed the effectiveness of the
internal audit system and the risk management and internal control system of the
Company and its subsidiaries, including the adequacy of resources, qualifications
and experience of staff in the aforementioned systems and of the Company's
accounting and financial reporting function, and the adequacy of their training
programmes and budget.

During the Reporting Period, the Board, through a review, considered that the risk
management and internal control system of the Company and its subsidiaries was
effective and adequate.

AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The statement of the auditor of the Company about its reporting responsibilities
for the Consolidated Financial Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s
Report” from page 82 to 89 of this annual report.

During the Reporting Period, the remuneration paid/payable to PricewaterhouseCoopers
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as the auditor of the Company is set out below: BAMAE SR K E R B

Amount

|

RMB’000

AR¥BT T

Fee for audit services Bt RE W E 7,250

Fee for non-audit services TR W B 200

Total fees BRMEE 7,450
The Group also appointed other external auditors in respect of audit services and AEEBRBRERAANITTEG T HMiZHEMRH

non-audit services during the Reporting Period.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS/INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company considers that effective communication with Shareholders is
essential to enhance investor relations and investors understanding of the Group's
business performance and strategies. The Company also recognizes the importance
of transparency and timely disclosure of corporate information, which enable
Shareholders and investors to make the best investment decisions. The general
meetings of the Company provide a forum for face-to-face communication
between the Board and the Shareholders.

SHAREHOLDER'S RIGHTS

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholder(s) holding more than 10%
(individually or together with others) of Shares of the Company shall be entitled
to request for an extraordinary general meeting or class meeting according to the
following procedures:

(1) Upon signing one or several written requests with the same content and
format, and stating the subject of the meeting, the aforesaid Shareholders
may request the Board to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting. Concerning the above request, the Board shall, in accordance with
the law, administrative regulations and the Articles of Association, reply with
a written opinion to state whether it agrees or disagrees to convene an
extraordinary general meeting within ten days upon receipt of the proposal.
Shares held by the above Shareholders who made the requests shall be
calculated as at the date of submitting the written request.

(2)  If the Board agrees to convene an extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within five days upon
making the Board decision. Any changes made to the original request in the

notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.

(3) If the Board disagrees to convene the extraordinary general meeting or class
meeting, or does not reply within 10 days upon receipt of the proposal,
Shareholders individually or together holding more than 10% of the Shares
are entitled to request the Supervisory Committee in writing to hold an

extraordinary general meeting or class meeting.

(4)  If the supervisory committee agrees to convene the extraordinary general
meeting or class meeting, it shall issue a notice of general meeting within
five days upon receiving the requests. Any changes made to the original

request in the notice shall be agreed by the relevant Shareholders.
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(5) I the supervisory committee does not issue the notice of general meeting
within the prescribed period, it shall be deemed as the Supervisory
Committee not convening and not holding the general meeting. Then
the Shareholders who individually or together hold more than 10% of
the Shares for more than 90 consecutive days may convene and hold the
meeting themselves. Before publicly announcing the resolution(s) of the
general meeting, the convening Shareholders shall hold no less than 10% of
the Shares. When the convening Shareholder issues the notice for general
meeting and publicly announces the resolution(s) of the general meeting,
they shall submit the relevant proof materials to the securities regulatory
authority where the Company is located and relevant stock exchange.

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, Shareholders who individually or together
holding more than 3% of the Shares may submit ad-hoc proposals in writing to
the convener of the general meeting ten days before the holding of the general
meeting. The convener shall issue a supplementary notice of the general meeting
within two days upon receipt of the proposals and announce the contents of the
ad-hoc proposals.

The Company sets out the following contact details for the Shareholders to
communicate with the Company:

Telephone number: +86 871 6720-9716

Company website: www.yunnanwater.cn

E-mail address: ir@yunnanwater.com.cn

For the avoidance of doubt, Shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly
signed written requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be) to
the above address and provide their full name, contact details and identification
in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’ information may be disclosed as
required by the law.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Li Bo has been the company secretary of the Company. Pursuant to Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules, the Company Secretary must take no less than 15 hours of
relevant professional training in each financial year. Mr. Li provided his training
records to the Company indicating more than 15 hours of relevant professional
development by attending courses on company secretary functions, accounting
system and Listing Rules, etc. offered by qualified professional training institutions.
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To the Shareholders of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(Incorporated in the People’s Republic of China with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited
(the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 90 to 214,
which comprise:

o the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2019;

o the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income for the year then ended,

o the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;
3 the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and
o The notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a

summary of significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and
of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of
Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

R K E

BERABREROBERAIARR
(RAFEARAMBEZMAZOARQAF)

=z
=

RMEFFHRAER
EEABREBRDERAT AT HENEA
ADREWBARDATRBERE) IR
REWENAAMEHUBHRE - BIF

« R-E-ASt-ASt-RHAHE
EREX

s BEZRALFEMAHBEZREMES
Wk

ar
op

s HBEZRALFEMNAHBZEPK:
s HERBLFEMNAHESRER R

s AMMBmMRME BREIEEEE
e -

EMHER

HMRR  ZECHUBHRRERBEEE S
BAERMEACEENBRELELADEEM S
BHMRMTEEER T -AF+-A=+—
BEHMatUERAREBEZB LFENA
HPBRALAGHRSRE A2 EREE
CRBERDIDE B EREZ BBEE -

ERNER

RN REEEEHBAEESO(EBEH
HRDETES © RVERSER T RBO R
R AR E [ RBED B A 6 T RRA
B AT I3 B R — S0 -

BPBEE BPMESHERABREETER
HEMSRMNEAZ R IEHER -

ByuM

REEEGTMASRON(EXSEE
R ATEREIFAD) BABINEE
B YERTTRFNEMEXEREME -

PricewaterhouseCoopers, 22/F, Prince’s Building, Central, Hong Kong

ARSI E it H BT » 75 P AROK P K T —

T: +852 2289 8888, F: +852 2810 9888, www.pwchk.com B : +852 2289 8888 * K : +852 2810 9888 * www.pwchk.com
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon,
and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

o Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model

3 Recoverability of trade receivables

Key Audit Matters

HMEESEE

BN BAM R S

FRESNTSE
MREFTFEIBRBERMOFTEHAE  REA
HAFEAHUBHRRNBEARA/EENS
R GULERRERMBFERAHM B R
REHAEBRBETREEMN - RATEHE
LEBERHEEBHER -
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e REBEFBHALELZFTHNEREERIN
JE W SR IB A U A B RE SR AN A &
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BEMNENOUEEREETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model

BRERFREZSTHEREERENBERRENRANERNGTE

Refer to note 2.12(a)(i) for the accounting policy of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model, note 4(a) for the critical accounting
estimates and judgements involved, and note 20 to the consolidated financial
statements for the receivables under service concession arrangements.
RGFFELERHTHEREEELNEMEAREFZL2HE M BIRKM
F2.12()i) EE G AT A B L2HM T4 URBRBHALELTHETH
J& 45 R IE 5 2 B KT FE20 -

The Group has entered into a number of service concession arrangements
with certain governmental authorities or their designators (the “Grantors”)
under Build-Operate-Transfer arrangements and Transfer-Operate-Transfer
arrangements in respect of its wastewater treatment, water supply and solid
waste treatment services. Certain of these service concession arrangements
are accounted for using “financial asset” model while others are accounted
for using “intangible asset” model. For the Group’s service concession
arrangements under financial asset model, the fair value of receivables and
revenue recognised are derived from valuation in which a number of critical
assumptions were used. As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of
receivables under service concession arrangements amounted to RMB5,078.3
million, which accounted for 13% of the Group’s total assets.

EEEREEHHFHBAIEEES(RTADBRRHISKERE - K& E RE
RERBH[ER — B —BRIZHFRBR —EE —BRIRH 7L 7T
ZHERBEFEELH EEEN—BOoMBEACECHERIcHEE]
BRZE  EHNBRBSTACETHRRIELEE IBUZE - EXKENRE
FHEe THeREEENNBUGFERKA - EAFERBESY - Z
EHEERTZEBRRR R_ZT-—NE+TA=+—8 EXERBET
BERETHREKERDN®EASARES0783BET  HEERLTEN13% °

With respect to valuation and revaluation for
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model undertaken during the
year, we assessed the methodologies used
by the external valuer and evaluated the
independence, competence and capabilities
of the external valuer.

R AFEHRBEFLCETHETHNSR
BEBIETORERER - RAFMETH
BB AT (4 M 2 A B 75 0% DA K o B BT ik B B 18
THREEBERS -

We selected samples of service concession
arrangements under financial asset model for
testing. The key procedures included:
BMERBETFECETETHNEREER
BEGET THENR - T2RFERE

1. Examining the agreements between
the Group and the Grantors.
REEEBEERTARZENGHL o
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Key Audit Matters

HMEERTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BMWESTNAEERRETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont’d)

BERFELRGTHNEREERENBERRANRANEINGTE (F)

Management has engaged an external valuer to perform the valuation for
those service concession arrangements under financial asset model at initial
recognition, and to perform revaluation when there were indicators that the
critical assumptions in the initial valuation have been significantly affected and
deviated subsequent to initial recognition. Such valuation and revaluation were
determined based on the forecasted cash flows to be derived from the related
projects which involved critical judgements and assumptions including but
not limited to the effective interest rate, forecasted unit price of service fee,
operating costs and profit margins of the operating services. With reference to
the valuation and revaluation performed by the external valuer, management
determined the amount of receivables and revenue to be recognised for service
concession arrangements under financial asset model during the year, and the
subsequent measurement of receivables and revenue.
ERBEFTHMTHMERBEALCLELH THNEREEREENIRER
RETHE BEFKRRAVERIABNEEMKANERRRXEZLEERE
- BIETEMR ZEAEREGIZERREFFLLELINRSREA -
s RMNEZHE REARBRAFETRNERTRE REENTEREE -
BERARELERBOHERN X  RIFINBTEMOEERER - EEERTE
REFHEIANREEFLELZHATHNEREERVUNEBRFAEREA - AR
HENEETELHE -

Testing the reasonableness and
appropriateness of critical assumptions
adopted in the cash flow forecasts,
mainly in relation to:

HBRSRBAMEANERBERNE
BUHRRELETAR FEBHE

— sending confirmations to the
Grantors to confirm the current
unit price and the future price
incremental rate;

MR FABERNE  ZERK
BENRREERARKRERAE
RIEE ¢

— assessing and analysing the
reasonableness of the operating
costs by comparing to the actual
costs of other existing service
concession arrangements of the
Group;
HEEEEEMBREANRBEE
AR SRR EBRKAR - &
L DITELRARN SN

— assessing and analysing the
profit margins of the operating
services by comparing with
the average profit margin of
the operating services of the
industry; and
HRTEELRBOHTHE
ME - FHEDITELRBH
EFEHEEM R

—  assessing the effective interest rate
by reference to our knowledge
of the industry and independent
research on external evidence.
HEERITENRBGIFFLEE
ZHTHEMEEREEMER
BB BT B R & H fhAh B 1
B A BEMITRER
EHE o
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Key Audit Matters

HMEERTEE

BN BAM R S

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BMWESTNAEERRETEE

Receivables and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements
under financial asset model (Cont’d)

BRERFTREZHE TN EREERLNERRENBAWER NG E(F)
We paid significant attention to this area due to the significance of receivables
and revenue recognised for service concession arrangements under financial
asset model and critical judgement involved in determining the critical
assumptions used in the valuation and revaluation.

HMEZFERIZEE TE2ARRBEHAEELH TN EREERLNEK
FIEFMPACHERBEN  UREEBEEVRIGEREENERTERNE
BRES L EKRFE -

We also challenged management’s assessment
of whether the subsequent measurement
of receivables and revenue recognised for
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model should be subject
to revaluation by comparing the actual
outcome, if available, with the critical
assumptions applied in the valuation in
previous years and assessing the potential
impact of reasonably possible changes in the
critical assumptions.

BMETITERRERRGEFRAE R
THERMEERLUSSHZEETEINA
B BMEEOIRF ST IR R
BHNERGERENAIFEGMEMEANE
FHETH L - WA AT S HRARRREE
BEFENERE -

Based on our audit work, we found the
critical assumptions used by management on
the service concession arrangements under
financial asset model to be consistent with
the evidence that we obtained.
BEHRMOESIE  ZMRAEEERR
BRTECETH TN EREEREAER
MARBRERMMENEAEER - -
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Key Audit Matters

HMEERTEE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matters
BMWESTNAEERRETEE

Recoverability of trade receivables

FE W AR X B T = U

Refer to note 4(b) for the critical accounting estimates and judgements
involved, and note 23 to the consolidated financial statements for trade
receivables.

HEER A MH B 2006 6 75 WK M A0 8 FE23

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of trade receivables amounted
to RMB5,577.2 million, which accounted for 14% of the Group’s total assets.
RZZFE-—NFF+ZA=+—H8 ESEEKEFNERSEAAREKS577.2
BET hEEHLEMN14% °

The identification of impairment events and the determination of the
impairment provision of trade receivables require the application of critical
judgement by management.

EEEHERETBRESHNENALREEENHREFEZERERAL -

Management recognised the impairment provisions based on expected credit
losses rather than only incurred credit losses. These evaluations focused on the
customers’ settlement history and current ability to pay, and took into account
information specific to the customers as well as pertaining to the economic
environment in which the customers operated.
EREENEHEEBEMIEERELANCEESERRRRBEREE - 25T
HEHEIEFNELEERBEREANXNEN T EEEFPFE S RAKE
FEORBERENSEER -

We paid significant attention to this area because management made critical
judgements over both timing of recognition of impairment and the estimation
of the amount of any such impairment.
BMZFEBIZAREEHNEEE Y EKRFONEEH R R RRE
SREMMEEED TERAL -

We obtained an understanding of
management’s processes and controls over
credit risk management. This included the
identification of which receivables were
impaired and estimation of the impairment
provisions. We determined that we could rely
on these controls for the purposes of our
audit.

M HEREHREWNERRERRRE R
EVRIEM I ZEHET T - ZSERENA
HEHFECEHEWNRFRESENZ
P EORES NG - MR R/AEFST TIE
i = Al KRB 2% 5 N EBAE ) o

In addition, we selected samples to inquire
management for the details of their
evaluations and tested the underlying
information referenced by management,
which included comparing with external
evidence obtained from our independent
research on public available information of
the customers, performing ageing analysis,
examining the historical transactions and
settlement records of the customers, sending
confirmations to the customers and testing
of the subsequent settlements.

Uboh - FEPIEUEB R R - mEE R
iR T BR $ 52 5 AR SR AT [B] 48 AT Al &Y
BERERE  KRMEBNARIIELRE : &6
BPRIIBERNEREREFORHE
SrEEEARRE  RTREEERERRS
7 BEREEREFPNELR S REER
8 mRMERE P R R A K BRI
RATRR -

Based on the above, we found that the
judgement applied by management on their
assessment of the recoverability of trade
receivables was consistent with the evidence
we obtained.

BT TE  RMRAEEREHEKE
SR AT B R A PR AR B B - R
IS B et B — 2 -
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other

information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible
for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as
applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s

financial reporting process.

BN BAM R S
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We
report our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment
and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

88

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to express
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings,
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have
complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law
or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Pang Ho Yin.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and

Other Comprehensive Income

£ PR 25 B bR & W 3

=

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-B=1+—BLEE

2019 2018
—®-nE -T2 N\F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 51 AR¥T R AREFT
Revenue I = 6,538,024 6,255,628
Cost of sales 85 B PR AR (4,705,711) (4,757,619)
Gross profit EF 1,832,313 1,498,009
Other income EHAb g A 6 124,024 144,668
Other (losses)/gains — net Hih(EE) IS F58 7 (1,425) 10,541
Selling expenses HER X 8 (43,398) (43,884)
Administrative expenses THAX 8 (424,196) (395,120)
Impairment losses on financial assets CRMEEREEIE (48,526) (25,510)
Operating profit RERR 1,438,792 1,188,704
Finance income B E WA 10 66,255 99,616
Finance expenses MR X 10 (880,422) (678,128)
Finance costs — net Bl & B AN F R 10 (814,167) (578,512)
Share of profit of investments accounted for using AR E AR EHIZE
the equity method i 7 16 52,924 34,034
Profit before income tax 8B ANGE R 677,549 644,226
Income tax expenses FBBiAx 11 (123,741) (147,511)
Profit for the year F R R 553,808 496,715
Other comprehensive income Hii4r & Wz
Items that may be reclassified to profit or loss A e B X2 B H91H B
— Exchange differences on translation of foreign - BMEEINEBR
operations VE 5 = %8 18,215 (172,741)
Total comprehensive income for the year, RREFAGEWRELE
net of tax 572,023 323,974
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

A BHE R R A IS

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-B=1+—BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF AN S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 51 AR TR ARBTT
Profit attributable to: RTALTEMAER :
— Ordinary shareholders of the Company - ARAEBRARR 398,153 397,753
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - XAEBERITEFEEA 119,800 83,194
— Non-controlling interests - JEERREE 35,855 15,768
553,808 496,715
Total comprehensive income attributable to: UTFTATEEGERZHEE
- Ordinary shareholders of the Company - RARIEBRARR 416,368 225,012
— Holders of perpetual capital instruments - KABRARIEAHAFA 119,800 83,194
— Non-controlling interests - EERER 35,855 15,768
572,023 323,974
Earnings per share for profit attributable to AAAEBRRBRR
ordinary shareholders of the Company EBhERNEREF
(expressed in RMB per share) (UBRAR®TRT)
— Basic and diluted - BEARREES 12 0.334 0.333

The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive L& prHE R R HE MRS I & FE 5148 B T
income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes. FOrHE -
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ZE-)N\#F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 51 AR® T ARETF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMERE 17 3,177,451 2,622,288
Investment properties KEYE 18 24,927 25,779
Right-of-use assets FTREEE 19 270,683 —
Land use rights + {55 A AE — 182,831
Receivables under service concession arrangements ARG F & L L HE T &)
& U R I8 20 5,026,423 4,165,248
Contract assets ERHEE 5 6,191,854 4,277,955
Amounts due from customers for contract work EHTREWREFRIE 4,401 =
Intangible assets mEE 21 11,445,273 10,153,155
Investments accounted for using the equity AEEREARNRE
method 16 1,096,017 661,042
Financial asset at fair value through other IAFEFERBEZFHFA
comprehensive income Hirira e mEE 4,675 4,675
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H W RIE 23 43,999 13,771
Prepayments T8 IE 23 1,364,449 942,875
Deferred income tax assets RIEMSHEE 32 514,623 314,132
29,164,775 23,363,751
Current assets RENEE
Receivables under service concession arrangements R &L L2 HE T B
JE W 3R 1A 20 51,892 57,852
Inventories FE 22 103,485 102,089
Amounts due from customers for contract work EHITEREREPKIE 5,120 —
Contract assets EBRHEE 5 521,058 338,197
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H e W RIE 23 7,126,742 5,763,860
Prepayments T8 R IE 23 234,934 695,498
Restricted cash PR 3R & 24 192,691 123,043
Cash and cash equivalents BeMBEEEEY 25 2,468,435 2,214,352
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss A RQF{Ezt 2B EZ B A
BEafemEE = 4,320
Derivative financial instruments NMESHRITE — 10,884
10,704,357 9,310,095
Total assets REE 39,869,132 32,673,846
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 51 AR® T AR T
EQUITY i
Equity attributable to ordinary shareholders ERAREBRBRREGES
of the Company
Share capital & A 26 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves H it 27 2,280,588 2,197,015
Retained earnings R AT 1,275,515 1,166,594
4,749,316 4,556,822
Perpetual capital instruments KXKABARTA 28 2,610,000 1,200,000
Non-controlling interests JEERR = 1,186,669 1,177,450
Total equity 48 R 35 8,545,985 6,934,272
LIABILITIES a8f&
Non-current liabilities FRBEEF
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 39,010 —
Borrowings RN 29 15,199,525 11,178,992
Trade and other payables B 5 K& H et 318 30 3,292,499 3,257,835
Deferred income iR FE Y &= 31 701,720 692,361
Deferred income tax liabilities BLEMSHAE 32 1,168,983 1,048,241
Provision B 33 359,123 349,734
20,760,860 16,527,163
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEBER

As at 31 December

R+t=—H=+—8H

2019 2018
—2-nF  -T-N\%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR®T R AREFT

Current liabilities REAE
Contract liabilities =X ON=Ki 5 106,676 119,409
Lease liabilities HEAE 19 11,600 —
Borrowings EE 29 6,419,405 5,755,534
Trade and other payables Z 5 K& H th FE 518 30 3,675,541 3,017,220
Current income tax liabilities BUER P15 % & 15 32 349,065 317,748
Derivative financial instruments MEERIA — 2,500
10,562,287 9,212,411
Total liabilities wWaE 31,323,147 25,739,574
Total equity and liabilities EaNEEAE 39,869,132 32,673,846
The above consolidated balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the LA G EES BRELARMME—HRE -

accompanying notes.

The financial statements on pages 90 to 214 were approved by the Board of FIEERAEMTHREERN -F =

Directors of the Company on 27 March 2020 and were signed on its behalf. FEZA-TLEEARRIESSHE
Wl THALTRKREER -

Director Director

B=% =
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Consolidated Statement of Changes n Equity

Attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the Company

ARRERRRRENS
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other  Retained instruments controlling Total
capital reserves  earnings Total XAEZX  interests equity
BA  HttfEE REEAN #it TARBA FERER BER

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AR®TR ARMTRT AR®TR ARMTRT AR%TR ARMTR

(note 26)  (note 27) (note 28)
(HrsE26)  (ByaE27) (By=E28)
Balance at 1 January 2019 -hE
—-A-AMEeH 1,193,213 2,197,015 1,166,594 4,556,822 1,200,000 1,177,450 6,934,272
Total comprehensive income FRGEUBAE
for the year
Profit for the year F s A — — 398,153 398,153 119,800 35,855 553,808
Currency translation differences ERAEES — 18,215 — 18,215 — — 18,215
— 18,215 398,153 416,368 119,800 35,855 572,023
Transactions with owners in BEBANEERA
their capacity as owners FRETHRS
Partial disposal of a subsidiary BH L EWE R
without change of control TR BRI = (5,986) = (5,986) = 5,986 =
Capital contribution by FERERNE
non-controlling interests — — — — — 30,099 30,099
Acquisition of additional interests U BB Fff B 22 A1 #Y
in subsidiaries (note 15) BOME S (F15) — (38,906) = (38,906) = (46,659) (85,565)
Issuance of perpetual capital BITKABARIA
instruments — — — — 1,410,000 — 1,410,000
Transfer to statutory reserve BEEEHR = 110,250  (110,250) = = = =
Dividends for the year ended HE-Z-N\F
31 December 2018 TZRA=T-RLEEE
fi% & — — (178,982) (178,982) - - (178,982)
Distribution to holders of perpetual DR FXKAEALA
capital instruments BEA - - — —  (119,800) —  (119,800)

Distribution to non-controlling
interests

LUISIERLIE: £
— = = - —  (16,062)  (16,062)

= 65,358 (289,232)  (223,874) 1,290,200 (26,636) 1,039,690

Balance at 31 December 2019

R=Z-h%
TZA=+-HBM&e 1,193,213 2,280,588 1,275,515 4,749,316 2,610,000 1,186,669 8,545,985
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
& GBS BB %

Attributable to ordinary shareholders

of the Company
ARAERRBREEMN
Holders of
perpetual
capital Non-
Share Other Retained instruments  controlling Total
capital reserves earnings Total  KAER interests equity
A HftEm REAF @it IARAA FERER B
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARETn ARBTT ARETR ARBTE ARBTR ARE®Tn
(note 26) (note 27) (note 28)
(igt2e)  (BiE27) (Bt 5£28)
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F
—A-AMEeH 1,193,213 2,331,308 1,012,044 4,536,565 1,200,000 949,384 6,685,949
Total comprehensive income FRiGANERE
for the year
Profit for the year ENET = = 397,753 397,753 83,194 15,768 496,715
Currency translation differences ERHBEZE = (172,741) = (172,741) = — (172,741)
— (172,741) 397,753 225,012 83,194 15,768 323,974
Transactions with owners in BEBANEERA
their capacity as owners FRETHRS
Acquisition of subsidiaries WM B AR — — = = = 189,018 189,018
Capital contribution by FERERLE
non-controlling interests — — — — — 199,984 199,984
Acquisition of additional interests BT B 2 Bl
in subsidiaries (note 15) FoMER (HRE15) — (49,637) = (49,637) —  (152204)  (201,841)
Transfer to statutory reserve BEEERER = 88,085 (88,085) — — — —
Dividends for the year ended BE-Z—+t#
31 December 2017 TZRA=+-BLEEH
[ 85) — — (155,118) (155,118) — — (155,118)
Distribution to holders of perpetual ~ 2 FRABATAEE A
capital instruments = == = = (83,194) = (83,194)
Distribution to non-controlling AT I ERE R
interests = = = = = (24,500) (24,500)
— 38,448 (243,203) (204,755) (83,194) 212,298 (75,651)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-Z-N\f
+-A=+-AM&H 1193213 2,197,015 1,166,594 4,556,822 1,200,000 1,177,450 6,934,272

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be read in

conjunction with the accompanying notes.

bt & BF 4 o B B 5K FE SLAR R P R — BF B
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
EHEBEERER

Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=1+—BLEE

2019 2018
—®-nF  -T-N\%F
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Bt 5 AR¥T R AREFT
Cash flows from operating activities RETBNEERE
Cash used in operations KEFMARS 34(a) (3,028,682) (2,438,495)
Income tax paid BT EH (168,673) (103,338)
Interest paid B 5 & (1,051,848) (742,802)
Net cash outflow from operating activities KEEHRE ML FE (4,249,203) (3,284,635)
Cash flows from investing activities RETEBNEERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment, Y% BELEE FHES
right-of-use assets, land use rights and B T AR R H A
other intangible assets BEMNK (804,316) (312,247)
Investments in a joint venture and associates MeEE AT REEARIKE (380,000) —
Prepayments for acquisition of subsidiaries W B B B8 2 B) O TR A 5RIB (150,000) (49,000)
Refund of prepayments for acquisition of Uk B B B 2 R TS SRR 3K
subsidiaries 118,248 149,800
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries, I EEKI B A R AR
net of cash acquired HBREREHNE (105,428) (277,705)
Proceeds from disposal of a subsidiary & B R A ATS R IE 15,249 —
Others — net Efth — F8 25,093 17,853
Net cash outflow from investing activities REETBHRS AL FHE (1,281,154) (471,293)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

afRETRER

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-B=1+—BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF AN S
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
Pt 51 AR TR ARBTT
Cash flows from financing activities MEIBNESRE
Proceeds from borrowings EEViREs e 13,053,304 9,576,917
Repayments of borrowings BEME R (8,353,211) (6,454,737)
Proceeds from issuance of perpetual capital BT ABART BEFTSRIE
instruments 1,410,000 —
Distributions paid to holders of perpetual FKAEARTEFEFAZAH
capital instruments 7K (119,800) (84,001)
Dividends paid EfRE (178,982) (155,118)
Dividends paid to the non-controlling interests MR ERZFORE (3.622) (24,500)
Capital injections by non-controlling interests R EETA 30,099 199,984
Payments for acquisition of additional interests L B B /BB A B ) BB HME 2 BY
in subsidiaries NEN (27,375) —
Other — net Hfh— 58 (32,827) —
Net cash inflow from financing activities MEEHEERAZFE 5,777.586 3,058,545
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and REeRBELEEWEM
cash equivalents (R2) 28 247,229 (697,383)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning VREEFVNEES R
of the financial year BEEED 2,214,352 2,896,927
Exchange gains on cash and RekBReEEYER KRS
cash equivalents 6,854 14,808
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESREEZEEYD 2,468,435 2,214,352
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in conjunction tiia RS REREEBBMHME—HRIE -

with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. GENERAL INFORMATION AND BASIS OF
PRESENTATION

1.1 General information

Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in Yunnan Province of the People’s Republic of China
(the “PRC"”) on 21 June 2011. On 22 July 2014, the Company was
converted from a limited liability company into a joint stock limited
liability company with registered capital of RMB787,880,000. The
Company’s H shares were listed on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited on 27 May 2015 with the total share
capital subsequently increased to RMB1,193,213,000.

The Company is an investment holding company. The Company and
its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the development, design, construction, operation and maintenance
of municipal water supply, wastewater treatment and solid waste
treatment facilities. The address of its registered office is Yunnan
Water 2089 Haiyuan North Road, Gaoxin District, Kunming, Yunnan
Province, the PRC.

These financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB"), unless
otherwise stated.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements. These policies have
been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.
The financial statements are for the Group consisting of the Company and
its subsidiaries.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance Cap. 622. The consolidated
financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial assets and liabilities (including
derivative instruments) measured at fair value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

2.

100

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group'’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are

depicted in note 4.

(a) New Standards, amendments to standards and
interpretations adopted by the Group

The Group has applied the following new standards,
amendments to standards and interpretations for the first time

for their annual reporting period commencing 1 January 2019.

Amendments to HKFRS 9

BRI HME LR EIR (EFTA)

Amendments to HKAS 19

ER G ERE 1R (BITR)

HKFRS 16
BAEM B R EEL165%
HK (IFRIC) 23

ER(ERMBREREZE|)F23

HKAS 28 (Amendment)

EB LRI E285 (BT A)

Improvements to HKFRSs

B8 B 75 R 2RI e B

The impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 and its new
accounting policies are disclosed in note 2.2 below. The
other standards, amendments to standards and interpretations
adopted by the Group did not have any impact on the
Group’s accounting policies and did not require retrospective

adjustments.

2.1 RBEXE(E)
MEmEDERE BN B MEE
Bl R ARAETEIER
BREH  MEREIEERER
AEEEHIHEMNBRERELH
B o 5 R E A2 T S
HOBE - SRR R AR A Gt
BREMEBEAGNBE  #R
GEZR

(a) FEBEHRAAIHET
AEEET BRI R E R %
=
AREE-T-NF—A—
FI B #4 #) 47 1 4R % B9 B 0
AT SRR ET R - RIS ET
REBR -

Prepayment features with negative compensation
EREBHEZIRMENRENT

Plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
SEEE  HBREE

Leases

HE

Uncertainty over income tax treatments
FriSHi BRI & N1 E 1t

Long-term interests in associates and joint ventures
REEERAIEECERAES

Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 cycle
EEMBHRELEN T -—RAFE_T—+FEHENFREIE

RnEBY B HREELF
6 M EI BRI BRNF
EWENTXME22- K
SERAAE M EAERTA
RaBH KBNS HE
WEERFE - WBEED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
(b) New Standards and amendments to standards
not yet adopted by the Group
Certain new standards and amendments to standards have
been published that are not mandatory for 31 December 2019
reporting periods and have not been early adopted by the
Group.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

TEETREREE(A)

mEEE(HE)

(b) 3% [ 5 A 1R 44 49 F7
FTERRAZIEETER
R-FB—AF+=A=+—
A& SR A S BRI
GESSERY VR bR
A R RS T o

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 (Amendments)
ERGHEREIRR

BB G ERIEH (BT A)
HKFRS 3 (Amendments)
BEEMBREELEIREFTA)
Conceptual Framework (Revised)
PSR AE 2R (K18 ET)

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (Amendments)

BRMBREEAE105% &

Definition of Material’

BENESR

Definition of a Business'

(BHESR

Revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting’

KETHBBRERIER

Sale or contribution of assets between an investor and
its associate or joint venture?

REERABMECERGZRRZANEELEITE?

BB G ERIFE285 (EFTA)

1. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

2. Effective date to be determined.

The impact of new standards and amendments to standards
that issued but not effective is still under assessment by the
Group.

2.2 Changes in accounting policies
This note explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 Leases
on the Group’s financial statements that have been applied from 1
January 2019.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 from its mandatory adoption date
of 1 January 2019. The Group has applied the simplified transition
approach and has not restated comparative amounts for the 2018
reporting period. The reclassifications and the adjustments arising
from the new leasing rules are therefore recognised in the opening
balance sheet on 1 January 2019.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS
16

(i) No significant impact on the Group’s profit for 2019 as a
result of adoption of HKFRS 16.

(i)  The change in accounting policy affected the following
items in the consolidated balance sheet on 1 January
2019:

o right-of-use assets — increase by RMB209,804,000,
which were related to leases of land use rights,
offices and warehouses;

o land use rights — decrease by RMB182,831,000,
which were related to leases of land use rights and
reclassified to right-of-use assets; and

3 lease liabilities — increase by RMB26,973,000,
which were related to leases of office and

warehouses as details below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(a) Adjustments recognised on adoption of HKFRS

22 SRS (F)
(a) FRWEBYKIREE

16 (Cont’d)

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities
in relation to leases of offices and warehouses which had
previously been classified as “operating leases” under the
principles of HKAS 17 Leases. These liabilities were measured at
the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted
using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate as of 1 January
2019.

RIE 1655 & 18 28 49 7
2 (&)
REMEBHBREEAE
165 %% - AR BB
ERAZREEEHNRE
B R E 17 R
ESEAIEERENAMN
WEEAE - ZBZREDHE
BTRENRORETE -

WHRARZZE—AE—A—
B &Y AGE AR B 18 A R Bh

g8 .
RMB’000
AR TR
Operating lease commitments disclosed as RZZBE—NF+_A=+—HBEED
at 31 December 2018 e E A 32,733
Discounted using the lessee’s incremental KRARBEXERBHHNFABAESER
borrowing rate of the date of initial application F & B3 29,934
Less: short-term leases and low-value leases B REREIERARAIOEHEER
recognised on a straight-line basis as expense KEEHEE (2,961)
Lease liability recognised as at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NEF-A-BHERNEEEE 26,973
Of which are: HE R
Current lease liabilities nBHEEE R 11,154
Non-current lease liabilities ERBEEEE 15,819
26,973

Under the simplified transition approach, the associated right-
of-use assets were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities on adoption, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid
or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in
the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2018. There
were no onerous lease contracts that would have required
an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the date of initial

application.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(b) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the
following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

o the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases

with reasonably similar characteristics

o reliance on previous assessments on whether leases are
onerous
o the accounting for operating leases with a remaining

lease term of less than 12 months as at 1 January 2019
as short-term leases

. the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement
of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application,

and

o the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where
the contract contains options to extend or terminate the
lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract
is, or contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead,
for contracts entered into before the transition date the Group
relied on its assessment made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)
4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 BREANRREZSTER
Hﬁ E /\IJ

2.3.1 Subsidiaries 23. 188 42 &

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to
affect those returns through its power to direct the activities
of the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the
date on which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for
business combinations by the Group is depicted in note 2.4.

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains
on transactions between Group companies are eliminated.
Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction
provides evidence of an impairment of the transferred asset.
Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been changed where
necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by
the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of subsidiaries
are shown separately in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in

equity and consolidated balance sheet respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 REARERERETERE
(Cont’d) IR A (&)
2.3.2 Associates 232 E R A
BENRIEA AR EEE

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant

influence but not control or joint control. This is generally the
case where the Group holds between 20% and 50% of the
voting rights. Investments in associates are accounted for using

WHERTE B ET
WS HEIESIME B —AR
BH20%E50% R EHNE

the equity method of accounting, after initially being recognised B o RPN ATERE -
at cost. REEE R BRI E TR A
HEETEAR ©

2.3.3 Joint arrangements 23388 ZH
Under HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements investments in joint $E%J§%§§%Eﬁﬁ%§ﬁi2§ﬁu%
arrangements are classified as either joint operations or joint MKEELZHE REER
ventures. The classification depends on the contractual rights BRI E D AE EEKK

BERAF - DBRTFERE
TREKNEFNREEMIES
BRFNERRE -

and obligations of each investor, rather than the legal structure
of the joint arrangement.

Interests in joint ventures are accounted for using the REERANER IR A O
equity method, after initially being recognised at cost in the BEBBERYVPENAER
consolidated balance sheet. B RAEREAR -
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting

23 KAEAREERRTER

(Cont’d) IR B (&)
2.3.4 Equity method 234 m 5L

Under the equity method of accounting, the investments are
initially recognised at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognise
the Group's share of the post-acquisition profits or losses of the
investee in profit or loss, and the Group’s share of movements
in other comprehensive income of the investee in other
comprehensive income. Dividends received or receivable from
associates and joint ventures are recognised as a reduction in
the carrying amount of the investment.

When the Group’s share of losses in an equity-accounted
investment equals or exceeds its interest in the entity, including
any other unsecured long-term receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred obligations or
made payments on behalf of the other entity.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its
associates and joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of
the Group’s interest in these entities. Unrealised losses are
also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of an
impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
equity accounted investees have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

The carrying amount of equity-accounted investments is tested
for impairment in accordance with the policy depicted in note
2.14.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHTHEMEH)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3 Principles of consolidation and equity accounting 23 BREANRREZSTER
(Cont’d) IR B (4&)
2.3.5 Changes in ownership interests 235 EREBEZEE

108

The Group treats transactions with non-controlling interests that
do not result in a loss of control as transactions with equity
owners of the Group. A change in ownership interest results in
an adjustment between the carrying amounts of the controlling
and non-controlling interests to reflect their relative interests
in the subsidiary. Any difference between the amount of the
adjustment to non-controlling interests and any consideration
paid or received is recognised in a separate reserve within
equity attributable to owners of the Company.

When the Group ceases to consolidate or equity account
for an investment because of a loss of control, joint control
or significant influence, any retained interest in the entity
is remeasured to its fair value with the change in carrying
amount recognised in profit or loss. This fair value becomes
the initial carrying amount for the purposes of subsequently
accounting for the retained interest as an associate, joint
venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that
entity are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income are
reclassified to profit or loss or transferred to another category
of equity as specified/permitted by applicable HKFRSs.

If the ownership interest in a joint venture or an associate is
reduced but joint control or significant influence is retained,
only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised
in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Business combinations not under common control

The acquisition method of accounting is used to account for all
business combinations, regardless of whether equity instruments
or other assets are acquired. The consideration transferred for the
acquisition of a subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred

ii. liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquired
business

iii.  equity interests issued by the Group

iv.  fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a contingent

consideration arrangement, and

V. fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities
assumed in a business combination are, with limited exceptions,
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity
on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the acquired entity’s
net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.4 Business combinations not under common control

(Cont’d)

The excess of the

consideration transferred;

ii. amount of any non-controlling interest in the acquired entity,

and

iii. acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest in the

acquired entity.

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired is recorded
as goodwill. If those amounts are less than the fair value of the

net identifiable assets of the business acquired, the difference is

recognised directly in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration is deferred,
the amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present
value as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the
entity’s incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a
similar borrowing could be obtained from an independent financier
under comparable terms and conditions. Contingent consideration is
classified either as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified
as a financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair value with

changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the acquisition date
carrying value of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree is remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any gains

or losses arising from such remeasurement are recognised in profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.5

2.6

2.7

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker.
The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating
resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identified as the executive directors of the Company that makes

strategic decisions of the Group.

Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the
Group entities are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (the
“functional currency”). The consolidated financial statements are
presented in RMB, which is the Company’s functional currency
and the Group's presentation currency.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.7 Foreign currency translation (Cont'd) 27 NEBRE(E)
(b) Transactions and balances (b) XZREEE

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional GNEE T IR T 5 E B E

currency using the exchange rates at the dates of the RITEEBNEEER - 87

transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from ERGUREINETENE

the settlement of such transactions and from the translation of MEEKEBRFRERY
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies %FE%ERH&%&%%*
at year end exchange rates are generally recognised in profit BEERKER o MESFH
or loss. They are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying éé%ﬁiméﬁﬂﬂ&éﬁ
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges or BFEEHHEBENEAR

are attributable to part of the net investment in a foreign BINEB IR EFEN — I

operation. D AIRERENRLE -

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings HEZLESLESZEY

and cash and cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated "ﬁﬁﬁa’][ﬁqﬁz SREB TR

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, EHEEREMEE RTER
within finance costs. All other foreign exchange gains and BEKANNZRY - A EAM

losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit P H s kBB IR F R E L

or loss and other comprehensive income on a net basis within TTREeEHBERREMEE K

other gains or losses. mRHEMEESIEEARNZ

5l o
(c) Group companies () £ERF

The results and financial position of foreign operations (none FrEEEEBERREYNE

of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) ﬁ@ﬂ’ﬂ%’}\\%fi(i’ﬂﬂﬁ’\ﬁé_

that have a functional currency different from the presentation ERRECEENEB)ME

currency are translated into the presentation currency as E R R TR AT H

follows: REREHNEE :

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are () BEEBEXRZEID
translated at the closing rate at the date of that balance BEENBENRZE
sheet; EBEXRBEOKT

EERBME

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or iy BEHBREROKIZ
loss and other comprehensive income are translated at DRERTFHEXRKBE
average exchange rates (unless this is not a reasonable (BRIEZERIW IR
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates SHEREXRNRE
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case FEMNGELOE T
income and expenses are translated at the dates of the ERT Bl g
transactions), and REXZHBE): &

(i) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other (i) P B UL i E A B i
comprehensive income. BEBHREMES

Wam AR -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.7 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(c) Group companies (Cont’'d)
On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of any net investment in foreign entities, and
of borrowings and other financial instruments designated
as hedges of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation is sold or any
borrowings forming part of the net investment are repaid, the
associated exchange differences are reclassified to profit or loss,

as part of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition
of a foreign operation are treated as assets and liabilities of the

foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

2.8 Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly

attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
their cost or revalued amounts, net of their residual values, over their
estimated useful lives or, in the case of leasehold improvements and
certain leased plant and equipment, the shorter lease term as follows:

Plants and buildings 20-50 years
Machinery 10-30 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Electronic equipment and others 5-10 years
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.8

2.9

Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)
The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted

if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

Construction in progress represents plant under construction, which
is stated at actual construction cost less any impairment loss.
Construction in progress is transferred to fixed assets when completed

and ready for use.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.14).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount. These are included in profit or loss. When
revalued assets are sold, it is group policy to transfer any amounts
included in other reserves in respect of those assets to retained
earnings.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in buildings held to earn rental
income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in the
production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Investment
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.

Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the
cost of each item of investment properties to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The estimated useful life is as follows:

Plants and buildings 30-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill is measured as depicted in note 2.14. Goodwill on
acquisitions of subsidiaries is included in intangible assets.
Goodwill is not amortised but it is tested for impairment
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and is carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses
on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of

goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose
of impairment testing. The allocation is made to those cash-
generating units or groups of cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the business combination in which
the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified
at the lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes.

Development expenditure

When the future economic benefits become apparent as
a project progresses into the development stage the costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design
and testing of new or improved products) are capitalised as
intangible assets when recognition criteria are fulfilled and tests
for impairment are performed annually. Other development
expenditures that do not meet those criteria are recognised as
expenses as incurred. Development costs previously recognised
as expenses are not recognised as assets in subsequent periods.
Capitalised development costs are transferred to technical

know-how when the assets are ready for use.

Operating concessions
The detailed accounting policy of operating concessions is

depicted in note 2.12.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.10 Intangible assets (Cont’d)
(d) Unfulfilled contract rights
Unfulfilled contract rights represent the fair value of unfulfilled
contracts in excess of the carrying value for unfulfilled
construction contracts acquired through business combination.

(e) Licenses
Licenses represent the fair value of the operating permits of
solid waste treatment plants and water supply facilities acquired
through business combination.

(f) Technical know-how and software
Acquired technical know-how and software are capitalised on
the basis of the costs incurred to acquire or through business

combination.

(g) Amortisation methods and periods
The Group amortises intangible assets with a limited useful life
using the straight-line method over the following periods:

Operating concessions 16-30 years
Unfulfilled contract rights 30 years
Licenses 5-54 years
Technical know-how and software 5-47 years

2.11 Land use rights
Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining
lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter.

Land use rights 40-50 years
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements

212 BHBIFEETH

The Group has entered into a number of service concession
arrangements with certain governmental authorities or their
designators (the “Grantors”). The service concession arrangements
consist of Build-Operate-Transfer (the “BOT"”) arrangements and
Transfer-Operate-Transfer (the “TOT"”) arrangements. Under the BOT
arrangements, the Group carries out construction work of the facilities
of the sewage and reclaimed water treatment, water supply or solid
waste treatment for the Grantors and receives in return a right to
operate the facilities of service project concerned for a specified
period of time (the “Service Concession Period”) in accordance with
the pre-established conditions set by the Grantors, the service project
should be transferred to the Grantors with nil consideration at the
end of the operation period. A TOT arrangement is similar to a BOT
arrangement, except that the Group pays consideration for the right
to operate the facilities of the wastewater treatment, water supply
and solid waste treatment that has been built.

The Group is generally entitled to use all the property, plant and
equipment of the facilities, however, the relevant governmental
authorities as Grantors will control and regulate the scope of service
that the Group must provide with the facilities, and retain the
beneficial entitlement to any residual interest in the facilities at the
end of the Service Concession Period. Each of these service concession
arrangements is governed by a contract and, where applicable,
supplementary agreements entered into between the Group and the
relevant governmental authority that set out, inter alia, performance
standards, mechanisms for adjusting prices for the services rendered
by the Group, and specific obligations levied on the Group to restore
the facilities to a specified level of serviceability at the end of the
Service Concession Period and arrangements for arbitrating disputes.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor

(i)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model

A financial asset (receivables under a service concession
arrangement) is recognised to the extent that the Group
has an unconditional right to receive cash or another
financial asset from the Grantor for the construction
services rendered and/or the consideration paid and
payable by the Group to the Grantor during the Service
Concession Period. The Group has an unconditional right
to receive cash if the Grantor contractually guarantees
to pay the Group specified or determinable amounts or
the shortfall, if any, between amounts received from
the users of the public service and the specified or
determinable amounts. The financial asset (receivable
under a service concession arrangement) is accounted for
in accordance with the policy set out for financial assets
measured at amortised cost under note 2.15.

During the construction periods, the Group recognises a
contract asset (note 2.13) and accounts for the significant
financing component in the arrangement. When the
construction services are completed, the contract asset
would be classified and measured as receivables under a
service concession arrangement accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(i)

(if)

Service concession arrangements under
financial asset model (Cont’d)

When the Group receives a payment during the
concession period, it will apportion such payment
between (i) a repayment of the financial asset (if any),
which will be used to reduce the carrying amount of
financial receivables on the consolidated balance sheet, (ii)
interest income, will be recognised as revenue in profit or
loss and (iii) revenue from operating service in the profit
or loss. Revenue from operating service is calculated

based on cost plus a profit margin.

Service concession arrangements under
intangible asset model

An intangible asset (operating concession) is recognised
to the extent that the Group receives a right to charge
users of public service, which is not an unconditional
right to receive cash because the amounts are contingent
on the extent that the public uses and service. The
intangible asset (operating concession) is accounted for in
accordance with the policy set out for “intangible assets”
in note 2.10 above, which is amortised on a straight-line
basis over the Service Concession Period.

Revenue relating to operating service are accounted for
in accordance with the policy for note 2.30 “revenue
recognition” below. Costs for operating services are
expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)
(a) Consideration given by the Grantor (Cont’d)

(iii)

Service concession arrangements under hybrid
mode/

If the Group is paid for the construction services partly by
a financial asset and partly by an intangible asset, then
each component of the consideration is accounted for
separately and is recognised initially at the fair value of

the consideration.

Therefore in this arrangement it is necessary to divide

2. FIEETHERBE(A)

QN2 BEFFREZH(F)
(a) BFABLTHRAE

(#&)

(i) EESERAE TR
BT &L
WASEAELEIE
HEEZRB D B K
ERMEENERE
E -SEBEESIA
BRI BZERENQ
FEPIERER -

Rt RZREEF - A

the operator’s contract asset during the construction BEEENENEE
period into two components, a financial asset component DRWMEBY BN E
based on the guaranteed amount and an intangible asset REEHNERMEER

for the remainder. When the construction services are
completed, the two components of the contract asset
would be classified and measured as a financial asset and
an intangible asset accordingly.

BVEE -BERH
TERE  AREEN
1 48 A 55 73 75 48 e
ReEMEERELE
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(b) Construction and upgrade services (b) ZEER HLKRH
The fair value of the construction and upgrade service under BHEERHETHREERF
the concession arrangement is calculated as the estimated total PARTEH R E TR R
construction cost plus a profit margin. The profit margins are FERAIEFEGTE &
valued by an independent qualified valuer, based on prevailing FERBE ERGHEMIE
market rate applicable to similar construction services rendered Rz B BER RN UL E
in similar location at date of agreement. FTRERNELEERB AR

ThHEEERME -

Revenue relating to construction and upgrade services are BZERASREEBENE
accounted for in accordance with the policy in note 2.30. F AR FE2.3089 B SR B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.12 Service concession arrangements (Cont’d)

(c)

Contractual obligations to restore the
infrastructure to a specified level of
serviceability

The Group has contractual obligations which it must fulfil as
a condition of its licences, that is (i) to maintain the sewage
and reclaimed water treatment and water distribution plants
it operates to a specified level of serviceability and/or (ii)
to restore the plants to a specified condition before they
are handed over to the Grantor at the end of the service
concession arrangements. These contractual obligations to
maintain or restore the sewage and reclaimed water treatment
and water distribution plants, except for upgrade element, are
recognised and measured in accordance with the policy set out

for note 2.28 “provisions” below.

2.13 Contract assets and contract liabilities
Under HKFRS 15, a receivable is recognised only if the Group has

an unconditional right to consideration. If the Group recognises

the related revenue before being unconditionally entitled to the

consideration for the promised goods and services in the contract,

then the entitlement to consideration is classified as a contract asset.

Similarly, a contract liability, rather than a payable, is recognised

when a customer pays consideration, or is contractually required

to pay consideration and the amount is already due, before the

Group recognises the related revenue. For a single contract with

the customer, either a net contract asset or a net contract liability

is presented. For multiple contracts, contract assets and contract

liabilities of unrelated contracts are not presented on a net basis.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHTHERBEE)

POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.13 Contract assets and contract liabilities (Cont’d) QBENEEREGHVEE(E)
An impairment of a contract asset is measured, presented and BEME215 AHNEERER
disclosed on the same basis as a financial asset under note 2.15. BERREEZSHEESZ 2

5l R BE 5R o
The Group recognises the incremental costs of obtaining a contract MAEBBERETREASRER
with a customer within contract assets if the Group expects to recover FeEdmMEELEZIZESERKA - Ale
those costs. HEBXABRRBAERNEE -
Generally, the Group receives advances from its customers which are —RmE  AEEREFKERZ
short-term in nature. The advances previously included in trade and BYEEHUE -BEFAES
other payables are reclassified to contract liabilities. Ko L & 5P FRIE B B R E T R

REHWETRE -

2.14 Impairment of non-financial assets 214k ERMEENRE
Goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life are BEERAGHEHAHENE
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment, FEETE#HE mAESTFAR
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate —AEBRE  WESHXREBR
that they might be impaired. Other assets are tested for impairment FEEONREES S ER
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the AR UR B SRE - A BHK
carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is 15 o & B %8 7R BR @ (B 3 A~ 7] Y [8]
recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount B EMmEESETHREINR -
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher MEBEBERAEERDMERSB
of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. For EaWEl S EMEE - o s
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the BRAEELATEREEERAHEME
lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows AEEMENRSSE - BFLHER
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets B BERABRBLIREMEE
or groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other NEEMAR(HEeELESN)ME
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible BAHNRERARELAELRS
reversal of the impairment at the end of each reporting period. Ho-ERENESREE(BHER
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets

QIS RERHEMERMEE

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following

measurement categories:

o those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either
through OCI or through profit or loss), and

o those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for
managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the

cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either
be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For investments in equity
instruments that are not held for trading, this will depend on
whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the

time of initial recognition to account for FVOCI.

The Group reclassifies debt investment when and only when its

business model for managing those assets changes.

2.15.2 Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets are
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the
financial assets have expired or have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.

2.15.1 Classification 2151958
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont‘d) QIS RERHMWESREE (&)
2.15.3 Measurement 21535 2
At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its R EHERE - REBEKH
fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value AFEME(HEREENT
through profit or loss (FVPL), transaction costs that are directly FBEBERIZAFEAR)
attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction WEsHMEEEERENR
costs of financial assets carried at FVPL are expensed in profit SRATESREE - F8
or loss. B ATEARNEHE
ENXSERAREBERR X
i e
Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in MERATETIANSHRE
their entirely when determining whether their cash flows are ERETERERERSEL
solely payment of principal and interest. BAY M AS RF BRI

BIELZER -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)
2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d)

(@)

Debt instruments
Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on
the Group’s business model for managing the asset and
the cash flow characteristics of the asset. There are three
measurement categories into which the Group classifies
its debt instruments:

o Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash flows
represent solely payments of principal and interest
are measured at amortised cost. Interest income
from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
Any gain or loss arising on derecognition is
recognised directly in profit or loss and presented
in other gains/(losses) together with foreign
exchange gains and losses. Impairment losses are
presented as separate line item in the statement of
profit or loss.
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126

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
(a) Debt instruments (Conta)

FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of
contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest, are measured
at FVOCI. Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition
of impairment gains or losses, interest income
and foreign exchange gains and losses which are
recognised in profit or loss. When the financial
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OClI is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss and recognised in other
gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial
assets is included in finance income using the
effective interest rate method. Foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in other gains/
(losses) and impairment expenses are presented
as separate line item in the statement of profit or

loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHERBEAE
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d) QIS RERHEMERMEE (&)
2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d) 2153 512 (4&)
(@) Debt instruments (Cont’a) (a) EFELTAE

. FVPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for . LA FERFE
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVPL. BE#FHF A
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is BE: 54
subsequently measured at FVPL is recognised in B R IEE
profit or loss and presented net within other gains/ AR FEE
(losses) in the period in which it arises. 2 B EZFET
A HAth 47 & I
w2 EE T
AFEFEER
H#FHi AB
wmErE o BER
KAFEFE

BHEBHA

BEFAEZE

BREZ K H
HEERER
R IR
EXBHREREF
2R EAM
Wz /(& 8)
M oo
(b) Equity instruments (b) HEZTA
The Group subsequently measures all equity investments KEBRAEBRAKE
at fair value. Where the Group’s management has BER IR ANFEE -
elected to present fair value gains and losses on equity MAREEREDE
investments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification BERAKREZAFE
of fair value gains and losses to profit or loss following Bl REEREAM
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends from such FEWERY - B
investments continue to be recognised in profit or loss as IR ER &
other income when the Group's right to receive payments BESEHHSBEAFE
is established. KmkEBEER -

AR5 B B AN R
ML - BREKRE
ZRBEBEBNBED
ERRBEMUEA -
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.15 Investment and other financial assets (Cont’d)

2.15.3 Measurement (Cont’d)
(b) Equity instruments (Contc)

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL
are recognised in other gains/(losses) in the statement
of profit or loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and
reversal of impairment losses) on equity investments
measured at FVOCI are not reported separately from

other changes in fair value.

2.15.4 Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected
credit losses (“ECL") associated with its debt instruments carried
at amortised cost and FVOCI. The impairment methodology

applied depends on whether there has been a significant

increase in credit risk.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
measuring ECL which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for receivables under service concession arrangements, trade
receivables, amounts due from customers for contract work and
contract assets. Impairment on other receivables is measured as
either 12-month ECL or lifetime expected credit loss, depending

on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk

since initial recognition.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.16 Offsetting financial instruments

2168 HESmM T A

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported
in the consolidated balance sheet where the Group currently have
a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously. The Group have also entered into
arrangements that do not meet the criteria for offsetting but still
allow for the related amounts to be set off in certain circumstances,

such as bankruptcy or the termination of a contract.

2.17 Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are recognised as a financial liability at
the time the guarantee is issued. The liability is initially measured at
fair value and subsequently at the higher of:

3 the amount determined in accordance with the expected credit
loss model under HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments; and

. the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, the
cumulative amount of income recognised in accordance with
the principles of HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers.

The fair value of financial guarantees is determined based on the
present value of the difference in cash flows between the contractual
payments required under the debt instrument and the payments that
would be required without the guarantee, or the estimated amount
that would be payable to a third party for assuming the obligations.

Where guarantees in relation to loans or other payables of associates
are provided for no compensation, the fair values are accounted for
as contributions and recognised as part of the cost of the investment.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18 Inventories
Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are
stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
variable and fixed overhead expenditure, the latter being allocated
on the basis of normal operating capacity. Costs are assigned to
individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs.
Costs of purchased inventory are determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the

ordinary course of business less the estimated costs of completion and

the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

2.19 Trade receivables
Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise
sold or services performed in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade receivables is expected in one year or less, they are
classified as current assets. If not, they are presented as non-current

assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount of
consideration that is unconditional unless they contain significant
financing components, when they are recognised at fair value. The
Group holds the trade receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently
at amortised cost using the effective interest method. See note
2.15 for further information about the Group’s accounting for trade

receivables.

2.20 Cash and cash equivalents
For the purpose of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and deposits held at call

with financial institutions.

Bank deposits which are restricted to use are classified as “restricted

cash”. Restricted cash are excluded from cash and cash equivalents in

the cash flow statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.21 Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity

as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

2.22 Perpetual capital instruments
Perpetual capital instruments with no contractual obligation for the
Group to deliver cash or another financial asset to the holders are
classified as equity instruments. They are initially recorded at the
proceeds received within equity. Discretionary interest declared by the
Group to the holders of perpetual capital instrument is treated as
dividend.

2.23 Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided
to the Group prior to the end of financial year which are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days
of recognition. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months after the
reporting period. They are recognised initially at their fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

2.24 Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12
months after the reporting period.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.25 Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset are
capitalised during the period of time that is required to complete and
prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready

for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific

borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted

from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are

incurred.

2.26 Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on
the current period’s taxable income based on the applicable income
tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred income

tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to

unused tax losses.

(a) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of
the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end of
the reporting period in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in
which applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the basis of

amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

(b)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated financial statements. However, deferred
income tax liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the
initial recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws)
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end
of the reporting period and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred

income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise those

temporary differences and losses.

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount and tax
bases of investments in foreign operations where the Company
is able to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in profit or loss,
except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in

equity, respectively.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.26 Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)
(b) Deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Companies within the Group may be entitled to claim special
tax deductions for investments in qualifying assets or in
relation to qualifying expenditure. The Group accounts for such
allowances as tax credits, which means that the allowance
reduces income tax payable and current tax expense. A deferred
income tax asset is recognised for unclaimed tax credits that are

carried forward as deferred income tax assets.

2.27 Employee benefits
(a) Defined contribution plan

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC, the
PRC based employees of the Group participate in various
defined contribution retirement benefit plans organised by the
relevant municipal and provincial governments in the PRC under
which the Group and the PRC based employees are required
to make monthly contributions to these plans calculated as a

percentage of the employees’ salaries.

The municipal and provincial governments undertake to
assume the retirement benefit obligations of all existing and
future retired PRC based employees’ payable under the plans
described above. Other than the monthly contributions, the
Group has no further obligation for the payment of retirement
and other post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets
of these plans are held separately from those of the Group
in independently administrated funds managed by the PRC

government.

(b) Defined benefit plan

Typically defined benefit plans define an amount of pension
benefit that an employee will receive on retirement, usually
dependent on one or more factors such as age, years of service

and compensation.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.27 Employee benefits (Cont’d)

(b)

Defined benefit plan (Cont’d)

The liability recognised in the consolidated balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value
of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting
period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit
obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using
the projected unit credit method. The present value of the
defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the
estimated future cash outflows using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency
in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to
maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
obligation. In countries where there is no deep market in such

bonds, the market rates on government bonds are used.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised
in the statement of profit or loss in employee benefit expense,
except where included in the cost of an asset, reflects the
increase in the defined benefit obligation results from employee
service in the current year, benefit changes, curtailments and
settlements.

Past-service costs are recognised immediately in consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation
resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and other comprehensive income
as past service costs.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount
rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and
the fair value of plan assets. This cost is included in employee
benefit expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income.

Remeasurement arising from experience adjustments and
changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to
equity in other comprehensive income in the period in which
they arise.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.28 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make good
obligations are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and
the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised
for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that
an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if
the likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best
estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.

2.29 Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income over the period necessary to match them with the costs that

they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to purchase of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred government grants and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income on a

straight-line basis over the expected lives of the related assets.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.30 Revenue recognition

230 AFERR

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is measured based on the consideration
specified in a contract with a customer and excludes amounts
collected on behalf of third parties. The Group recognises revenue
when it transfers control over a product or service to a customer. This
may be at a single point in time or over time.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 15, the Group satisfies a performance
obligation and recognises revenue over time, if one of the following
criteria is met:

o when the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the Group

performs;

3 when the Group’s performance creates or enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the asset is created or enhanced;

o when the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternate use to the Group and the Group has an
enforceable right to payment for performance completed to
date.

If none of the above conditions are met, the Group recognises
revenue at a single point in time at which the performance obligation
is satisfied for the sale of that good or service when control has been
passed.

If control of the product or service transfers over time, revenue is
recognised over the period of the contract by measuring the progress
towards complete satisfaction of that performance obligation.
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2.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.30 Revenue recognition (Cont’d)
(a) Sales of goods

Revenue is recognised at the point in time when the control
of the product is transferred to the customer which generally
coincides with delivery and acceptance of the product sold.

(b) Rendering of construction and upgrade
services

Revenue from construction and upgrade services is recognised
over time by measuring the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the service. The progress towards complete
satisfaction of the performance obligation is measured based
on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the satisfaction of the
performance obligation, by reference to the contract costs

incurred up to the end of the reporting period as a percentage

of total estimated costs for each contract.

(c) Rendering of other services

Revenue from wastewater treatment, solid waste treatment and

other services is recognised over the period by measuring the

progress towards complete satisfaction of the service.

(d) Rental income

Rental income from investment properties is recognised on a

straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

(e) Interest income

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except
for financial assets that subsequently become credit-impaired.
For credit-impaired financial assets the effective interest rate is
applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after

deduction of the loss allowance).
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.31 Leases 231 E

As explained in note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its
accounting policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new

policy is described below and the impact of the change in note 2.2.

The Group leases land use rights on long-term contracts and offices
and warehouses on both short-term and long-term contracts.

Land use rights represent prepaid operating lease payments for
land less accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate
the prepaid operating lease payments for land over the remaining
lease term or the operating period, whichever is shorter. It is
consistent with that of the annual financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

Rental contracts for offices and warehouses are typically made for
fixed periods of 1 to 10 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any covenants, but
leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
Until the 2018 financial year, leases of offices and warehouses were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
(net of any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit

or loss on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 January 2019, leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset
and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is

available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease components. The
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to the lease and
non-lease components based on their relative stand-alone prices.
However, for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FEEHHREME(EF)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.31 Leases (Cont’d) 231 E& (&)

140

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a
present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of

the following lease payments:

3 fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any

lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payment that are based on an index or a
rate, initially measured using the index or rate as at the

commencement date;

3 amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual

value guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise that option, and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease

term reflects the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension

options are also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in
the lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally
the case for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing
rate is used, being the rate that the individual lessee would have
to pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar

value to the right-of-use asset in a similar economic environment with

similar terms, security and conditions.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESTHTHEMEH)
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.31 Leases (Cont'd) 231HE (&)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group: RETHEERME  KEE :
3 where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the . FERTREB T » {5 B & Bl &
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes HABIEGSNE=RE
in financing conditions since third party financing was received, EEHEE, - WIEH AR
REREESE =HEE AR
A& R e
. uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest . FRENE  HERAEER
rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which el eancERR (&
does not have recent third party financing, and AWEE=FTRE)ARE

BBAE : &

. makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g., term, country, . ETHEERBELNNAZE  m
currency and security. HABR - B - B R o

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease 7N 55 B K 7R AT RE AR 4 5 sk A &

payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in MR RSN RE - mEBE

the lease liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease HAFNEEERF TS AHE

payments based on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is BE BERBEREESANEHEE

reassessed and adjusted against the right-of-use asset. NREHNABRLEUR - HEA

ERBERAEEELETENNMG

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The HENRN AR S & & KR 2 fE

finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to EEDE - BIEKRARHEERNBE

produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance BB UGTELNSHHEaES

of the liability for each period. B4 1 & E 48 HR I K o

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following: FREEBERKASTE  ITBE

A&

o the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability; . HEABENYRTESE

. any lease payments made at or before the commencement date o KRB ABABKZAIELMNE
less any lease incentives received:; AIAERNFRERNEKREE

B
. any initial direct costs, and e  AEMIFBMEERE K
. restoration costs. o  {BIEKK-
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.31 Leases (Cont’d)
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the

Group is reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-

of-use asset is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.

Payments associated with short-term leases are recognised on a

straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are

leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Lease income from operating leases where the Group is a lessor is
recognised in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognised as
expense over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The
respective leased assets are included in the consolidated balance
sheet based on their nature. The Group did not need to make any
adjustments to the accounting for assets held as lessor as a result of

adopting the new leasing standard.

2.32 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group’s financial statements in the period in which the
dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or directors,

where appropriate.

2.33 Derivatives and hedging activities
Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured to
their fair value at the end of each reporting period. The accounting
for subsequent changes in fair value depends on whether the

derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the nature

of the item being hedged.

The Group's derivative instruments do not qualify for hedge
accounting. Changes in the fair value of any derivative instrument
that does not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised
immediately in profit or loss and are included in other gains/(losses).

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A "] Annual Report 2019 4 [& i &

2.

TEETREREE(A)

231 E (&)

CREEE-RNEEANERSF
HIBE 7R M oh eV BRAE B A B AR
E-RMAEEABEEEETHER
B AERREEEHEMBE
ENAERFHANE -

HEMBEERENNRAERE
RBZAERRMAX - BHEE
EEARNZEASIATHOEE -

RERE(REEERBEAD
HEBARBRRNIAERERER
BN - MRERKEHERES
MY BEEKASMARBEE
FEREE - BN E AR ERAE
ERANR -EERRBRFAX
HEHEEEREMEFASH
BEAMBR - NEMFEEER
% AKEHARER/BEAR
EEEMNEEEELEMAE -

232 E 2K

HARBBRROBKRE DK S
BEARRRRAES(EMB) I
FEHREAREM B RRERSD
BifE -

TTETARYAHED
MTETARTETIRAANILE
BERAFENRER HEERS
REHEREZAFEEHAE -
RFEREH 2 G EEIORR %
METAREBREEREHT
B mMEEREHRITA  BIR
RNEDHIRE 2 EHE -

REBZTET AN AHE EHH
GEPER - AT A E I EFHER
ZUTETAZATFENELZS
5 BN R 2 AR SR I AT A oAt
Wz (BE) -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.34 Earnings per share 234 BREXEF
(i) Basic earnings per share (i) @ﬁ‘ BEEXZF

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing: HARBFILAT X5

TEEHRRGE (A

st
(=N
A

excluding any costs of servicing equity other than
ordinary shares

by the weighted average number of ordinary shares
outstanding during the financial year, adjusted for bonus

o the profit attributable to owners of the company, .

RRRFER ARG
(D 85T E R
SN2 AR AT HE 25 AR )

e BUMBFEARDH#
17 & B R m#EFH

2o WHFAEET
ZRAR(TEEER
B dn ) B B B S & o

elements in ordinary shares issued during the year and
excluding treasury shares.

FRBEET

HESREERE - 23

(iij) Diluted earnings per share (ii)
Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the

determination of basic earnings per share to take into account: BEARETSRERBNG
HE UARBUATEER :

. the after income tax effect of interest and other financing o HEBETHESERRE
costs associated with dilutive potential ordinary shares, R B REMEE
and BARBRFEREY

2 K

. the weighted average number of additional ordinary . REERAE BT
shares that would have been outstanding assuming the EEEAR BB E
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. ?"“ﬁ%@ﬂxﬁ’]ﬂﬂ%?

HE o

Annual Report 2019 4 E 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A 7 143



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3.

144

f 75 SRR BT o

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market

risk (including currency risk and fair value interest rate risk and cash

flow interest rate), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall

risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of

financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on

the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

(i)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E k1% &

Foreign exchange risk

The Group principally operates in the PRC with most
of the transactions being settled in RMB, which is the
functional currency of most of the group entities. The
group entities are exposed to foreign exchange risk of
foreign currencies other than their functional currencies,
primarily with respect to the US dollars ("US$"”) and
Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") (together “Non-functional
Currencies”). The Group seeks to limit its exposure to
foreign currency risk by closely monitoring and minimizing

its net foreign currency position.

The Group also has certain subsidiaries in foreign
operations. Foreign exchange risk arises from the
recognised assets and liabilities and net investments in
foreign operations. Currency exposure arising from the
net assets of the Group’s foreign operations is managed
primarily through financing activities denominated in the

relevant foreign currencies.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)

(if)

Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk

The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term
borrowings. Borrowings obtained at variable rates expose
the Group to cash flow interest risk which is partially
offset by cash held at variable rates. Borrowings obtained
at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest risk.

The Group regularly reviews and monitors the mix of
fixed and floating interest rate borrowings in order to
manage its interest rate risk. The Group’s interest-bearing
bank borrowings, restricted cash and cash and cash
equivalents are stated at amortised cost and not revalued
on a periodic basis. Floating rate interest income and
expenses are credited/charged to profit or loss as earned/

incurred.
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont‘d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont’d)
(i) Fair value and cash flow interest rate risk (Cont’d)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group has floating rate
borrowings amounting to RMB7,721,060,000 (2018:
RMB5,249,177,000). If there would be a general
increase/decrease in the market interest rates by 100
basis points, with all other variables held constant, the
Group's post-tax profit would have decreased/increased
by approximately RMB60,550,000 for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: RMB41,817,000). The sensitivity
analysis above has been determined assuming that
the change in market interest rates had occurred as
at the 31 December 2019 and 2018 and had applied
the exposure to cash flow interest rate risk to those
financial instruments in existence at those dates. The
estimated 100 basis points increase or decrease represents
management’s estimate of a reasonably possible change
in market interest rates over the period until the next
annual year end.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk

(i)

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on group basis. The Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial
assets is the carrying amounts of restricted cash, cash and
cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, receivables
under service concession arrangements, amounts due
from customers for contract work and contract assets.

For deposit with banks, the Group has limited its credit
exposure by restricting their selection of banks on the
reputable local listed commercial banks or state-owned
banks. Management believes these financial institutions
are reputable and there is no significant credit risk of loss
on such assets.

For trade receivables, receivables under service concession
arrangements, amounts due from customers for contract
work and contract assets, the customers are primarily
local governments and PRC state-owned entities and
management considers the credit risk is not high.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 31 BEBREE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd) (b) =HEE(E)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (i) 2/ EERE

BEERER (&)

The Group has four types of financial assets and contract
assets that are subject to HKFRS 9's ECL model:

. receivables under service concession arrangements;

3 trade and other receivables;

o amounts due from customers for contract work;
and

3 contract assets.

While cash and cash equivalents and restricted cash are
also subject to the impairment requirements of HKFRS 9,

the identified impairment loss was immaterial.

To measure the ECL, receivables under service concession
arrangements, trade and other receivables, amounts
due from customers for contract work and contract
assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk
characteristics. The contract assets relate to unbilled
work in progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the same types
of contracts. The Group has therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are a reasonable
approximation of the loss rates for the contract assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont’d)

(c)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont’d)

The Group established ECL model based on historical
settlement records, past experience and available forward-
looking information.

Liquidity risk

Cash flow forecasting is performed in the operating entities
of the Group and aggregated by Group financial department.
Group financial department monitors rolling forecasts of
the Group’s liquidity requirements to ensure it has sufficient
cash and cash equivalents to meet operational needs while
maintaining sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed
borrowing facilities at all times so that the Group does not
breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any
of its borrowing facilities.

The Group’s financial department monitors and maintains a
level of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by the
management to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate
the effects of fluctuations in cash flows. The Group expects to
fund its future cash flow needs through internally generated
cash flows from operations, borrowings and perpetual capital

instruments from financial institutions.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3.

BEERER (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont'd) 31 W¥RAKREE (&)

(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (c) ZEELREE (&)
The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial TROMAEBERIEITES
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the mAEE  YIRBABND
remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual HAR REBEEEBZESH
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the B BB & T &R BRI R #E AT
contractual undiscounted cash flows, including interest e XRNFIBENSEAS
payments computed using contractual rates, or, if floating, HARBIRBERE - BFER
based on current rates. B E &) A 2 (X w72 )% B A

= Bl ABVEIE X)) E
FERH -

Carrying
Within Between Between Over amount
1year 1and2years 2andS5 years 5 years Total liabilities
EPY 122% 2555 SERE & AEREE
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:R

Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R=Z-AE+-F=1+-A

HERER
Financial liabilities SREE

Borrowings B3R 7470505 7579710 6128832 5200439 26379486 21,618,930
Trade and other payables (*) O EN ) 3,424,554 3,085,124 349,777 4,970 6,864,425 6,717,053
Lease liabilities HERR 13,152 10,667 19,023 50,138 92,980 50,610
10,908,211 10,675,501 6,497,632 5255547 33,336,891 28,386,593

Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R=Z2-\E+-F=+-H

HERES
Financial liabilities SREE

Borrowings &3 6,522,143 3,968,195 6,951,773 2,561,801 20,003,912 16,934,526
Trade and other payabls () BAREMERNFEY 2767075 34789 138,000 A0 6158637 6025110
9,289,418 7,216,087 7,089,773 2,567,271 26,162,549 22,959,636

The Group also provides guarantees to borrowings of joint
ventures and an associate, which will have contractual cash
flows only if joint ventures and an associate default the
repayment (Note 36(j)).

* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3. MKREKRERE(E)
32 EXER

3.2 Capital management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, sell assets to reduce debt or raise funding through
capital markets as necessary.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This
ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is
calculated as total borrowings (including “current and non-current
borrowings” as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash
and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as “total equity” as
shown in the consolidated financial statements plus net borrowings.

AEENEAERENE O /RE
REBMERFERLE  ARKRE
RECH L SEMAEEEE R
HHE  UREFRENEAR
BRDEARKA -

BRBAARERLEE K& E
Mg ARRMN TRENRES
BOAREREEAN  HEEBE
RO EBRBRERTISESE
B (MBE) -

AEERBEEABLXERE
A o BZ L RIBF AT R ABRE A
AE - FEBREFEE(BRES
HEEBBRARAENERIEED
HEFRDBRRERALEEYS
H o ERRA M RERAR
ISR MERFREFTE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR® T AR F T

Total borrowings (note 29) & 458 (M 3E29) 21,618,930 16,934,526
Less: cash and cash equivalents (note 25) B Be MBS EEY (KiFE25) (2,468,435) (2,214,352)
Net borrowings BRFHE 19,150,495 14,720,174
Total equity 4 = 8,545,985 6,934,272
Total capital & ARBE 27,696,480 21,654,446
Gearing ratio BEBELEX 69% 68%
The increase in the gearing ratio was resulted primarily from the EEBEEXRESTERSANE

increase of borrowings during the year ended 31 December 2019.

E-T-NAF+A=+—HL

FEBFEM -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd) 3. MRRARER(EF)
3.3 Financial instruments by category 33 REMNEINEMIA
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—H
2019 2018
—®-nF  —T-N\%F
RMB000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARB T

Financial assets cRMEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHENATENEREE
— Trade and other receivables - B REMEKRFKE 7,170,741 5,777,631
— Receivables under service concession - RBEFLEELHETH
arrangements JE W R TE 5,078,315 4,223,100
— Cash and cash equivalents - BekBReEEYD 2,468,435 2,214,352
— Restricted cash - ZBHIEE 192,691 123,043
— Amounts due from customers for - AN IREREFRREA
contract works 9,521 =
14,919,703 12,338,126
Financial assets at fair value EAFTEAENEMEE
— Financial asset at fair value through - LAFEFEBEEEHTA
other comprehensive income HtiraamemEE 4,675 4,675
— Financial assets at fair value through - UAFEHEAEEZFHTA
profit or loss BatemEE = 4,320
— Derivative financial instruments - TESRIA — 10,884
4,675 19,879
14,924,378 12,358,005
Financial liabilities ctWMARs
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REENATTENESRBE
— Borrowings - fBR 21,618,930 16,934,526
— Trade and other payables (*) - B 5 & H M FE R RE*) 6,717,053 6,025,110
— Lease liabilities - HE&AE 50,610 —
28,386,593 22,959,636
Financial liabilities at fair value EATEAENSRAE
— Derivative financial instruments - PTHEEmT A — 2,500
28,386,593 22,962,136
* Excluding staff welfare benefit payable and other taxes payable. @ TEIEREMNE TRA & EMhER
BIE ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)

3.4 Fair value estimation
The Group’s financial instruments recognised in the consolidated
balance sheet are mainly receivables and financial liabilities carried
at amortised cost. The fair values of these financial instruments
approximate their carrying amounts.

Financial instruments carried at fair value are disclosed by levels of the
following fair value measurement hierarchy:

. Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as
prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable
market data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements used in preparing these financial statements are
evaluated and based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the

circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk
of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year are addressed below.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

BERREREE)

3.4 DFEME
AEERAHEERBRAER
MEMIATEAREEYKAT
B ERSRARE - %%
SMITAMATERAEAEM
H o

BAFEINENSETATIRA
TAFEFEEMETHRE

- BREERAEEERT
B BECRERE) (F—
;) -

s BRE-LMEBENBRESN -
HEAERBENTEE(E
EENER) SHEE (VRS
ER)BABER(E_R) -

o WIHERBAIBRMIBEIESG
HEEES A ENEARIE
(N RAT B R AZE) (F
=) -

4. T EEFHAEFRHE

R B2 5 W TS SRR s P A e Ak AT R R
TREBEAEKBRIABAZR(BRRE
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OB CREDNIR (S iiA-F - SR
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(a) Service concession arrangements under financial

asset model

When the Group is paid for the construction and upgrade services
by a financial asset, significant judgement is exercised in determining
the fair values of the financial asset at initial recognition. Cash flow
forecast, effective interest rate and other factors are used in the
valuation model. Any changes in the expected cash flows, such as
forecasted unit price of service fee, operating costs and profit margins
of the operating services, will result in change in the carrying value of

the financial asset and the revenue recognised in concession period.

According to the service concession arrangements signed with the
Grantors, the unit price of service fee would be periodically adjusted
to compensate operating cost increase, including labour costs,
material costs, taxation, through a pricing mechanism which is still
subject to regulation by local government authorities. Judgement is
required in assessing whether increase in costs can be compensated
through unit price adjustment and the timing. In making this
judgement, the Group evaluates the pricing mechanism in the service

concession arrangements, the extent of development of the project

and status of negotiation with the government authorities.

(b) Impairment provision of trade receivables

The Group records impairment provision of trade receivables based on
an assessment made by management on the ECL of trade receivables.
The evaluations focused on the customers’ settlement history and
current ability to pay, and took into account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customers operated. Provisions are made where events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
collectible. Impairment assessment requires the use of judgement and
estimates. The Group would revisit and evaluate those assumptions

related with ECL model periodically.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(9]

(d)

Income taxes and deferred income taxation

The Group is primarily subject to income taxes in the PRC, Hong
Kong, Thailand and Indonesia. Significant judgement is required
in determining the provision for income taxes. There are many
transactions and calculations for which the ultimate determination is
uncertain during the ordinary course of business. Where the final tax
outcome of these matters is different from the amounts that were
initially recorded, such difference will impact the income tax and
deferred income tax provision in the year in which such determination

is made.

Deferred income tax assets relating to certain temporary differences
and tax losses are recognised when management considers to be
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of

their actual utilisation may be different.

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Goodwill is reviewed for impairment at each balance sheet date
or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts
of goodwill has been determined based on fair value less costs to
disposal calculations, taking into account latest market information
and past experience. These calculations require the use of judgements
and estimates.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

The executive directors of the Company are the chief operating decision-
maker of the Group. Management has determined the operating segments
based on reports reviewed by the executive directors of the Company for

the purpose of allocating resources and assessing performance.

The executive directors of the Company consider the business from product
and service perspective. The Group is organised into five business segments
as below:

(@)  Wastewater treatment;

(b)  Water supply;

(c)  Construction and sales of equipment;

(d)  Solid waste treatment;

(e)  Others, including operation and maintenance services and other
businesses.

Management monitors the results of the Group's operating segments
separately for the purpose of making decisions about resources allocation
and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on
reportable segment results, which is a measure of revenue and gross profit
of each operating segment.

The amounts provided to the executive directors of the Company with
respect to total assets and total liabilities are measured in a manner
consistent with that of the financial statements. These assets and liabilities
are allocated based on the operations of the segment.

Unallocated assets mainly represented cash and cash equivalents, restricted
cash, certain prepayments and certain receivables of the group entities
engaging in multiple business segments. Management considered that it is
impracticable or not meaningful in allocating to different segments.

Unallocated liabilities mainly represented certain borrowings, certain payables
and deferred income of the group entities engaging in multiple business
segments. Management considered that it is impracticable or not meaningful
in allocating to different segments.
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5.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f

5 i % B 5E

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 5. DEER (&)
Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i) éﬂi —E-AF+=-_A=+—H
December 2019 are as follows: FEMNOIHEEREARAZT B M
—F 9
Year ended 31 December 2019: BE-_ZE-AFE+=-HB=+—H
ILEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water and sales of  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
BFRRE f#k REHE BERE Hitr KB st
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL ARETrn ARETR AR%TRn AR¥TR AR%TR ARET#R
Gross segment revenue APHlEaS 2978368 1,230,737 1,618,895 1,514,561 99,791 — 148235
Inter-segment revenue A HENE — - (904,328) — - — (904,328)
Revenue from external customers KENSRERKA 2978368 1,230,737 714,567 1,514,561 99,791 — 6538024
Revenue from contracts with BEFANZHA
customers
~ Recognised at a point in time - RE-BEER - 623,028 407,965 - - — 1,030,993
~ Recognised at over time - RE-BRER 2,564,606 556,004 306,602 1,505,231 99,791 - 5,032,234
Revenue from other sources A RE
- Finance income - BERA 413,762 51,705 — 9,330 - — 474,797
Gross profit £ 946,576 236,761 337,764 266,203 45,009 - 1,832,313
QOther income HitA 124,024
Other losses — net EhERFE (1,425)
Selling expenses HERX (43,398)
Administrative expenses TRRxX (424,19)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ BEAEREFE (48,526)
Finance costs — net BERAFE (814,167)
Share of profitf(loss) of investments ~ WTE % ABREVELS
accounted for using the equity RERH/(B8)
method — net F8 30,304 5,223 10,644 24,542 - (17,789) 52,924
Profit before income tax BT R 677,549
Income tax expenses FERAY (123,741)
Profit for the year EREH 553,808
Depreciation and amortisation TEMEY (131,155 (171,761) (16,804)  (170,718) (14724) (15430)  (520,592)
Segment assets NHEE 15,619,480 7,271,522 5,508,035 7,348,612 986,814 3,128,669 39,869,132
Segment assets include: AREERSE
Investments accounted for using the ~ MEEZEARHRE
equity method 236,025 46,590 45,361 464,034 34,534 269,473 1,096,017
Segment liabilities AHERE 5,983,320 1,178,220 2,230,171 2,005,710 1,138,799 18,786,927 31,323,147
Additions to non-current assets ERHEENTE
(other than financial instruments (ERIANMET
and deferred income tax assets) FEHEERM) 2,423,830 489,061 398,021 1,846,925 70,697 1,559 5,230,093
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. 7HMER(HF)
(i) Segment results and capital expenditure for the year ended 31 (i HE-_ZT—-hF+=ZA=+—H
December 2019 are as follows: (Cont’d) IEFENDIEERERTHN
T (E
Year ended 31 December 2018: BE-—_E—-NE+=-A=+—8
ILEE:
Construction
Wastewater Water  and salesof  Solid waste
treatment supply  equipment treatment Others  Unallocated Total
BER
KRR fitk REHE EERR Eit AR &5
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETn ARETn ARETn ARETT ARET:R
Gross segment revenue AHMEEE 3295003 1,171,789 2,059,977 748,985 71,884 — 7347658
Inter-segment revenue A HEYE = —  (1,092,030) = = —  (1,092,030)
Revenue from external customers RENBEPHMA 3295003 1,171,789 967,947 748,985 71,884 — 6255628
Revenue from contracts with BEFANIHA
customers
~ Recognised at a point in time - RE-KHER = 519,062 495,414 = = — 1,014,476
- Recognised at over time - RE-BRER 3,039,621 595,442 472,533 736,871 71,884 — 4916351
Revenue from other sources EBARE
- Finance income - BERA 255,402 57,285 = 12,114 = = 324,801
Gross profit £ 735,879 227,446 343,094 167,091 24,499 — 1,498,009
Other income EthiA 144,668
Other gains — net EthaFE 10,541
Selling expenses HERX (43,884)
Administrative expenses TRRAxX (395,120)
Impairment losses on financial assets £ B AZFEEE (25,510)
Finance costs — net BERAFE (578,512)
Share of profitf(loss) of investments — WEZ & ABRAVEL
accounted for using the equity RERH/(B8)
method — net F8 19,127 (8,903) 7,6% 16,116 — — 34,034
Profit before income tax eI 644,226
Income tax expenses FERRR (147,511)
Profit for the year FRET 496,715
Depreciation and amortisation FENEY (117,348) (162,033) (14,378) (151,792) (12,768) (12,553) (470,872)
Segment assets PHEE 11,877,411 6,761,381 4,592,414 5,485,113 960,690 2,996,837 32,673,846
Segment assets include: PREEDSE
Investments accounted for using the ~ AEZE N8R 2
equity method 203,671 328,628 34,117 89,492 4,534 — 661,042
Segment liabilities PHEE 4,082,170 1,183,919 1,887,852 1,261,995 1,171,977 16,151,661 25,739,574
Additions to non-current assets ERHEENTE
(other than financial instruments (ERIANET
and deferred income tax assets) FERAERI) 3,342,032 478,764 843,878 443,618 18,259 68,768 5,195,319
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(i)~ Segment assets and liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
financial statements. The table of segment assets/liabilities by region is

as follows:

2 EER (F)

S EEE R A B AR X R
BRESHE - TERAR
i

PHDHEE AR
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —Z—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR T
Segment assets THEE
- Mainland China - REREE 35,102,965 28,275,590
— Thailand - RH 620,371 588,543
— Indonesia - HfE 861,630 644,309
- Hong Kong - PEES 142,481 142,745
— Singapore — ¥ 13,016 25,822
Total segment assets ba) E‘Eﬁé#@ G 36,740,463 29,677,009
— Unallocated - x5 3,128,669 2,996,837
Total assets BEE 39,869,132 32,673,846
Segment liabilities D EAEE
— Mainland China - B KR 11,894,996 8,925,931
— Thailand - RH 132,837 139,806
— Indonesia - HE 465,420 441,501
— Hong Kong - FEEHBE 19,901 45,130
— Singapore — Frhns 23,066 35,545
Total segment liabilities HEBEERE 12,536,220 9,587,913
— Unallocated - kDB 18,786,927 16,151,661
Total liabilities HmEE 31,323,147 25,739,574

Inter-segment transfers or transactions are entered into at terms and
conditions agreed upon by respective parties. Eliminations comprise
inter-segment trade and non-trade balances. Pricing policy for inter-
segment transactions is determined by reference to market price.

R “m” & P

DEREBEARHTHIRE T HE
VIR R R ETT - HEEBED
MEZRFBEZER - DM
HMEBRRESEMERE
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d) 5. D EER (&)
(i)  The revenue of group entities from external customers broken down (i) WEBBREIIINDIESHKZE
by location of the goods or services are delivered to is shown in the 3R S sk RS B 25 B 5 Y

table below. B AR 8L 51 T 5

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=1+—-BLFE

2019 2018
—®-h% —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Mainland China A K R 6,161,315 5,912,609
Indonesia e 274,996 233,840
Thailand Z=H 99,803 107,419
Hong Kong FEES 1,910 1,760
6,538,024 6,255,628
(iv)  Breakdown of the revenue from all services and sales of goods is as (ivy BE2BREREEEREENK
follows: HZEAMET T

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-HA=+—-HBLFE

2019 2018
—®-hf —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR T ARETTT

Operating services BE RS 1,800,114 1,550,655
Construction services BiER® 3,493,855 3,354,901
Finance income B E WA 474,797 324,801

Engineering-Procurement-Construction REF— KB — T
("EPC") and sales of equipment (TEPCl) KRB E 669,467 953,387
Others E A1t 99,791 71,884
6,538,024 6,255,628
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d) 5. D EER (&)
(v)  Assets and liabilities related to contracts with customers (V) HEFIVANHBIEERS
f&
The Group has recognised Ithe following assets and liabilities related AEBEE R TEES Y
to contracts with customers: R
EBRHEBZEERARE
As at As at
31 December 31 December
2019 2018

R-B—RE R-T-N\F
t=A=+-8 +=A=t+-~
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARMERE  AE®TR

Contract assets — Non-current BHEE —FRP
- Related to wastewater - HEEKEEREE B
treatment services 4,853,538 3,406,622
— Related to construction services - HEERKEEH 791,226 457,267
— Related to water supply services - BEKRBEE R 547,090 414,066
6,191,854 4,277,955
Contract assets — Current ERNEE— R
— Related to wastewater - BESKEERE BB
treatment services 255,588 8,413
— Related to construction services - HEERSEE M 253,452 318,976
— Related to water supply services - BEHEHKIREEE 12,018 10,808
521,058 338,197
6,712,912 4,616,152
Contract liabilities — Current EHNEE—RH
— Related to construction services - HEERBEH 70,205 88,982
— Related to water supply services - BEKRBE 26,780 23,851
— Related to solid waste - HEBEEEREE B
treatment services 9,691 6,576
106,676 119,409
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5. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont’d)

(vi)  Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the total revenue
of the Group is as follow:

D RRE R (&)

(vi) HAKEEWATEEBI0%H

EEEAWMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BHLEFE

2019 2018

—E—-hE —E—)N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEFTT

YCIH (note a) = % & E (K 5Fa) 684,494 800,659

(a)

YCIH represents Yunnan Construction and Investment Holding
Group Co., Ltd and its subsidiaries, which are related parties of
the Group. The detailed information of transactions with YCIH
is depicted in note 36(f).

6. OTHER INCOME

(a) EHEBREBEASENE
BOEEEERREERE
EMAERNERENBRE -
HEFREREERXZNHT
AR 51 BR 7B EE36(f)

H I A

Year ended 31 December
BE+-B=+—BLtEE

2019 2018

—E-NEF —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AREEF T

Government grants XA #7 B 88,435 90,956
Value-added tax refunds EEBRR 23,460 50,225
Miscellaneous income T8 W 2 12,129 3,487
124,024 144,668
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7. OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS — NET 7. HE(EFEB) WHEFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBTTT

Net fair value (losses)/gains on financial assets UWAFEASAEEHEEZSHF A
at fair value through profit or loss BERNemEEZATE
F(BER), W (9,985) 8,384
Others EAh 8,560 2,157
(1.425) 10,541
8. EXPENSES BY NATURE 8. MMEETHEX
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-—A=+—-HLEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥T R AREFT
Employee benefit expenses (note 9) & 8 875 & (Bt 5£9) 605,333 549,395
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ME - BB REETE (KE17)

(note 17) 177,369 163,397
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 19) ERAEEENE (MT19) 19,777 —
Depreciation of investment properties BEMERE 852 913
Amortisation of land use rights b {57 R AE 8 — 6,920
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 21) EREEEH(MHE21) 322,594 300,555
Legal and professional fee FERBEEER 28,118 14,850
Auditors’ remuneration % SR 357 B 7,450 7,950
— Audit services - BT R 7.250 7,250
— Non-audit services - EEHRP 200 700
Electricity, raw materials consumptions and other KERBEHEN - BEMELERER

costs for operating services H i pR AR 526,466 569,977
Costs of construction services 35 R 7% AR AN 3,065,263 2,948,167
Costs of EPC and sales of equipment EPC X $85 & R B B A 284,080 469,958
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9.

164

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS

9.

ﬁé?ﬁﬂﬁ-ﬁi —BRES

&

Year ended 31 December
BZ+-B=1+—BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®B T ARBTTT

Wages and salaries TERFHF® 447,129 410,088
Pension costs of defined contribution plans EREEHEENRKS 56,193 51,884
Housing funds, medical insurances and other FTEAES: BERBRK
social insurances H ittt & R 58,062 47,236
Other welfare and allowance E fth ) B R AT 43,949 40,187
605,333 549,395
(a) Five highest paid individuals () IEBREHF AL

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group
for the year include two (2018: two) directors, whose emoluments are
reflected in the analysis shown in note 38. The emoluments payable
to the remaining three (2018: three) individuals during the year are as

FEERAFENRIERSHA
ITEEME(ZE—N\F : MHA)
B HB SRRV E38MHMI
D - RAFERBT=4(=F

follows:
—N\F: ZB) A ATEMOBMEM
TAIR ¢
Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-B=1+—BLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T AREFIT
Basic salaries, housing allowances, EXEe TFEER
other benefits in kind HEMEYEF 3,739 4,213
Bonuses T4 — 1,100
3,739 5,313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES, INCLUDING 9.
DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (Cont‘d)

(a) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d)

The emoluments of these remaining individuals of the Group fell

within the following bands:

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

EERANAX —BEES

<= (&)

() TEBEFHAL(H)
AEEZSHTALOHEN T
UTHE :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-NEF —T—)\F
Emolument bands B < & &
RMB880,000 to RMB1,320,000 (equivalent A R #880,0007T &
to HKD1,000,000 to HKD1,500,000) A R #1,320,0007T
(¥ 2 %1,000,0005% 7T &=
1,500,000 7t ) 2 —
RMB1,320,000 to RMB1,759,000 (equivalent A R ¥1,320,0007T &
to HKD1,500,000 to HKD2,000,000) A R #1,759,0007C
(#8%#1,500,000/8 L&
2,000,000% 7T) 1 2
RMB1,759,000 to RMB2,199,000 (equivalent A R #1,759,0007T &
to HKD2,000,000 to HKD2,500,000) AR #2,199,0007T
(#8%12,000,000/8 L&
2,500,000 7T ) — 1
10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES 10. MEWRARBEX

Year ended 31 December
BE+-ZB=+—BLEE

2019 2018
—ZT-hF —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARKETT
Finance income 5 - ON
- Net exchange gains on financing activities - REEPNE R W FE
(note a) (P Ta) 40,658 67,253
— Interest income - FEKA 25,597 32,363
66,255 99,616
Finance expenses BB X
— Borrowing costs LT %N (1,063,193) (777,686)
Less: amounts capitalised on qualifying assets W AEREENERE
(note b) k|
(Pff &Eb) 191,435 109,474
(871,758) (668,212)
— Unwinding of provision (note 33) - MR B (BT FE33) (8.664) (9,916)
(880,422) (678,128)
Finance costs — net b & KA R (814,167) (578,512)
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10. FINANCE INCOME AND EXPENSES (Cont‘d)

(@ Amounts mainly represented the exchange gains or losses of
translating cash and cash equivalents and borrowings denominated in

Non-functional currencies.

(b)  Borrowing costs were capitalised at the weighted average rate of

5.35% for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: 5.41%).

11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES

10.

11.

MEWARRX(A)

ZRATERBEUFDEEE
FENRERBESSEEYRER
B BE S 18 ER e

BE_Z-NAF+-_A=+—H
LEFE - BREKARTIR5.35% (=
Z—\F :5.41%) O NHEFHF
KT INEARE -

FrE®Rimx

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—-BHLEE

2019 2018
—2-hF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Current income tax BN ER P15 %X
— Corporate income tax - EMEH 203,490 178,073
Deferred income tax EEFTEH
— Increase in deferred income tax assets - BEMSMEE
(note 32) 3 hn (Bt 5E32) (200,643) (82,609)
— Increase in deferred income tax liabilities - BEMSEHRAE
(note 32) o (FFFE32) 120,894 52,047
(79,749) (30,562)
123,741 147,511
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

PRC corporate income tax

Certain subsidiaries in certain industries operating in the western
region of Mainland China can enjoy a preferential corporate income
tax rate of 15%, provided their revenues generated from main
operating activities accounted for more than 70% of their total
revenues of the period.

Certain subsidiaries operating wastewater and solid waste treatment
projects in Mainland China are eligible for a tax holiday of three-year
full exemption followed by three-year half exemption of corporate
income tax commencing from their first year generating operating

revenue.

Except for preferential treatments available to certain subsidiaries as
mentioned above, other subsidiaries within the Group in Mainland
China are subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of
25% (2018: same).

Thailand corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Thailand is
eligible for an eight-year tax holiday of full exemption from 2013 to
2020.

Hong Kong profits tax
The applicable Hong Kong profits tax rate is 16.5% for the year
ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax was made as the Group did
not have any assessable profit in Hong Kong for the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: same).

Indonesia corporate income tax

The subsidiary operating solid waste treatment project in Indonesia is
subject to corporate income tax at the statutory rate of 25% for the
year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same).
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(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

1. REBBEX(F

h B 4 3¢ FF 18 Bt
ERBEAREARLREEETT
EWMETHE QA ZFX15%H
BECEMERRE  JIRREH
FTREEBERBWAAEINHE Y
Y st #RREY70% A L -

FE A BK BE AR 05 7K % (B R 5 18
EENETHBRARBELAKSE
WEEFREAZAE=F2HHAL
SER=FLEMBIVRELNETE

BEXFETHEARDATEZSR
BEFBI  AKERTEKE
B E At B B R R R HROE E R
5% EERBTR(ZE-N
F:ER) -

RELTCERSH
ERELEEFEEREEB OB
RAIB T —=—FE2_T-_TF
BAUZANFET2EHE -

EBFNEH

HE-_ZT-hF+=-A=+—H
IEEE - BRANBEBNEHHE
B16.5% (= —)\F : HR) o

BRAEERBE-F—h&
t-A=t-BLFELEES
S AR B - M M 4R
EEFIBHER(ZT—)\F i
R) -

HELEMEH
HE-_Z-hhF+=-A=+—H
IEFE  EHRKEEERER
B &Kt B A Bl B IR 25%H) 55 FE B
REMTEERBR(ZT—N\F -
HE) o
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11. INCOME TAX EXPENSES (Cont’d)

168

The tax on the Group's profit before income tax differs from the theoretical

amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to

profit of the group entities as follows:

11. TEHBExX (&
AEERRATEF A M BB IEA RIRME
FAERAREEEREA G M INEFE
RETEMNERERE c AEOT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARETT
Profit before income tax FFr 15 %6 Al 677,549 644,226
Less: Share of profits of investments W ARERIEARE
accounted for using the equity method FEAE IR & % 7 (52,924) (34,034)
624,625 610,192
Tax calculated at tax rates applicable to profits EEBARNEFEA®
in the respective companies HEFTENFIE 85,691 122,562
Effect of tax losses not recognised as deferred RERRBELEFEHEED
income tax assets MEEETE 33,127 23,086
Effect of expenses not deductible for tax purpose A {1 F fl X M 52 28 4,923 1,863
Income tax expenses Frisfi X 123,741 147,511

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax losses carry-forwards to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through future
taxable profits is probable. As at 31 December 2019, the Group did not
recognise deferred income tax assets of RMB19,308,000 in respect of tax
losses amounting to RMB92,991,000 that can be carried forward against

future taxable income, which will expire by 2024.
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12.

13.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
The basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit
attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares issued during the year ended 31
December 2019.

12.

FEF 7S 3R R BT o

BRER
(a) &XF
SRERBFIEAAR L BBRE
BEEFBRABRE-S—NF
t=AStoALEEERGS
S8 AR 2 B

Year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—-BLEE

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZET—)\F
Profit attributable to the ordinary N B AR AR SR FE 4G 5 A
shareholders of the Company (AR®FT)
(RMB’'000) 398,153 397,753
Weighted average number of ordinary BB 1T HY B AR N
shares in issue (thousands) FHE(FR) 1,193,213 1,193,213
Basic earnings per share (RMB per share) ®SREAZF (FKR AR T) 0.334 0.333

(b) Diluted
Diluted earnings per share is the same as basic earnings per share as
there were no potential diluted ordinary shares outstanding as at 31
December 2019 (2018: same).

DIVIDENDS

At the board of directors meeting held on 27 March 2020, the directors of
the Company proposed a final dividend for the year ended 31 December
2019 of RMBO0.15 per ordinary share amounting to approximately
RMB178,982,000 (2018: RMB0.15 per ordinary share amounting to
approximately RMB178,982,000) out of retained earnings of the Company.
These proposed dividends have not been reflected as dividends payable in
these consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 but will be reflected as dividends distribution for the year ending 31
December 2020.

The 2018 dividends were paid in July 2019.

13.

(b) #8
MRBE-Z—NF+=A
=+ B UmETENEER
ERER KEREBANES

REXRBFER(ZZE—N\F :
/) o
iz B
E_EZ-_EF=-A_++tRETHES
8L ARREZEZREEC
—hWE+=—R=+— Eﬁif&ﬁ%%

RESRLTERAREIST  AHH
AR® 178,982,000t (ZZE—N\F : &
BEBBRARKOIST  AHOARKE
178,982,0007T) B AN R AR B & 7| 1 #
- ZERERETERBEE TN
F+-_A=+—BHLLFENAHIMBER
RPRMAEMKE  BEHEREBEE-ZT
—EFEF AT ALFERBRAR
Q/\/)f( °

—NEREER-_ZE—NEFELAR
i e
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14. SUBSIDIARIES 14. ff & 2 A
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 December 2019, all WTITAE-_ZE—NhF+=-_A=+—8=
of which are private limited liability companies: EWBRAREE  HHRFETERA
Al
Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FERERENL
operation capital by the Group (%) #&EB 2 (%)
Name (note a) TEERD  TMBE BEBTR rEEERS (note ¢)
L GED) RE KM BHHRRAE BEED (%) (Fft ZEc)
Dali Water Industry Investment Co., Ltd. Wastewater RMB120,000,000 45 (2018: 45) 55 (2018: 55)
(“Dali Water”) treatment and AR (noteb) (ZZ— \4F :55)
RIBKBEERERR AR ([ KIEKBE]) water supply, 120,000,0007c (=T —/\F : 45)
the PRC* (Pt b)
EIKEE IR RAHK -
Yunnan Yun Shui Construction & Environmental RMB560,000,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
Engineering Co., Ltd protection ARE (ZZ—-NF:100) (ZZ—N\F:—)
EHEKERIBEARAA equipment sales and 560,000,000 7T
construction,
the PRC
RRZBHERER
H
Yunnan OriginWater Membrane Environmental RMB55,614,800 100 (2018: 100) — (2018 —)
Technology Co., Ltd. protection ARE (ZZ2—-NF:100) (ZT-NF:—)
EEBREKERNREREELQA equipment sales, 55,614,8007C
the PRC
RRZEHE P
Jinghong Water Supply and Wastewater RMB8&0,000,000 51(2018: 51) 49 (2018: 49)
Drainage Co., Ltd. treatment and AR (ZZE—NF :51) (ZT—N\F :49)
SRTHRHEKEREEAA water supply, 80,000,0007C
the PRC*
AR IE R K - Ex
Yunnan Zhengxiao Environmental Investment Solid waste RMB30,500,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
Co., Ltd. treatment, ARE (ZE—NF :100) (ZZT—N\F:—)
EHFBRRREEAR QA the PRC 30,500,0007T

170

Wuxi Zhongfa Water Investment Co., Ltd.
BEHPEKBREBRAA

B RE IR -

Wastewater
treatment,

the PRC*
KB IE - Bl

RMB134,000,000
AR
134,000,0007T

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A "] Annual Report 2019 4 [& i &

75 (2018: 75)
(ZE—N\#F :75)

25 (2018: 25)
(ZF—N\%F:25)



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

14. SUBSIDIARIES (Contd) 14. B 2 B (&)
Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FEREREM
operation capital by the Group (%) BEE o (%)
Name (note a) TEFZEH TME ERTR EEEER (note ¢)
18 (Ft 3Fa) REEH BEBMEREK BEE D (%) (Fft 7Ec)
Yunnan Water (Hong Kong) Company Limited Investment in HKD498,905,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
ERABK(BEB)RNERAA wastewater 498,905,000 (ZZT—NF :100) (ZT—N\F :—)
treatment and
water supply,
Hong Kong
REFKEEREK -
B A B
PJT Technology Co., Ltd Solid waste THB740,000,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
treatment, 740,000,000% % (ZZE—/A\F :100) (ZZ—N\F :—)
Thailand
BEERE  RE
Huize Water (Qingzhou) Company Limited Water supply, RMB53,152,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
BB (FEMBRRA the PRC ARE (Z2—N\F:100) (ZZ2—N\F :—)
fltK - i 53,152,0007T
Huize Water (Sishui) Company Limited Wastewater US$1,000,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
&2 K CmK)BRA A treatment, 1,000,000%7t (ZZ—N\F :100) (ZZ—N\F:—)
the PRC
EKEE  FE
PT Sumber Organik Indonesia Solid waste IDR10,250,000,000 95 (2018: 95) 5(2018: 5)
treatment, 10,250,000,000 (ZE—N\F:95) (ZT—N\F:5)
Indonesia ENfeaE
EEEEE e
Shandong Tengyue Dangerous Chemical Solid waste RMB108,571,429 97 (2018: 97) 3(2018: 3)
Wastes research and treatment Co., Ltd. treatment, AR®E  (ZE—-N\F:97) (Z2—N\F :3)
WRERBCBEREZYAREREER DA the PRC* 108,571,4297T
[ RE BR 32 - R
Huize Water (Heze) Company Limited Water supply, RMB100,000,000 55 (2018: 55) 45 (2018: 45)
BERKHCHR)BRA A the PRC* AR®  (ZFE—-)\F:55) (ZT—/\F :45)
oK - A 100,000,0007T
Xinjiang Qinggeda Yunshui Environmental Wastewater RMB227,500,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
Industry Investment and Development treatment, ARE (ZZE—NF :100) (ZE—N\F:—)
Co., Ltd. the PRC 227,500,000
MEERETKEREEABRAA AKEEIE - B
Yun Shui Gong Da Environmental Investment in solid RMB83,700,000 100 (2018: 76) — (2018: 24)
Technology Co., Ltd waste treatment, AR (ZE-N\F:76) (ZZ—-/\F:24)
MBEZKIKNRRMBEROBRR A the PRC* 83,700,0007T

REEERE - P E*
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oK P E

Guizhou Renhuai Yunshui Environmental Wastewater
Industry Co., Ltd. treatment
EMNCEEKRRERAA the PRC*

EKEEIE - B

* Registered as contractual joint ventures under PRC law

RMB522,839,000
AR
522,839,0007T

(@) The English names of these subsidiaries referred to in this report

represent management'’s best effort at translating the Chinese names

of those companies, as no English names have been registered.

(b)  According to the capital injection agreement date in 9 April 2014, the
Group and the minority shareholders will hold 45% and 55% equity

interests of Dali Water, respectively. As at 31 December 2019, The

Group has substantially controlled Dali Water through an agreement

entered into with one of minority shareholders of Dali Water pursuant

to which the minority shareholder confirmed to act consistently with

the Group in business operation and finance decision making of Dali

Water (2018: same).

(c)  The total non-controlling interests in respect of the subsidiaries as at
31 December 2019 are RMB1,186,669,000 (2018: RMB1,177,450,000),

and are considered individually immaterial to the Group.

172
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14. SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d) 14. & 2 8 (&)
Ownership
interests held
Principal by the non-
activities and controlling
place of Issued and Ownership interests (%)
incorporation and fully paid-up interests held FEREREM
operation capital by the Group (%) BEE o (%)
Name (note a) TEEE I ERTR EEEER (note ¢)
18 (Ft 3Fa) REEH BEBMEREK BEE D (%) (Fft 7Ec)
Langfang Hyflux NewSpring Co., Ltd. Wastewater US$12,400,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
Bl #HRKBERDA treatment, 12,400,000%7T (ZZF—N\F :100) (ZT-N\F:—)
the PRC

EKEE - H
Hyflux NewSpring (Guanyun) Co., Ltd. Water supply, US$8,124,000 100 (2018: 100) —(2018: —)
HEMRERKCEE)BERAA the PRC 8,124,000 7T (ZZ—N\%F :100) (ZT—N\F:—)

(=

T —)\F :90)

90 (2018: 90) 10 (2018: 10)

(ZE—N\F :10)

BRETBEZREZMHARAEGERT
AR E PR 6 5% B M B A A A
RXERMDEEEZENBEESP
XEBOER  REZRKEEM
EMRXEH -

REABHA-Z-—HFOAN
B EEkpE NeEad
B R 2 B H KIEKHBEA5%
TS5%H B HE - BE—F—NF
TZA=+—8 -AKEEFER—
1 BH F — 7 KIE K A B ER
FfT 8] SZ 89 155 &% T 42 il K 22 7K 75 1Y
REbo Bt - mib - D BBRE
R EEHABAREKEHERY
RERUMBRRFEAEE -
TB(ZF—N\F : HAR) -

R-F-A%+-A=+—8
B0 K1 B 2 7 40 3 12 AR 4 25
A AR %1,186,669,000 7T (=
Z— )\ : AR#¥1,177,450,000
) - YA A B AR T
EX



15.

16.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

ACQUISITION OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN 15. WM B LS MWEIIMESR
SUBSIDIARIES
During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired additional REEZE-_T—NE+_A=+—H8I#HF
interests of certain subsidiaries, the Group recognised a decrease in non- B AREBWEE TH B AR EEIMNE
controlling interests and a decrease in equity attributable to ordinary 25 o ANEBERIEEIAE 2SR A A R A
shareholders of the Company. The effect of changes in equity is summarised NEIEERRREEERRD R
as follows: HwEgmmT
Year ended 31 December
BE+-BA=+—BLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®T T ARETT
Carrying amount of non-controlling PR ER A REE
interests acquired 46,659 152,204
Consideration for acquiring additional W N R RV B
non-controlling interests (85,565) (201,841)
Excess of consideration recognised within REMFEEEROREBL IS
other reserves (38,906) (49,637)
INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. AR EARNRE
EQUITY METHOD
The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance sheet are as follows: REMEEEBBERERNSENOT -
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NEF —ET-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTFT
Joint ventures (note a) &% N a (KMsEa) 976,601 607,401
Associates (note b) Bt & 2 &) (M 52b) 119,416 53,641
1,096,017 661,042
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE 16. UERZEZARNRE (&)
EQUITY METHOD (Cont’d)
The amounts of investments accounted for using the equity method REHBERHMEES WERERER
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other EREAARNKRESHENT

comprehensive income are as follows:

As at 31 December

R+t=—B=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-AE —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR T ARKETTT

Joint ventures

— Share of profit for the year - JEMF A A 47,552 35,422
Associates /N
— Share of profit/(loss) for the year - BEFEN®R(EE) 5,372 (1,388)
52,924 34,034
(a) Investment in joint ventures (a) REERTMRE

Year ended 31 December
BZEZ+-B=1+—BHLEE

2019 2018
—®-hf —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Balance at 1 January R—A—HBW&E 607,401 572,287
Addition (i-2) NE(-2) 320,000 —
Share of profit for the year FEAG & A 47,552 35,422
Recognition/(elimination) of unrealised TR, (M 8H) R B35 % F e 18

profits or losses 1,648 (308)
Balance at 31 December RT+-—A=1+—HMK&Ee 976,601 607,401

() The Group has interests in joint ventures that is accounted for ) AEEFAREEATNIE
using the equity method. B AEREANR °

—~
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

EQUITY METHOD (Cont’d)

(a)

Investment in joint ventures (Cont’d)

(a)

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

16. LEZZEARNKRE (&)

REERRANRE(H)

Place of Percentage of ownership interest
business/ As at 31 December
country of FEKERBEDL
incorporation R+=—BA=+-—H
W 2019 2018
Name of entity ERERE & B 3L Y B R —E-hEF —ZET-N\F
Zhejiang Haiyun Environmental T8 ERR AR A A
Protection Company Limited (DEEERR]D) G- PRC
("Haiyun Environmental”) (i-1) A 49% 49%
Fujian Dongfei Environment BERNRREAR A
Company Limited (“Dongfei (TEREE]) (-2) PRC Not applicable
Environment”) (i-2) i 40% 38 A

(i-1)

(i-2)

Haiyun Environmental is principally engaged in investing,

financing, construction, operation and management of water

environment projects and infrastructure construction projects in

the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group acquired

40% of ownership interests in Dongfei Environment at a
cash consideration of RMB320,000,000. Dongfei Environment
is principally engaged in investing, financing, operation and

management of environment projects in the PRC.

The table below provide summarised financial information of

BERREEEBEEK
BEEE REWRIEREE
HHEE WA RR
BRERE -

RBEE-ZFT-NF+=A
=T —HLEFE  AREN
A R 320,000,000 7T 3 &
B W B RIRIR 40 % HI B
B RRREIRE
TR ERSGEANRE
BME BEMERE -

(i)  TREPEERE A KEIL

joint ventures that are individually immaterial to the Group. EANGERANMBE
#} e
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBTT
Aggregate carrying amount of EARTEREEARMNAKREE
individually immaterial joint
ventures 976,601 607,401
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s ZANE&EE 515 A T % IEA) B HE
share of:
— Profit from continuing - RERBBELEEBRT R
operations and total el EEsE
comprehensive income 47,552 35,422
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16. INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED FOR USING THE

EQUITY METHOD (Cont’d)
(b) Investment in associates

16. LEZZEZARNKRE (&)

(b) RBELATNRE

Year ended 31 December
BZ+t-B=1+—BLEE

2019 2018

—E-hE —T—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AREEF T

Balance at 1 January R—BA—BW&E 53,641 50,741
Addition NE 60,000 =
Share of profit/(loss) for the year FERFEREF(EE) 5,372 (1,388)

Recognition of unrealised profits or ERARBIRE M EE

losses 403 4,288

Balance at 31 December Rt+t-—B=+—BW&t 119,416 53,641
(i) All of the associates are unlisted companies and there were no (i) FrElt S Al &I E LT AR

quoted market price available for the shares.

(i)  The table below provide summarised financial information for

associates that are individually immaterial to the Group.

BRI T 50 ®RE -

(i)  TREPEER S AR EIL A

EPNGHE

b MK\

BIRTEERL

2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZT-NF
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARBTT
Aggregate carrying amount of AR TEREEARMNBIERE
individually immaterial associates 119,416 53,641
Aggregate amounts of the Group’s AEEDHNA T FBER LR
share of:
— Profit/(loss) from continuing - RABBELEEBENRR
operations and total (B8 RirelmiesE
comprehensive income 5,372 (1,388)
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17. % - BERKHE
Electronic
equipment
Plants and Motor  and others Construction
buildings  Machinery vehices EFHZER  in progress Total
BERET M RE 2 ERIE @t
RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB' 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000 RMB’ 000

ARETT  ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR AR%T:n
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N%-A-H
Cost KA 1,057,979 1,569,325 65,963 102,813 259,960 3,056,040
Accumulated depreciation ZiNE (172,244) (422,097) (38,117) (44,138) = (676,596)
Net book amount REFE 885,735 1,147,228 27,346 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
Year ended 31 December 2018 BE-3-\E+ZB=t-HLEE
Opening net book amount BNEREE 885,735 1,147,228 27,846 58,675 259,960 2,379,444
Acquisitions of subsidiaries WEHBAR = 16,978 1,109 vy = 18,514
Additions RE 3,729 38,955 8,792 31,593 308,794 391,863
Transfer from construction in progress HERERIR 81477 23,073 = 887 (105,437) =
Disposals e - (1,645) (1,865) (626) — (4,136)
Depreciation charge (note 8) nERT (M) (43,640) (96,743) (11,921) (11,093) = (163,397)
Closing net book amount BAREFE 927,301 1,127,846 23,91 79,863 463,317 2,622,288
At 31 December 2018 RZZ-N§+t=B=+-H
Cost KA 1,143,185 1,646,686 73,999 135,094 463,317 3,462,281
Accumulated depreciation 2ithE (215884)  (518,840) (50,038) (55,231) = (839,993)
Net book amount REFE 927,301 1,127,846 23,961 79,863 463,317 2,622,288
Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E2-NF+tA=+-BLFE
Opening net book amount BOREFE 927301 1,127,846 23,961 79,863 463317 2,622,288
Acquisitions of subsidiaries KERBAR 140 138 102 2 - 400
Additions HE 6,236 7,381 3,637 18,974 697,937 734,165
Transfer from construction in progress BREAERIE 93,406 104,752 - - (198,158) -
Disposals HE (65) (906) (989) (1) - (2,033)
Depreciation charge (note 8) RERZ (M) (37.870)  (103,042) (8,796) (27,661) - (177,369)
Closing net book amount BRAEEFE 989,148 1,136,169 17,915 1123 963,096 3,177,451
At 31 December 2019 RZB-hA%EtZA=t+-H
Cost KA 1,237,604 1,757,963 76,541 152,903 963,096 4,188,107
Accumulated depreciation 2iE (248,456) (621,794) (58,626) (81,780) — (1,010,656
Net book amount REFE 989,148 1,136,169 17,915 711123 963,096 3,177,451
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17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont‘d)

Depreciation was charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss and

18.

178

other comprehensive income under the following caption:

17. % - BERKXE(E
WEDTRAEHBRRAEMEGEAKRFIRRA
HLATIEB 1k -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+-BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-hE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBE T AR T T
Cost of sales Fi=h= D 9%\ 150,612 138,916
Administrative expenses T X 25,786 23,558
Selling expenses #H & B X 971 923
177,369 163,397
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 18. IR E Y ¥
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-BLEE
2019 2018
—2-nE  —T-N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTFIT
Balance at 1 January R—B—BW&Es 25,779 26,692
Depreciation charge TERX (852) (913)
Balance at 31 December R+=-—A=+—BH&ER 24,927 25,779

(@) The Group had no contractual obligations for future repairs and

maintenance as at 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

(b)  Independent valuation of the Group’s investment properties were

performed by independent third party valuers to determine the fair

value of the investment properties as at 31 December 2019. The

fair value of these investment properties as at 31 December 2019 as

assessed by the valuers by direct comparison method or discounted
cash flow method were approximately RMB34,958,000 (2018:

RMB36,017,000).
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RZZE-AF+=ZRA=+—8"
FEBETEAREEREESD
BEE(ZZ—N\F: 8R) -

REBREMERBLE=F 1
ERMETEYHE  WETKRE
MER—_T—NF+=ZA=+—
HOATE ZEREMERZ
TE-hE+-_A=1+—HBHHAYF
1B £ & 8 Ah LA B B b 800K s b
BREREZEZTHHNAARE
34,958,000 (ZZF—\F : AR
#36,017,0007C) °



19. LEASES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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This note provides information for leases where the Group is a lessee.

(a) Amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet
The consolidated balance sheet shows the following amounts relating

19. A&

A ERHABEARBEAEABANEE

AR -

(a) REHEERBREIAN

T8

AHEERBERIIFATAEESR

to leases: EHMEE
As at
i
31 December 1 January
2019 2019
—E-AEF —E-NF
P E Eq9r=F] —A—H
RMB'000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREF T
Right-of-use assets — Non-current FEREEE — kRS
Land use rights (i) -+ Hb A A AE) 220,455 182,831
Offices and warehouses WRERRE 50,228 26,973
270,683 209,804
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current mE 11,600 11,154
Non-current FETEED 39,010 15,819
50,610 26,973

(ii)

(iii)

The Group has land lease arrangement with mainland China
and Indonesia government for fixed periods of 20 to 50 years.

In the previous year, the Group only recognised lease assets
and lease liabilities in relation to leases that were classified
as “finance leases” under HKAS 17 Leases. For adjustments
recognised on adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1 January 2019, please
refer to note 2.2.

Additions to the right-of-use assets during year ended 31
December 2019 were RMB80,411,000.

(if)

(iii)

AR g B eh B BE R ENJE K
FalE L E L5 - BE
HAPR 20 % 50%F o

BEFE  AEEERBIE
BEAEGHENFI7TREE
SEAIMENEINEE

RAEEERHERE -
BAR-_ZT—NF—HA—H
R BBV BREERS
16HMBRRBOAE  F2
BB EE2.2

BLEFEEREER
E R/ AR80,411,000

o

KRBE-T—AFE+=A
+_
R

S
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19. LEASES (Cont’d)

19. HE (&)

(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) REMBEERHEMEEK
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income HERBREANESE
The consonlidated statement of profit or loss and comprehensive AHBREREMGESWFZRTT
income shows the following amounts relating to leases: LDTEMEEEBENEE :
Year ended

31 December
2019
BE-Z- 1%
+=—A=+-—H
LEFE
RMB’000

AR TR

Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets

Offices and warehouses

Land use rights

FEHEEENERX
WRAERRE 14,217

5,560

19,777

The Group leases land use rights and various offices and warehouses.

Rental contracts of offices and warehouses are typically made for

fixed periods of 1 to 10 years

AEBHEELHMFERENANRZE
WRAERBE -WARAEREEN
HEAYNRERIZI10FEMNETH

PRET AL o
20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBETARERHETNE
ARRANGEMENTS LS|
The following is the summarised information of the financial asset HEAEERGHFACELHEFTEN SR
component (receivables under service concession arrangements) with respect BEMAKRT D (REFHFCERETH

to the Group's service concession arrangements:

FEY R IR) KB BB o T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZT—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Receivables under service concession
arrangements

Portion classified as current assets

RBFFEER

i
W

Non-current portion

=P T B e W ER IR
5,078,315 4,223,100
ki (51,892) (57,852)
5,026,423 4,165,248
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

In respect of the Group’s receivables under service concession
arrangements, credit risks varied amongst the Group’s projects
operated in different locations of Mainland China. The collection
of receivables under services concession arrangements is closely
monitored in order to minimise any credit risk associated with the

receivables.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

20. RBPBALETHINE
WK TE (&)

(a)

BARERRBHALERHET
WA S - EERREAR
S ERAP B REE AR BB 2 Y
HEME - R EEEKRKIAES
MOEREERR  REFFE
B2 BT MR FRM R E B R

R FYEAE -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF NS
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR T ARETT
Yunnan Province EEAE 1,199,953 1,080,714
Shandong Province IR A 1,072,244 1,078,982
Jiangsu Province T ERE 651,921 506,042
Xinjiang Uygur Autonomous Region FEEETRERRE 414,008 414,854
Hebei Province it & 416,119 277,156
Henan Province EREEE ) 309,772 78,701
Fujian Province =REE ) 226,151 212,737
Anhui Province ZEAE 327,067 138,569
Tianjin City RAEM 141,145 73,877
Guangdong Province ERE 121,908 130,195
Chongging City EEM 89,190 —
Zhejiang Province HiTE 66,462 44,592
Shaanxi Province ) — 111,919
Others Hb 42,375 74,762
5,078,315 4,223,100

The receivables under service arrangements were billable receivables.
They were mainly due from governmental authorities in Mainland
China, as grantors in respect of the Group’s service concession
arrangements. Based on past experience, the directors of the
Company are of the opinion that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are considered
fully recoverable.

BRI AP AR E R EE T M B ARFOR
RARARENRKRIE K
BREGAAKRERBEFLL
RHHE T A F B A b 5T
B-REBERR EERA/H
ARZEERELRERRE &
HAREEERITEERESHAE
BROBEERATEEHE LD -
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20. RECEIVABLES UNDER SERVICE CONCESSION 20. RBEARELTHTHIE
ARRANGEMENTS (Cont’d) WRIE (&)
(b) The expected collection schedule of receivables under service (b) MRIGFFCETIETHERNE
concession arrangements is as follows: B TR BRI R A

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+-—~H
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Within one year —F LA 51,892 57,852
One to two years —EWF 65,837 49,487
Two to five years MERF 264,961 184,725
Over five years HB AR F 4,695,625 3,931,036

5,078,315 4,223,100
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. BEREE
Unfulfilled Technical
Goodwill contract know-how
(noteb)  Development  Operating rights and software
B2  expenditure concessions AET Licenses BHEHMR Total
(i&tb) BEEX HBEEEE  ANEX R B4 @t

RME'000 RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'OO0  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETR ARBTR ARBTR ARBTR ARET:

At 1 January 2018 R-2-N%-f-A
Cost KA 427,503 5,505 7,697,422 50,538 658,186 98,546 8,937,700
Accumulated amortisation 2 BH = = (363,675) (35,802) (21,315) (8,055) (428,847)
Net book amount REFE 427,503 5,505 7,333,741 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853
Year ended 31 December 2018 HE-E-N\EtZR=1-H

LEE
Opening net book amount BNEAFE 427,503 5,505 7,333,741 14,736 636,871 90,491 8,508,853
Acquisition of subsidiaries WERBAR = = 379912 = = = 379912
Additions nE - 899 1,528,724 1,763 - 1,800 1,533,186
Currency translation differences ERREER 9,957 = 21,763 = = 39 31,759
Transfer from development expenditure ~ E&EAREFEY - (2,552) = = = 2,552 =
Amortisation charge (note 8) Bz (His) = = (275,116) (2,466) (18,840) (4133)  (300,555)
Closing net book amount BREAFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N§+-F=1-AH
Cost KA 437,460 3,852 9,627,821 52,301 658,186 102,937 10,882,557
Accumulated amortisation E5.3i - - (638,791) (38,268) (40,155) (12,188)  (729,402)
Net book amount REFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
Year ended 31 December 2019 B2-E-AE+ZA=t-A

LEE
Opening net book amount BNEAFE 437,460 3,852 8,989,030 14,033 618,031 90,749 10,153,155
Acquisition of subsidiaries =N - - — - - 21 21
Additions NE — 3,393 1,573,719 - - 1,661 1,578,773
Currengy translation differences BHphEER 3,838 - 32,061 - - 19 35,918
Transfer from development expenditure ~ #& BH%HE X - (1,886) — — — 1,886 =
Amortisation charge (note 8) BmE (Wis) - —  (298802) (103)  (19073) (016)  (322.5%)
Closing net hook amount HREAFE 441,298 5359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
At 31 December 2019 RZB-AE+ZAZt-H
Cost AR 441,298 5359 11,233,601 52,301 658,186 106,524 12,497,269
Accumulated amortisation 2iEH - - (937,593) (38,971) (59,228) (16,204 (1,051,996)
Net book amount REFE 441,298 5359 10,296,008 13,330 598,958 90,320 11,445,273
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d)

184

(a)

(b)

Amortisation was charged to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income under the following
caption:

21.

BREE(H)

(a) BHEEREHBEREM
mEWBERFHTHIEE
MER :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1t-HLFE

2019 2018

—E-NF —ZE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR TR ARBTT

Cost of sales 35 KR 317,113 294,991
Administrative expenses TBAX 5,481 5,564
322,594 300,555

Impairment test for goodwill

The goodwill of the Group as at 31 December 2019 mainly arose
from the acquisition of Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd, Shandong
Tengyue, Harbin Yun Shui and Future International Group Co.,
Ltd., amounting to RMB197,845,000, RMB109,521,000 and
RMB53,663,000, respectively. For the purpose of impairment testing,
the goodwill was allocated to a cash generating unit (“CGU"). The
recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based on fair value
less costs to disposal. The calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management covering a five-year
period. Management determined the projection period based on their
past experience and expectation for the market development and
is consistent with their business plan. Cash flows beyond the five-
year period are extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated
below, respectively.
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(b) &R ERH

AEER-_ZFT—NLE+=A
St BENEEXIZAKRE
Galaxy NewSpring Pte. Ltd * 1
FHER BMREZKRES
ESBEERAAIMES o5
B AN R % 197,845,000 7t *+ A
R % 109,521,000 7t & A R #
53,663,000 7T ° %t &k (& Al & i
TORABSREEBRSELENM
([REeEXEM]) ReELS
Az /) AT Y B & 58 TH AR & A FE R
EEEBRAET FEAFAFAR
SRETEA  KEBEEBEIZN
AFHYREE -ERERBN
BEEHREEREBASNBE
KBRkHEHMSERENTESR B
HFEEMNEETE - - BRA
FHEAMNBeREDSANEAT
Mg REESL -
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21. INTANGIBLE ASSETS (Cont’d) 2. B EE (&)
(b) Impairment test for goodwill (Cont’d) (b) BEBERNR &)
(i) Key assumptions used for fair value less costs to disposal (i) BRBeELAEMAEQTF
calculations of each CGU were in the range as follows: BREEKAFTEEINEE
BEMEERT :
Year ended 31 December
BEt+t-BA=+—HBLEE
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET ARBET T
Average annual growth rate of revenue (iii) Uz 719 & 1 & (i) 3%-10% 5%-9%
Long-term growth rate (iv) RH# K R(v) 3% 3%
Discount rate (v) A5 37 K (v) 11%-14% 11%-14%
(i) Sensitivity analysis on key assumptions used in the calculation (i) AREEDHAEALHBEA
of the impairment tests for goodwill arose from the above BIFfELS 2 mERERR B
subsidiaries have been carried out. If the average annual growth BRAEANTIEREREL
rate of revenue had been lower than management estimates BRRE DN o MUt A FEHE
by 5% or discount rate had been higher than management IR R IR E M ETHE5%
estimates by 5% with other variables held constant, the SEBERLEEBENGETS
recoverable amount of goodwill would still exceed their carrying 5% @ MEMEEFRFIE
value and no impairment will be required. B2 A AT g O] & ZE D #8 HB
MEREE - AfmBERE -
(i) Management determined average annual growth rate of iy BEAETDEEAFRIER
revenue based on past performance and its expectations for HYTmERENBSHSETK
each market development. ANFHFILRE o
(iv)  The long-term growth rate used is consistent with the forecasts (v) FTRARHERREITERE
included in each industry report. P&k 78 8 — 28 -
(v)  The discount rate used is discount rate applied to the cash flow (v) FTABLIRER AIRE RETEA

projections which reflects specific risks relating to each business.

FRA MBI E - KRR
LHEEBRNBEER -
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22.

23.

186

INVENTORIES 22. 78

As at 31 December

W+=-—B=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREF T
Raw materials B 61,209 47,077
Work in progress TEEM 30,094 19,428
Finished Goods RN A 12,182 35,584
103,485 102,089

No provisions for inventories have been made for the year ended 31

December 2019 (2018: same).

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND

BE-_Z-AF+-_A=+—RHIF
B WEREFERE (T -N\F
HE) -

23. ES R EMEBERRERRA

PREPAYMENTS NES|
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—~
2019 2018
—B-hfF —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥® T ARETT
Trade receivables Z Z ENRIE
- Related parties (note 36(g)) - BT (s 36(g)) 2,891,572 2,575,260
— Local governments - M T 935,935 824,240
— Third parties -%=7 1,835,486 1,155,422
Less: provision for impairment B RERE (85,804) (59,986)
5,577,189 4,494,936
Other receivables H b pEURIE
- Related parties (note 36(i)) - BT (MisE 36(0)) 36,281 31,921
— Third parties -%=5 1,589,085 1,259,880
Less: provision for impairment B ORERE (31.814) (9,106)
1,593,552 1,282,695
Total trade and other receivables B 5 RE M EUGRIERTE 7,170,741 5,777,631
Less: non-current portion of other receivables B H A EWCGRIEIE R ENE (43,999) (13,771)
Current portion of trade and other receivables & 5 & H i & W s B 7R Bh 2 5 7,126,742 5,763,860
Prepayments FERTFRIA
— Related parties (note 36(g)) - BA%t A (FfI5E 36(g) 502,227 161,135
_ Third parties _E=x 1,097,156 1,477,238
1,599,383 1,638,373
Less: non-current portion of prepayments B B RIEIERBE S (1,364,449) (942,875)
Current portion of prepayments AR FIEREE D 234,934 695,498
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 23. EZREMEBERREARA
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) R E (&)
(a) Trade receivables (a) ESEWRNRE
In general, the Group grants credit periods of 90 to 180 days to BEBLT AEEBRFEFO
its customers. Ageing analysis of gross trade receivables (including Z180RMEAH - REFHEBARK
amounts due from related parties of trading in nature) at the BREQHNAYNERIELENE S
respective balance sheet dates, based on the invoice dates or FEWFHIE(REBE 54 E 8 ER
contractual terms, is as follows: RAEsE 5 OB ) BEERR DT ¢

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018
—®-hf —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Within one year —F AR 2,433,593 2,813,369
One to two years —EWE 1,776,680 1,035,378
Two to three years ME=F 855,993 511,217
Over three years =FE 596,727 194,958

5,662,993 4,554,922
Movement of the Group's provision for impairment of trade AEBE 5 E W FIE /) R E BB
receivables are as follows: ZEMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLFE

2019 2018
—®-nE  —T-N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

Opening balance at 1 January R—B—BWEM&RR 59,986 41,721
Impairment provision AR 29,818 23,655
Reversal due to collection I EiEE (4,000) —
Write off bad debts MisH AR = (5,390)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWNEREER 85,804 59,986
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23. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 2. EFRHEHMERRERAE
PREPAYMENTS (Cont’d) T RIE (&)
(b) Other receivables (b) HfhFEEWRIE
Movement of the Group’s provision for impairment of other 7K &= B H A fE U OB B R E B e
receivables are as follows: ZEMT

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-BLEFE

2019 2018
—E-AE —E—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

AR¥T T ARETT

Opening balance at 1 January R—A—BWENERR 9,106 7,562

Impairment provision ERE 22,708 1,855

Write off bad debts 8 AR = (311)

Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—BWNEREE 31,814 9,106
() Prepayments (c) BAARE

The Group's prepayments are mainly for purchase of goods, land use AEENENREBEETZEAEESR

rights, construction works, services and acquisition of equity interests. Yt R BEIRRHE

ftb AR 75 B TELASH SR IR DA R B R W B
YIRS FROR -

(d) The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the (d) s EsENESEERRAE
carrying value of each class of receivables mentioned above. The P FRERFENERERE - K
Group does not hold any collateral as security. EEVESEEMERYIERE
R o

24. RESTRICTED CASH 24. SRHBAE
As at 31 December 2019, the restricted cash mainly comprised of guarantee RZTE-AF+ZA=+—8  ZRHl
deposits for construction of projects (2018: same). HeFTEoEERBEBENRER(ZE

—N\FE : HR) -
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25. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 25. RERBEEEY
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF T N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Cash at bank and in hand BITEREFERS 2,458,435 2,204,352
Short-term bank deposits at call (note a) RERRITBAER (MEa) 10,000 10,000
2,468,435 2,214,352

(@  As at 31 December 2019, short-term bank deposit was denominated (a) R-—_E—NE+-_A=+—8 -

in RMB, with interest rate of 1.95% per annum and will mature by HEEHSETERUAARKEE - F

14 March 2020. FMEAE195%  BR-_B-_ZF

=RA+MAREE -

(b)  As at 31 December 2019, cash and cash equivalents of the Group are by HN=-ZZT—AE+=-A=+—8
denominated in: AEENRERBSEEMUT
FIEEEE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—-~H
2019 2018
=E-NEF —ZT-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

RMB AR 2,386,579 2,089,479
THB BN 38,681 60,966
usb e 31,098 49,584
IDR ENEE 8,072 10,094
HKD BIT 2,769 2,949
SGD AT 1,236 1,280
2,468,435 2,214,352
26. SHARE CAPITAL 26. g7
Number of
shares Share
(thousand) capital
RHH B [N
(F &)
RMB’000
AR® T
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018, R=ZZT—-N\F—H—H"
1 January 2019 and 31 December 2019 — - )N\Ft+-A=+—H -
—T-NAF—-A—HRK
—E-NF+-_HA=+—8H 1,193,213 1,193,213

Annual Report 2019 4 E 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A 7 189



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
B B % R 2R MY 5

27. OTHER RESERVES

190

27. Hib % E

Capital Statutory Translation
reserve reserve reserve Total
N EEME BRERE et
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR%¥Txn AR®ET R ARET R
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZZB-NF-A—HBWHEEK 1,913,964 289,238 128,106 2,331,308
Acquisition of additional interests in Us BE BT B 1 B A BB O 2
subsidiaries (49,637) — — (49,637)
Currency translation differences EBHEER — — (172,741) (172,741)
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 8 %K T it 4 (Fff iEa) — 88,085 — 88,085
Balance at 31 December 2018 R-Z-NE+=ZB=+-—H
i 4 B8 1,864,327 377,323 (44,635) 2,197,015
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-HhE-—A—HNER 1,864,327 377,323 (44,635) 2,197,015
Acquisition of additional interests in Us BE BT B 1) B A BB AN 2
subsidiaries (38,906) — — (38,906)
Partial disposal of a subsidiary BH L E— R B AR
without change of control TR (5,986) — = (5.986)
Currency translation differences EBmEES — — 18,215 18,215
Transfer to statutory reserve (note a) 5K F R (F 5Ta) — 110,250 — 110,250
Balance at 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NAFE+=B=+-—-H
) 4 8 1,819,435 487,573 (26,420) 2,280,588
(a) Statutory reserve () ZERE

In accordance with relevant rules and regulations in the PRC, except

for sino-foreign equity joint venture enterprises, all PRC companies

are required to transfer 10% of their profit after taxation calculated

under PRC accounting rules and regulations to the statutory reserve

fund, until the accumulated total of the fund reaches 50% of their

registered capital. The statutory reserve fund can only be used, upon

approval by the relevant authority, to offset losses carried forward

from previous years or to increase capital of the respective companies.
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28. PERPETUAL CAPITAL INSTRUMENT 28. KAEAXIHR
The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments of KABARTAWEEAR + B 5 IRMN
distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. ARG BIEF AR -

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—BLFE

2019 2018
—®-h% —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T AR T

Balance at 1 January R—B— Btk 1,200,000 1,200,000
Issues BIT 1,410,000 —
Profit attributable to holders of perpetual KABAT AR AEIERET

capital instruments 119,800 83,194
Distributions to holders of perpetual capital FKAE AT E#ZHEG AEEA DR

instruments (119,800) (83,194)
Balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—B e 2,610,000 1,200,000
The perpetual capital instruments have no maturity, and the payments KEBAARTAWESEE » AR
of distribution can be deferred at the discretion of the Company. When AARANTHBELE - (NMAARIEREME
the Company elects to declare dividends to their ordinary shareholders, EEBETIRAR S - BA B AR RE
the Company shall make distribution to the holders of perpetual capital BRTIIHDRRMAXABARATAEEAE A
instruments at the distribution rates as defined in the subscription EE DB -
agreements.
The average annual distribution rate is about 7% for the year ended 31 BE-_Z—hWF+-_A=+—HILFE
December 2019 (2018: same). HWEHEDRERYET% (ZF—/)\F :

HA) -

Annual Report 2019 4 E 4% YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @k B8 &5 B R A 7 191



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

f 75 SRR BT o

29. BORROWINGS 29. B
As at 31 December
BRt+t=-—HA=+—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E-)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR ARETFT
Non-current IERE
Long-term bank borrowings Eﬁﬁfﬁfﬂ%%{ 10,450,837 5,560,168
Corporate bonds and other borrowings NRIMESH K EAEK 4,748,688 5,618,824
15,199,525 11,178,992
Current B
Short-term bank borrowings RRERRITE K 1,290,000 2,567,745
Current portion of long-term bank borrowings — RHIEEITE R RB LS 1,157,247 1,116,109
Current portion of corporate bonds and other R EMEH & HMIE KA RENEEH
borrowings 3,972,158 2,071,680
6,419,405 5,755,534
21,618,930 16,934,526
(@)  The Group’s borrowings carried weighted average interest rates of @ HBE-—Z-—HAhE+-_A=+-—
5.32% per annum for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: HIFEE AEEBEZIMNEELY
4.86%). FMER532%(ZF—/\F :
4.86%) °
(b)  As at 31 December 2019, other borrowings from a related party is by MZE—HAF+—_A=+—8 "
depicted in note 36(n). H A 3R BT R E R

M FE36(h) °
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29. BORROWINGS (Cont‘d)

()

As at 31 December 2019, non-current borrowings of
RMB7,436,014 and current borrowings of RMB1,297,822,000
(2018: RMB5,232,228,000) were secured by pledge of the Group’'s
receivables under service concession arrangements, contract assets,
land use rights, property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
and the Company’s investments in subsidiaries and a joint venture
with carrying value of RMB8,737,703,000 (2018: RMB5,278,593,000).

As at 31 December 2019, borrowings of RMB21,369,000 (2018:
RMB22,204,000), RMB387,000,000 (2018: RMB440,000,000) and
RMB206,179,000 (2018: RMB226,751,000) were guaranteed by a PRC
local government, a related party and third parties, respectively.

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

29. B (&

(0

R—_ZE—h&E+-_A=+—8"
SEm BB XA R #7,436,014,000
Tk om B ERARE
1,297,822,000 L (=& — \ F :
A B #5232,228,0007T) & BE @
& A R #8,737,703,000 L (= =
— \%F : A R #5,278,593,000
TN AEERBIFTLCELH
FEWRIE - BEHEE LHhER
ME BERIREARER
BEMRHBARAR—REER
AIMKEERERR -

R—_ZE—NAhE+=-_A=+—8"
RITHE KA R#21,369,0007T (—F
— )\ : AR#22204,0007T) * A
X #5387,000,000 T (=& — )\ 4 :
A R #440,000,0007T) A K& A R #
206,179,000 L(ZZ— \F : AR
#226,751,0000) E D B EE
BT ~ BEEE 5 R BB = R o

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFT
Property, plant and equipment and ME - BERERBAREBEEAE
intangible assets 3,112,449 2,386,949
Contract assets EHEE 2,794,175 227,101
Investments in subsidiaries and RIBAR R —REERANIEE
a joint venture 1,781,563 1,656,985
Receivables under service concession BRI T 48 & 2 HE T~ ) FE kIR
arrangements 1,013,039 987,996
Right-of-use assets/land use rights E ARG E T fE R 36,477 19,562
8,737,703 5,278,593

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s borrowings were repayable as
follows:

(d)

RZZE-AF+=—A=+—8"
AEBERBROEEBERET

As at 31 December

R+=—BA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-AEF —ZE-)N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR AREEF T
Within one year —F LR 6,419,405 5,755,534
One to two years —EWFE 6,728,125 3,365,440
Two to five years MERF 4,717,535 5,692,614
Over five years HBiERF 3,753,865 2,120,938
21,618,930 16,934,526
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29. BORROWINGS (Cont‘d)

(e)  The exposure of the Group'’s borrowings to interest rate changes and

194

the contractual repricing dates at the end of each of the year are as

follows:

29. B (&

(e)

R - AN o 1 2 B 0 )
RXBHEARRAHEHTEE Y
mF -

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NE —ZE-)N\%F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Within six months NMEA AR 4,902,948 3,510,245
Six months to one year NEAZE—F 3,738,112 7,077,520
One to five years —EhRF 11,976,147 5,282,303
Over five years fBiRhF 1,001,723 1,064,458

21,618,930 16,934,526

The carrying amounts of the Group’s borrowings approximate their

fair value.

(f) The Group has complied with the financial covenants of its borrowing
facilities during the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018: same).

(g) The Group's borrowings were denominated in:

AEHEEFRNEREERLQF
BRE -

BE_Z-NAF+A=1+—
BLUEFE  NEBEESTTHEE
ARENTBRO(ZZF-N
F MR e

AEBEERATIEEE :

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—-8
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARKETTT

RMB AR 18,839,068 13,644,864
usD ED 2,678,177 3,175,251
THB B3 80,316 92,207
EUR BT 21,369 22,204

21,618,930 16,934,526
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30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 30. EZREMEANRIE
As at 31 December
R+=—BA=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARKETTT

Trade payables: B P ERNFIE :
- Related parties (note 36(g)) - EE 7 (fI=E 36(g)) 1,324,339 1,542,830
— Third parties -%=5 3,900,181 3,287,340
5,224,520 4,830,170
Notes payables RES 110,000 44
Other payables: HAbFERFIE -
— Related parties (note 36(i) - B (EE 36(0)) 326,575 85,651
— Third parties -%=5 1,043,518 1,109,245
Staff welfare benefit payable FERTE TAEF 53,073 55,837
Other taxes payable HAbpERFIIE 197,914 194,108
Dividend payables ERRE 12,440 —
6,968,040 6,275,055
Less: non-current portion B FEmENER S (3,292,499) (3,257,835)
Current portion mENEb 3,675,541 3,017,220
(@) Trade payables are settled in accordance with agreed terms with (@ EZSEMPBENRBEMEREHT
suppliers. MIRREEE -
(b) At 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the trade payables by MNZ—ZE—NAF+=-_A=+—8"
based on invoice dates or contractual terms, is as follows: BERZHHNENERIELED
BORMNRENERRSTAOT :
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZET-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARBFR  AREFR
Within one year —F A 2,410,152 3,735,975
One to two years —EWE 2,236,221 487,378
Two to three years e =F 176,184 363,768
Over three years =FE 401,963 243,049

5,224,520 4,830,170
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31. DEFERRED INCOME

196

Deferred income represented government grants received from governmental
authorities with respect to Group’s constructions of wastewater treatment
facilities, water supply facilities, solid waste treatment plants as well as the
provision of water supply service. The movement of deferred income is as

below:

31. IEE W &=
BRI ASERIESKEIER
o HEKER M - (B BE RE ) BRI R LA B iR
B 5 K BR 75 M R A R S PR RS
By c MIEWZEHEZHT -

Government

grants

BT 8 B

RMB’000

AR TR

Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R=ZB-NF—H—-BNHDELR 633,892

Additions NE 94,593
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FFAGHEEREMRE KGR

and other comprehensive income (36,124)

Closing balance at 31 December 2018 RZZB-N\F+-A=+—HHNHLER 692,361

Opening balance at 1 January 2019 R-ZB—NF—A—BNHNELR 692,361

Additions NE 38,390
Credit to consolidated statement of profit or loss FTAGHHEE R EMERE KT

and other comprehensive income (29,031)

Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R-EB—AF+-A=+—HBNHLRLELR 701,720
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 32. IEIEFRBH
(a) Deferred income tax assets (a) EEEFBHEE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—~
2019 2018
—E-hEF —E—N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARKETTT

The balance comprises temporary RAEGEEYRMEER
differences attributable to:
Deferred income EEW 149,153 142,336
Tax losses FiIAEE 260,426 110,929
Accrued expenses and impairment FEET R KA E R
provision 213,493 169,164
Total deferred income tax assets BEEFTSTHEEERE 623,072 422,429
Set-off of deferred income tax liabilities HIHREFT SR AE (108,449) (108,297)
Net deferred income tax assets FIREFTIST A E 514,623 314,132
Accrued
expenses and
impairment
Deferred provision
income Tax losses BB X R Total
Movements 25 BEW S HEESE HERRE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBT ARBTR ARBTR

Balance at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-NE-A-H
Mg 132,242 81,406 126,172 339,820
Credit to consolidated statement of profit ~ RAGBERH &S
or loss and other comprehensive income WERPEHA 10,094 29,523 42,992 82,609
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZBE-N\E
TZA=t+-AWEH 142,336 110,929 169,164 422,429
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-Z-NA%-8-H
& & 142,336 110,929 169,164 422,429
Credit to consolidated statement of profit ~ RAHBZREMGE
or loss and other comprehensive income WERPEHA 6,817 149,497 44,329 200,643
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE-h&§
+t-A=+t-BH&Et 149,153 260,426 213,493 623,072
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32. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (Cont’d)

198

(b) Deferred income tax liabilities

32. Eﬁﬁﬁ ‘??Fﬁﬁ (ﬂﬁ

(b) EEFEHRER

As at 31 December

R+=BA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —ZET—-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR AR®EF T
The balance comprises temporary REREEERMEER
differences attributable to:
Fair value gains SR E (914,306) (950,555)
Service concession receivables BRI 45 7T FE W 318 (329,278) (202,529)
Others HAtb (33,848) (3.454)
Total deferred income tax liabilities EIEFTSHR A GRS (1,277,432) (1,156,538)
Set-off of deferred income tax assets HEEFIS A E 108,449 108,297
Net deferred income tax liabilities FREFER AR (1,168,983) (1,048,241)
Service
concession
Fair value receivables
gains PR3 45 5 Others Total
Movements -] AFEWE FE Wi FhoE Hit @
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBT T ARET T ARET R ARBT T
Opening balance at 1 January 2018 R-ZE-N§-A-HMN
HO&s (868,672) (123,397) (3,668) (995,737)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated REeEHEEREMEE
statement of profit or loss and other WERRFA/(HB)
comprehensive income 26,871 (79,132) 214 (52,047)
Acquisition of subsidiaries WK B A A (108,754) = = (108,754)
Closing balance at 31 December 2018 R=-Z—-N£+=H
ZT-BHBRER (950,555) (202,529) (3,454) (1,156,538)
Opening balance at 1 January 2019 R-Z-NE-B—-HW
& (950,555) (202,529) (3,454) (1,156,538)
Credit/(charge) to consolidated REHBEREMES
statement of profit or loss and other WERFREA/ (H5)
comprehensive income 36,249 (126,749) (30,394) (120,894)
Closing balance at 31 December 2019 R=-ZB-h&E+=A
ST-ANBRER (914,306) (329,278) (33,848) (1,277,432)

YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED E /K #5318 & ik {5 & R A "] Annual Report 2019 4 [& i &



33. PROVISIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

33. &1

Maintenance

costs Others Total
RE KA Hth et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR TR AR TR
(note a)
(Bt =£a)
Opening balance at R-ZE-NF—A—HWHD&H
1 January 2018 260,113 3,374 263,487
Acquisition of subsidiaries g1 =pNG| 48,751 = 48,751
Provision capitalised in intangible REREER BREERIEAR
assets 27,684 — 27,684
Amortised to consolidated statement BiHz o BEaRAMES
of profit or loss and other Was & (f7E10)
comprehensive income (note 10) 9,916 — 9,916
Paid during the year FANBENRIE — (104) (104)
Closing balance at R-ZEB-—NE+=ZA=+—H
31 December 2018 R 346,464 3,270 349,734
Opening balance at R=ZZ-—hF-—HA—BH
1 January 2019 A A 4 ek 346,464 3,270 349,734
Provision capitalised in intangible REREEPEBREREER
assets 890 — 890
Amortised to consolidated statement BiEE A ETREMERS
of profit or loss and other W zs & (fiFEE10)
comprehensive income (note 10) 8,664 — 8,664
Paid during the year FAE N FRIE = (165) (165)
Closing balance at RZEB-AE+=ZA=+—HKH
31 December 2019 LS 356,018 3,105 359,123

(@  Pursuant to the service concession agreements entered into by the
Group, the Group has the contractual obligations to maintain the
facilities it operates to specified level of serviceability and/or to restore
the plants to a specified conditions before they are handed over
to the Grantors at the end of the service concession period. These
contractual obligations to maintain or restore the facilities, except
for any upgrade elements, are recognised and measured at the best
estimate of the expenditure that would be required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the year.

BEREETIHNRBEETLE
WE AEENANEEARE
HEgem®m BRETAFEN
AR AR MK T KSR RS A
AREHBERE  EBIBMET
BYAZA  BEEESEEMR
B-ZERBREERENA D
BEE(EMBUER DRI TDiRE
REBTENEEMSE X LEO&KE
HEHERRETE -
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash used in operation

(a) BEFMARE

4. EHRERERME

Year ended 31 December

BE+-HA=+t—BLFE

2019 2018
—2-nE  -T-N\%
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® TR ARETT
Profit before income tax FFr 45 5% B g A 677,549 644,226
Adjustments for: BATFIEELFE
— Impairment losses on financial assets - EREERERRE 48,526 25,510
— Depreciation of investment properties - REMENE 852 913
— Amortisation of land use rights — T HbfF AR = 6,920
— Amortisation of intangible assets - B EE#H 322,594 300,555
— Depreciation of property, plant and - D% - BERREINE
equipment 177,369 163,397
— Depreciation of right-of-use assets - EAREERE 19,777 —
— Share of profit of investments — DR A A SRR FE (R IR AR
accounted for using
the equity method (52,924) (34,034)
— Other gains — net - Htben F 58 1,425 (10,541)
- Finance costs — net - BEKAFE 814,167 578,512
Change in working capital: EEES B
— Inventories - 75 (1,397) (53,034)
— Contract assets - BHEE (1,536,468) (2,205,161)
— Trade and other receivables and - B 5 RE M FEUFRIELA R
receivables under concession B E T TH
arrangements FEWRIA (3,889,997) (3,795,672)
— Prepayment - JBfIRIE (216,480) 309,846
— Trade and other payables - B 5 REAMERFIE 609,699 1,509,744
— Contract liabilities - BHAE (12,733) 61,855
— Deferred income — REW 9,359 58,469
Cash used in operations REMARS (3,028,682) (2,438,495)
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34. NOTE OF CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF
CASH FLOWS (Cont‘d)

(b) Net borrowings reconciliation

4. SHBEERERME(F)

(b) BERFHEAD

As at 31 December

R+=—B=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARBTF T
Cash and cash equivalents ReRAEFEY 2,468,435 2,214,352
Borrowings — repayable within one year &3 — —&FLARERS (6,419,405) (5,755,534)
Borrowings — repayable after one year ek — —FAELER (15,199,525) (11,178,992)
Net borrowings &R (19,150,495) (14,720,174)
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREEFEEY 2,468,435 2,214,352
Borrowings — fixed interest rates B — BEEF=E (13,897,870) (11,685,349)
Borrowings — floating interest rates B — EFF=E (7,721,060) (5,249,177)
Net borrowings EFFE (19,150,495) (14,720,174)

Liabilities from
financing activities

REMETHNAER
Borrowings Borrowings
Cash — repayable — repayable
and cash within after
equivalents 1 year 1 year
BeK B — B — Total
REZEY 1FURES 15U ELEM &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT ARBTRT AR%®TR AR¥T:R
Net borrowings as at R=ZB-NF—-F—H
1 January 2018 HRER 2,896,927 (4,438,574)  (9,349,422) (10,891,069)
Cash flows Reng (697,383) 1,174,430 (4,296,610)  (3,819,563)
Foreign exchange adjustments HNEHTE FHE 14,808 (21,298) (135,023) (141,513)
Other non-cash movements Hith3E L E) —  (2,470,092) 2,602,063 131,971
Net borrowings as at R=EB-NF+=A=+—-H
31 December 2018 HRER 2,214,352 (5,755,534) (11,178,992) (14,720,174)
Cash flows Beng 247,229 1,979,320  (6,679,413)  (4,452,864)
Foreign exchange adjustments SNEHTH AR 6,854 (886) (35,896) (29,928)
Other non-cash movements HinrE# —  (2,642,305) 2,694,776 52,471
Net borrowings as at R-E-hAE+=A=+—-H
31 December 2019 R ER 2,468,435 (6,419,405) (15,199,525) (19,150,495)
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35. CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred as of 31 December HE-_Z—NAF+-_A=1+—8HE:H
2019 is as follows: BHAEENEARAILNT

As at 31 December

Rt=A=+-8
2019 2018
—®-hf —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Property, plant and equipment, concession W - BB KEE - B EEA R
projects and construction projects ERIBR 12,414,657 10,073,186
Equity investments R E 240,298 102,277

12,654,955 10,175,463

36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TEMBAR S

(a) Major shareholders (a) TERK
The following entities are the major shareholders of the Company UTEEEARNTNTIERE
Place of
Name incorporation Ownership interests (%)
£18 AR FREREF (%)
2019 2018

—E-hE —T)\F

Yunnan Province Water ERE KRG PRC 30.07 30.07
A

Beijing OriginWater R EKIR PRC 24.02 24.02
A
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TEEBAERZ (&)

(Cont’d)
(b) Subsidiaries (b) K2
Interests in principal subsidiaries are set out in note 14. FEWBA R F S AAHTEE14 o
(c) Name and relationship with other major related (c) BB A ERBRERHME
parties ERB A NBER
Name Relationship
=L B &
YMCI Shareholder of Yunnan Province Water
TR EE EMEKBHRE
Haiyun Environmental Joint venture
BEIRIR SN
Caiyun International Investment Limited Fellow subsidiary
("Caiyun Investment”) B 2 E R A
FEBBRKREBRAR ( [RERE] )
YCH State-owned enterprise
THEREE Bl A 1%
(d) Key management personnel compensation d EEEBAEHM
Key management includes executive directors. The compensation paid BREEBAEBEHITES - 5
or payable to key management for employee services is shown below: ETRENEREEY NI
BB T
Year ended 31 December
BE+-HA=+—-BLEE
2019 2018
—E-hEF —ZZE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARETT
Short-term employee benefits FEHIE TR F| 12,478 16,210
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(Cont’d)

(e) Transactions with other state-owned enterprises

(f)

204

In accordance with HKAS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”, state-owned
enterprises and their subsidiaries, directly or indirectly controlled by
the PRC Government are regarded as related parties of the Group.

The Group operates in an economic environment predominated by
state-owned enterprises. During the years ended 31 December 2019
and 2018, the Group had transactions with state-owned enterprises
including, but not limited to, operating services, construction services
and equipment sales.

These transactions are conducted in the ordinary course of the
Group's business on terms comparable to those with other entities
that are not state-owned. The Group has established its pricing
strategy and approval process for purchase and sales of products
and services. Such pricing strategy approval processes are consistently
applied regardless of the counterparties are state-owned entities or
not. Having due regard to the substance of the relationships, the
directors of the Company are of the opinion that none of these
transactions are material significant related party transactions that
require separate disclosure except for the transactions with YCIH.

Significant transactions with related parties

During the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group had
the following significant transactions with related entities which are
carried out on terms agreed with the counter parties in the ordinary
course of business:

36. TEBEB AR S (&)

(e)

(f)

EHMEBELXETH
R

RIEEE G ERIE 245 BB
WE b BB B
e B A £ T LB B A AR
AREEMBET -

AEEEHABRALREHNE
EREPREEB RBEZ
E-NER_ZE-NE+_H
=+t—RLFE AEEEAEE
CRETHRSEBH/(ETRR)
BERY  ERRBLREHE -

WERXSTDHEAREEN B EER
BRI A JEE A E R P
RIS E LB RETT - AR E
EREVEEEMRLRREHEER
BE M A AR o B B E BRI
ERBERER mMAREFH
EERREER REEEESR
MEENELR ARAEER
RBUEEXSMIFALETEIRE
MEARETZHEB IR HERAE
MEREBEETHRZERIN

HEBINEERS
REBEZE-ZT-NLERZZFT—-—N\F
+—A=+—BHLFE £&EH
HEBERERHEFAINERER
BREPRENIGETETTUATE
AR5 -

Year ended 31 December
BE+t-BA=+—-BLtEE

2019 2018
—E-hF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARKETTT
Sales and purchases of goods and services HEREBEERRRG

— Sales of goods and services to YCIH - HEEMERBETEREREE 684,494 800,659

— Sales of goods and services to other related — $#5%5 & & IR T H (th BA R
parties 5,845 24,326
— Purchase of construction services from YCIH — #EmEIRERE B 2 ERE 1,734,027 2,374,968
— Purchase of assets from Beijing OriginWater — #4tREKREEEE 28,800 —
— Purchase of goods from Beijing OriginWater — It RENEHEE S H 3,973 20,540
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TEEBAERZ (&)
(Cont’d)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ () HE BEERRERH®
purchases of goods and services EENEHRESNEZES
2
The following balances are outstanding at the end of the reporting UTNEBERETXIHNEGRY
period in relation to transactions with related parties: SREHAR R E A

As at 31 December

R+=B=+—-8
2019 2018
—E-AE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBTR ARKETT

Trade receivables for sales of goods and  $HE &R KRG E 5 FE W FE

services
- YCIH - THEREHE 2,871,575 2,552,563
— Other related parties - HAbRaE A 19,997 22,697
2,891,572 2,575,260
The balances of trade receivables from sales of goods and services are MESELRREHNE S EKZIE
mainly denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and settled in WEEREZUARKE &K
accordance with agreed terms with related parties. W B  RIEEHEEFHT

BV RS o
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TEEBAERZ (&)
(Cont’d)

(g) Significant outstanding balances arising from sales/ (9) AHE BEERKRE
purchases of goods and services (Cont’d) EENERENNEIES
BR(4&)
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-NF —ZE—N\F
RME’000 RMB'000

AR¥T T ARET T

Prepayments for purchase of goods and ~ BEE & MRS 2B FIE

services

- YCH - EEEREE 473,544 147,126
— Beijing OriginWater - EREKR 24,841 14,009
- YMCI - TEMREE 3,842 —

502,227 161,135

As at 31 December

W+=A=+-8
2019 2018
—B-n& —E-N\#&
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKETTT

Trade and other payables for purchase BEERERRE2ES R
of goods and services H h FE < 5/IE
- YCIH - EHERKREHE 1,631,117 1,606,493
— Beijing OriginWater - EREKR 14,400 16,337
1,645,517 1,622,830
Less: non-current portion of trade and B B S R E A R TR
other payables JERNERER & (1,285,215) (1,458,818)
Current portion of trade and other B 5 R EARENFRIER
payables BVERER 360,302 164,012
The trade and other payables for purchase of sales of goods and BEEMRRBcES REME
services are denominated in RMB, unsecured, interest free, and are NHRBEAAREEE - SKF -
settled in accordance with agreed terms with related parties. %8 0 AR R 5 4 /YK
REHE -

206 YUNNAN WATER INVESTMENT CO., LIMITED Z @ /K12 4B AR A & Annual Report 2019 4 & 4 &



36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

B 0F B 1% ¥ 3R B &

36. TEBEB AR S (&)

(Cont’d)
(h) Borrowings from a related party — Caiyun (h) mBEBLIER — EER
Investment =
2019 2018
—E-hE —E-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBT T
Opening balance at 1 January R—BA—BWEM&R 1,783,882 784,208
Receipt sk — 961,871
Currency translation differences BEmEEE 29,307 37,803
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—B=+—HKHEREH 1,813,189 1,783,882

The borrowings granted from Caiyun Investment are denominated in
USD, unsecured, bear interest at 5.48% per annum, and repayable
in 2021. During the years ended 31 December 2019, the interest
expense of the borrowings is RMB95,344,000 (2018: RMB42,173,000).
As at 31 December 2019, the interest payable of the borrowings is
RMB3,332,000 (2018: RMB4,159,000).

Funds due from/to related parties
(i) Funds due from Beijing OriginWater

(ii)

()

HEXRERTHMERAETLE
B EEH - RE F 548%:
B WARZE-—FHEE R
HE-_T—-h&F+=ZA=+—H
EFE BRZANEBAAAR
#95,344,000L (ZZE— \F © A
R#42,173,000t) - R =T —Hh
F+-_A=+—8 #HRz2EN
FE A ARYS332000T(ZF
—N\F : AR#4,159,0007T) °

EEBLINESER
(i) lgllﬁ?jbﬁ%"%/ﬁﬂf\?ﬁ

2019 2018

—E-hF ZTE-N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARKEFT

Beginning of the year F1 24,316 24,311
Payment (NES — 5
Receipt &N (5) —
Closing balance at 31 December R+=—A=+—B0ERERR 24,311 24,316

Funds due from other related parties

(ii) lgllﬁ‘zﬂfﬂfﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂf\?ﬁ

2019 2018

—E-hEF —E—N\F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T AR®EF T

Beginning of the year F1 7,605 7,101
Payment [N 4,518 1,204
Receipt &N (153) (700)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=B=+—BHHRES 11,970 7,605
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36. TEEBAERZ (&)

(Cont’d)
(i) Funds due from/to related parties (Cont’d) (i) EEBEBINESERE)
(i) Funds due from other related parties (Cont'd) (i) FEWE B TR E
Z (#)
The funds grant to related parties are denominated in RMB, FEEBTIRENESHUAA
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. RUESHE - &KF -  EF B
REREREE -
(iii) Funds due to related parties (iii) FE(T BB 5 &£
2019 2018
ZE-NF —T-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T ARKETTT
Beginning of the year F1 1,492 1,527
Receipt Wk 573
Repayment B = (35)
Closing balance at 31 December R+=A=+—BHEREER 2,065 1,492
The funds grant from related parties are denominated in RMB, A RENESHUAAR
unsecured, interest free and repayable on demand. WEitE - \mER - BFEAR
EIRERKERE -
() Guarantee (G) #ER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—~
2019 2018
—E-AE —T—)N\F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARMT T ARBTTT

Guarantee provided by YMCI in respect EEHE SRR A S B ERIREA
of the borrowings of the Group PR 387,450 440,000

As at 31 December

R+=-—A=+—H
2019 2018
—E-AE —T—)\F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBTTT

Guarantee provided to related parties in  Ft& & A F) MEA D FIRER
respect of the borrowings of the joint Al REEE 7 IR A0 IEIR
ventures and an associate 456,629 318,880
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37. A RAIEERER

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2019 2018
—E-hEF ZTE-N\F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR TR ARBTF T
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment M~ BB KRR 165,499 161,438
Receivables under service concession PRASFFETAC 2 2 HE T HY
arrangements FEU T IB 76,581 64,080
Investments in subsidiaries R B AR MNRE 7,641,220 7,179,016
Intangible assets myEAE 3,453 3,373
Investments accounted for using the equity AR EABRRIRE
method 1,036,601 609,049
Trade and other receivables B 5 K H A e FRIA 7,086 7,063
Prepayments B FRIE 384,359 384,359
Financial asset at fair value through other NAFEFEAEEEH A
comprehensive income HMir e W= e mEE 76 76
Deferred income tax assets BEMSHEE 91,855 49,161
9,406,730 8,457,615
Current assets RENEE
Inventory FE 10 208
Trade and other receivables B 5 K& H b E UK IE 1,245,438 740,787
Amounts due from subsidiaries NG E e 8,818,532 6,534,494
Prepayments TERT A 1,781 1,164
Restricted cash PR HII3R & 113,525 87,275
Cash and cash equivalents RERREEED 713,621 664,821
Derivative financial instruments PTESRMTA — 10,884
10,892,907 8,039,633
Total assets HEE 20,299,637 16,497,248
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to ordinary AR EBERBRRELES
shareholders of the Company
Share capital [N 1,193,213 1,193,213
Other reserves (note a) EfbfEE (MzEa) 2,327,617 2,295,400
Retained earnings (note a) REBAF (M a) 201,500 203,836
3,722,330 3,692,449
Perpetual capital instruments KABARTEA 2,610,000 1,200,000
Total equity R 6,332,330 4,892,449
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37. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 37. A AEEEREBER(E
As at 31 December
R+=—B=+—8H
2019 2018
—E-hF —E-N\F
RMB’'000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

LIABILITIES afE

Non-current liabilities FRBEE

Borrowings BN 6,747,138 5,176,970

Trade and other payables B 5 MEMENKIEA — 625,384
6,747,138 5,802,354

Current liabilities REBaE

Borrowings fBR 4,960,200 4,398,908

Trade and other payables E 5 RAMERRIE 2,259,969 1,403,537
7,220,169 5,802,445

Total liabilities HaE 13,967,307 11,604,799

Total equity and liabilities EaNaEeE 20,299,637 16,497,248

The balance sheet of the Company was approved by the Board of Directors AAREEBBRRAARIESTEN =

of the Company on 27 March 2020 and was signed on its behalf. E-FEE=ZA -+ t+tHAEIHTIA

TRAEEE -
Director Director
= g%
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37. BALANCE SHEET OF THE COMPANY (Cont’d) 37. X RREEEBR(AE
(@) Movement of other reserves and retained earnings () EMREHERRBEEINNEH
Capital  Statutory Retained
reserve reserve earnings Total
BAGFE EEME RKREBEA ot
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARMTRT ARBTnR AR¥ TR
Balance at 1 January 2018 R-E-—NF—A—BHH&EH 2,195,657 68,670 162,715 2,427,042
Profit for the year FREF = = 227,312 227,312
Transfer to statutory reserve LRy el = A = 31,073 (31,073) —
Dividends for the year ended ®HE=-Z—+F+=A
31 December 2017 =t+t—BHILEERE — — (155,118) (155,118)
Balance at 31 December 2018 R=-ZE—N\HF+=-HA=+—H
K5 ER 2,195,657 99,743 203,836 2,499,236
Balance at 1 January 2019 R-EBE—NE—HF— B 2,195,657 99,743 203,836 2,499,236
Profit for the year F A — — 208,863 208,863
Transfer to statutory reserve HEETFE R — 32,217 (32,217) =
Dividends for the year ended HE_Z-/N\F+=A
31 December 2018 =+—HIEFERE — — (178,982)  (178,982)
Balance at 31 December 2019 R=-ZT—h&E+=A=+—H
HY A5 B 2,195,657 131,960 201,500 2,529,117
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 38. EERAIRER
(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (a) EEREENME
The emoluments of individual director and supervisor of the Company REFBEN /AR TEAZE
paid/payable by the Group are presented as below: EREEHMEE2NHT
(i) For the year ended 31 December 2019 (i) BE-—F—N&F+=
A=1+—HILEFE
Employer's

Allowances  contribution
and other  to pension

Discretionary  benefits scheme
Fees Salary  bonuses 2ER EREANS Total
Name of directors/supervisors [ EVeE ne & BERL  HAER HEER Foh

RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'O00  RMB'000
ARBTL ARBTR ARMTT ARBTR ARETR ARET:R

Executive Directors YTESE
Mr. Yu Long (general manager) Faekt(age) 10 1,990 - 123 - 2123
Mr. Yang Fang BARA 100 1,010 - 110 - 1,220
Non-executive Directors* FYES
Mr. Yang Tao BREE - - - - - -
Mr. He Yuanping MELEE - - - - - -
Mr. Li Bo FRat - - - - - -
Mr. Chenyong (Appointed on RELE(R-F-NF

13 June 2019) ARtTZREZH) = = = = = =
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi (Resigned on BHEEE(RZE-NE

13 June 2019) ~NATZREE) - - - - - -
Supervisors gz
Ms. Zhang Ling FRLL 36 - - - - 36
Mr. Huang Yi Bask 3 493 250 8% - 863
Mr. Long Limin ERREE - - - - - -
Mr. Zhu Zhen RREE - - - - - -
Mr. Tan Hairui EEHAE 36 - - - - 36
Ms. Tang Shuang BRI 60 163 110 74 - 407
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEE
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong BHWILE 176 - - - - 176
Mr. Ma Shihao StREE 100 - - - - 100
Mr. Hu Song ik 100 - - - - 100

653 3,656 360 392 — 5,061
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38. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(a) Directors’ and supervisors’ emoluments (Cont’d)
(ii) For the year ended 31 December 2018

38. EEREARER(F)

At

() EEREENME(A)
(i) BE=—F—-/NF+=

A=+—HULFE
Employer's
Allowances  contribution
and other  to pension
Discretionary benefits scheme
Fees Salary bonuses 2R EERAS Total
Name of directors/supervisors B3 /RS ik e BERL  EMBR  HEER £
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETR ARETR ARETR ARETR ARET:H
Executive Directors YIES
Mr. Yu Long (general manager) TRAL(BEE)(RZ2-)\F

(Appointed on 12 December 2018) +ZA+-BEZH) 10 1,920 1,070 125 - 3,125
Mr. Yang Fang o Yrbiid 100 1132 310 124 — 1,666
Mr. Dai Richeng (Resigned on HARAE(RZZ-NF

12 December 2018) +=A+-H%A) 190 — — — — 190
Non-executive Directors* *HTES
Mr. Yang Tao BERE - - - - - -
Mr. He Yuanping METEE - — — — — —
Mr. Li Bo FRRL - - - - - -
Mr. Feng Zhuangzhi BitHLE - — — — — -
Supervisors Bz
Ms. Zhang Ling (Appointed on FRET(R-F-N\F

5 January 2018) —BRREZA) 36 = = - — 36
Mr. Huang Yi (Appointed on BEREE(RZT-N\%

21 May 2018) AA-t—-REZF) 35 470 243 58 — 806
Mr. Long Limin ERRESE = — — — _ _
Mr. Zhu Zhen REEE = — — _ _ _
Mr. Tan Hairui ERHLE 36 — _ _ _ 3%
Ms. Tang Shuang ERLt 60 212 58 57 - 387
Ms. Yang Chuanyun (Resigned on BIELL(RZE-NF

21 May 2018) RAAZT-HEL) 25 52 - 28 — 105
Independent non-executive directors ~ BUFHTEES
Mr. Liu Shuen Kong (Appointed on BRIEE(R=Z-N&

13 Jun 2019) ~AT=REZ{) 108 = = = — 108
Mr. Ma Shihao StRELE 100 — — — — 100
Mr. Hu Song Btk 100 - - - = 100
Mr. Kwok For Chi (Resigned on IHEEERZE-NE

13 Jun 2018) ~ATZRER) 9% — — - - 9%

894 3,786 1,681 392 — 6,753
& There were no fees or other emoluments payable to non-executive * FRNWEEMNIEHTES

MR EMHTH o

directors during the year.
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BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(Cont’d)

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits
None of the directors received or will receive any retirement benefits
or termination benefits for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:
none).

(c) Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services
For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did not pay
consideration to any third parties for making available directors’
services (2018: nil).

(d) Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors
As at 31 December 2019, there are no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such directors (2018: nil).

(e) The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their services as directors of the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2019 were RMB486,000 (2018: RMB702,000).
The aggregate emoluments paid to or receivable by directors in
respect of their other services in connection with the management of
the affairs of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2019
were RMB3,233,000 (2018: RMB4,681,000).

SUBSEQUENT EVENT

After the outbreak of Coronavirus Disease 2019 (“COVID-19 outbreak”) in
early 2020, a series of precautionary and control measures have been and
continued to be implemented across the world. The Group will pay close
attention to the development of the COVID-19 outbreak and evaluate its
impact on the consolidated financial position and operating results of the
Group. As at the date on which this set of consolidated financial statements
were authorised for issue, the Group was not aware of any material adverse
effects on the consolidated financial statements as a result of the COVID-19
outbreak.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

Five-year Financial Summary
hFEMBHE

HHREHBEERAMARS KE

PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE =
INCOME
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-hWE ZZE-N\F ZT—+F ZZE-—R"F ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARSTR ARBTIT ARBTRT ARETT ARBTT
Revenue U 25 6,538,024 6,255,628 5,142,242 2,865,890 1,558,394
Gross profit EH| 1,832,313 1,498,009 1,304,724 879,500 507,622
Profit before income tax Fir 15 %5 B & 7 677,549 644,226 702,244 516,734 382,869
Profit for the year F 1N 5 A 553,808 496,715 544,000 414,266 317,443
Profit for the year attributable to: AN ALTREIEET
Ordinary shareholders of the Company  Z&A2Q R T @K E 398,153 397,753 422,812 388,093 285,853
Total comprehensive income for the FNGREWEETE
year 572,023 323,974 695,742 389,746 318,419
Total comprehensive income AR AT ELERE
attributable to: I 18 %8 -
Ordinary shareholders of the Company — ZK2A 7] ¥ i@ I & & 416,368 225,012 574,554 363,573 286,829
CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET HHEHEEAEER
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
ZE-WE ZZE-N\F ZT—+F ZE-—RF ZT—AF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTIT ARBTRT ARETIT ARBTT
Assets BE
Total non-current assets ERBEERTE 29,164,775 23,363,751 19,092,066 12,972,400 6,677,868
Total current assets MENEEBEE 10,704,357 9,310,095 8,003,983 7,085,974 2,924,423
Total assets BEME 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291
Equity and liabilities ERnkEE
Equity attributable to: AT bR
Ordinary shareholders of the Company A Q &) & & A% fZ R 4,749,316 4,556,822 4,536,565 4,240,569 4,058,423
Perpetual capital instruments KXKABARTHE 2,610,000 1,200,000 1,200,000 2,000,000 =
Non-controlling interests E el g 1,186,669 1,177,450 949,384 1,005,890 884,189
Total equity A 8,545,985 6,934,272 6,685,949 7,246,459 4,942,612
Non-current liabilities FEME AT 20,760,860 16,527,163 12,490,571 7,111,213 2,469,257
Current liabilities mE A& 10,562,287 9,212,411 7,919,529 5,700,702 2,190,422
Total liabilities BEMBE 31,323,147 25,739,574 20,410,100 12,811,915 4,659,679
Total equity and liabilities BEZREE 39,869,132 32,673,846 27,096,049 20,058,374 9,602,291
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report
RIE g MNERRS

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2019

In order to enable stakeholders (including shareholders, investors, regulatory
authorities, customers, employees, partners and communities) to understand the
environmental, social and governance (“ESG") policies, measures and performance
of Yunnan Water Investment Co., Limited (the "Group”, “Yunnan Water”
or "We"), the Group has prepared the environmental, social and governance
report (the “Report”) that covers wastewater treatment, water supply and solid
waste treatment of the Group during the period from 1 January 2019 to 31
December 2019 (the “Reporting Period” or the “Financial Year"”) according to
the Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide (the “ESG Guide")
in Appendix 27 of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Board of the Group is responsible for evaluating and determining the
ESG risks relating to the issuer and it has included the ESG matters in the risk
management and internal monitoring system of the Group. Both the management
and staff of the major subsidiaries and functional departments have participated
in preparing the Report, assisting the Group to review its operations and identify
relevant ESG matters as well as evaluating the importance of the above to our
businesses and to each stakeholder. The table below sets out a summary of the
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ESG matters of significance to the Group during the Financial Year as set out in

Environmental, Social & Governance Report
R g hEAWMSE

o P R SR 1 A B R P BB K RVESG

the Report: EEHZHE :

ESG Guide Abstract ESGIESIIRE Significant ESG Matters EKESGEH

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. BRI

A1. Emission Al BERR Y e Exhaust gas, wastewater, o FER - FEK K [E RE R IB HE R
solid waste treatment and BE R
carbon emission

A2. Use of Resources A2. BR{E M e Energy and water o BRRIKEFEEBEMK
consumption as well as
packaging materials

A3. Environmental and Natural A3.3E3E Kk KXARER e Environmental impact e RIEXEETHE

Resources management

B. SOCIAL B. &

B1. Employment B1. &% e Employee benefits e EERFS

B2. Health and Safety B2. @R Z & e Occupational health and e BERERERZR
safety

B3. Development and Training B3. & & 1% 7l e Employee development and o B T ZRE K57
training

B4. Labour Standards B4. 4 TR e Preventing child or forced o [HIEE TaoEHI44T
labour

B5. Supply Chain B5. i fESEE 12 e Supply chain environmental o HEERZTEAEEEER

Management and social responsibility

management

B6. Product Responsibility B6. EmEMAE e Service quality and standards ¢ MRIEE 8 RiZ %

B7. Anti-corruption B7. RE)S  Anti-bribery and s RHHEERES
anticorruption

B8. Community Investment BS. @I & e Social welfare s HEAE

A. ENVIRONMENTAL A. RIE

Since its inception, Yunnan Water has been specializing in the field of
environmental protection and providing customers with stable, high-
quality, customized and integrated solutions and core technology
integration services in the areas of water supply, wastewater, ecological
environment, solid waste treatment and waste incineration and power
generation, transformation of sludge into resources and photovoltaic power
generation. The Group actively plays its role as corporate citizen to fulfill
its environmental protection responsibility, strives to improve the eco-
environmental quality, promotes sustainable development, creates ecofriendly
cities with technologies and funds and forges ahead with a strategic
positioning as a leading urban environmental protection integrated services
provider in China.
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The Group believes that it is crucial to comply with applicable environmental
laws, regulations and policies for the long-term development and success of
the Group. Therefore, we continue to keep abreast with the policy guidance
of the industry, analyze the latest applicable environmental protection laws,
regulations, policies as well as the best domestic and foreign practices,
and timely update our policies and procedures in relation to environmental
protection to ensure our environmental management is in line with the

latest standards.

The Group is actively participating in environmental protection. All the
Group's subsidiaries are required to strictly comply with the Group’s internal
management system in relation to environmental protection in order to
meet the relevant legal requirements. The Group was not aware of any
material non-compliance with environmental laws and regulations during the
Reporting Period.

The information disclosed in the Report covers 151 water supply,
wastewater and solid waste treatment project of the Group in the PRC
during the Reporting Period (excluding the Group’s newly constructed
projects in 2018 and projects outside the PRC). See sections below for
detailed information on emission and discharge.

A1. Exhaust gas, wastewater, solid waste treatment
and carbon emission

As a pollution control enterprise, the Group is always committed to
complying with relevant environmental systems and rules in every
production process. Besides, it incorporates sustainable development
as the guiding principle in the decision-making process, takes the
environmental impact of projects into consideration and emphasizes
the harmony between mankind and nature instead of just pursuing
economic benefits. The Group possesses industry-leading membrane
technology, enabling it to effectively increase the quality of both the
treated water and supplied water. Meanwhile, the Group actively
develops new technologies in the field of solid waste treatment and
makes comprehensive reuse of wastes regenerated in the process of
solid waste treatment.

EXHAUST GAS AND WASTEWATER
The Group continues to renovate treatment technologies and to

optimize its production management system, aiming to effectively
achieve the annual emission reduction targets for the operation
project, and therefore has received government recognition and
praise.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

For odor generated from wastewater treatment, the Group has
planted greenbelts around the gas sources and collected it for
biotreatment in order to meet national emission standards. For
hazardous gas generated from solid waste treatment, the Group has
introduced and adopted international advanced technologies and
continued to enhance the fume treatment equipment to ensure that
harmful components contained in the fume have been effectively
removed and meet emission standards.

Wastewater generated from the operation of sewage treatment and
water supply facilities mainly contains small amount of domestic
sewage and equipment flushing water and was discharged after being
processed and meeting the required standards. Wastewater generated
from the operation of solid waste treatment facilities was recycled or
be discharged into the municipal pipe network after being processed,
striving to achieve “Zero Discharge”. After being processed by the
Group’s sewage treatment facilities, the volume of COD and NH3-N
discharged by the Group has been reduced by 122,140 tonnes and
13,261 tonnes, respectively.

The table below summarizes the final volume of emission and

wastewater by the Group during the Reporting Period:

RIE -HENERRE

HESKEEBEPELENR
RoRMARBRERRELREAE
BESCRES LERREER
ETEYRBESIZETA £ H
EIBERFANEREE - Y
BEREBRTELENEETR
B RPMSIERRERN - T
B EREERBETEN  #
REBREGRBERTONBEZTKD
REEEZH -

EKEEMEKEREEEREE
WEKEZRIEEFRFKME
AR BREPMBRASKE
BREEBERERN  BME
BERERMBELPELENEK
KRABERSKERERBEERE -
ERERBECRAXHEATHRE
B BHERITHEHR] - M
S KEERERER  KMHO
CODKNH3-N#Y HE 18 2 9 7l #ll /&
T7122,140W8 }213,261 1

RARESE  BHAOER &
KERPEREMAMT

Final volume of

emission (tonne)

Type of emission Ry ER BAHEHRE ()
Particulate matter (PM) AR YI(PM) 15.27
Sulfur oxide (Sox) 1 A E ¥1(SOx) 35.05
Nitrogen oxide (NOXx) R A ¥I(NOx) 231.08
Chemical oxygen demand (COD) L2 F & £(COoD) 15,610.61
Ammonia nitrogen (NH3-N) 2 A(NH3-N) 1,032.00
SOLID WASTE

The Group actively pays attention to solid waste treatment and
continue to develop solid waste technologies to promote the recycling
of resources. In 2019, the volume of hazardous wastes, medical
wastes and domestic wastes treated in the Group's solid waste
treatment business was 22,487 tonnes, 42,906 tonnes and 336,413
tonnes.

BMEBETEEREENMBE -
TET RN E EEE RN R
BROBEFA - R2019%F - K
SEEFEREEEBTHNERE
MEEE BEEDEEE &£
EB IR R E 5 R A22,4870F
42,906M8 X2336,413MF
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The Group also generates solid wastes in its daily operation of
business, which are mainly dewatering sludge generated in the
process of our sewage treatment and water supply and slag and
fly ash in the process of the Group’s solid waste treatment. During
the Reporting Period, the total volume of such non-hazardous and

hazardous wastes was 444,334 tonnes.

The Group has comprehensive management system in place for all
kinds of solid wastes generated in the process of its production and
operation, strictly complies with national discharge standards and
adopts effective measures to reduce and properly dispose of solid

wastes.

For solid wastes such as sludge generated in the process of sewage
treatment and water supply, the Group strictly follows relevant
national policies, regulations, industry standards and the requirements
of environmental impact assessment report approval to establish
comprehensive production management system and process control
system in order to manage the measurement, transportation and
disposal of solid wastes to prevent secondary pollution. Besides, the
Group possesses advanced membrane technology in the industry
and has actively carried out research and development in order
to effectively reduce solid wastes generated during the operation
process, and to transform the produced sludge into resources with

sludge carbonization technology.

For solid wastes generated in the process of solid waste treatment,
the Group adopts a number of comprehensive treatment measures
including classification or sealed storage to achieve the purpose of
harmless and recycling treatment in strict compliance with national
policies and industry standards, and set warning signs according
to specifications. All disposals of such solid wastes are carried
out in strict compliance with national policies and regulations

and requirements of government-approved environmental impact

assessment report.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

For the daily office operation, the Group puts great efforts to
promote paperless office and use OA system and video meeting
system by connecting OA platform with various departments of the
Company to reduce waste arising from document circulation. The
Group exercises control over the purchase of stationeries such as
paper, implement strict registration system in respect of the collection
of office supplies and encourage employees to print on both sides of
paper to reduce waste of paper. The Group also advocates reuse of
office stationeries including envelopes and file folders etc. Besides, the
Group advocates that disposable tableware should not be used in the
office and that chargeable office equipment should be purchased in
order to reduce usage of disposable batteries.

CARBON EMISSION
Our carbon emission arises mainly from the consumption of electricity.

During the Reporting Period, the electricity-related carbon dioxide
equivalence (CO2e) generated in its business operation amounted to
201,385 tonnes with a density of 0.04546 tonne of CO2e per sg.m..
The Group’s implemented various energy conservation measures to
minimize carbon emission. Please refer to the section headed “Energy

Consumption” below for details.

Energy and water consumption

As one of leading integrated service providers in the municipal
wastewater treatment and water supply industries in China, the Group
always takes the environmental, social and governmental impact
into consideration in its core operating practices and strictly controls
the resource consumption of each project according to the principle
of economic operation as well as strives to increase the resource
utilization rate, improve the operation skills of staff to maximize the

resource utilization.
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The Group conducts daily monitoring and statistical analysis for each
operating project to have a deep understanding of the consumption
of energy, water resource and raw materials, determine indicators
of the energy consumption, water consumption and raw materials
consumption and supervise and evaluate each project. In addition
to complying with relevant national laws and regulations, the Group
also has a series of internal monitoring, management and assessment
systems in place, sets the control target for total energy consumption
and gives early warning and fine-tuning to production projects of
which the energy consumption increases rapidly to ensure that the
Group can utilize the resource in an effective way while maintaining
high-standard operation. The Group has been striving to achieve
maximum benefit for customers and the environment with the

minimal resource consumption, and to promote clean and sustainable

resources and energies.

ENERGY CONSUMPTION

During the Reporting Period, the energy consumption of the Group
was mainly consumption of indirectly and externally-purchased
electricity amounting to 326,245,693 KWh in total, representing a

density of electricity consumption of 59.37 KWh per sg.m.

Waste incineration is a way of converting thermal energy to electricity
which realizes “minimization, reclamation and harmlessness” and
avoids a waste of resource. The Group enhances the measures on
stacking fermentation of waste to increase the heat utilization ratio
and also adopts variable frequency regulation for large-power motors
in order to reduce self-consumed electricity and increase the on-grid
energy. Besides, we adopt advanced operating technology during the
incineration process, enhance the thermal insulation effect of the
equipment and recycle thermal energy for secondary use to increase
the re-utilization rate of energy. Meanwhile, metering devices for
electricity, water, heat, etc. are installed at the energy supply accesses
to measure the energy used, so as to control consumption and reduce

costs.

In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process
of wastewater treatment, the Group focuses on technological
transformation for key devices with large energy consumption and
low efficiency, including the lifting pump, air blower and sludge
dewatering system etc. Besides, the Group continuously develops and
promotes new green technologies to reduce energy consumption in

technological link.
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In order to increase the energy utilization rate in the process of
water supply, the Group continues to innovate production technology
and improve the production management system to increase water
production rate.

The Group encourages all staff to save electrical energy during the
production process and office work. The Group also arranges cleaners
to conduct inspections during the non-office hours to ensure that the
electric devices such as lighting equipment have been switched-off.
The Group also sets fuel consumption targets for business vehicles
and encourages all staff to use mass transit.

WATER CONSUMPTION
The Group helps people in different regions to resolve water supply

problems and provide healthy and sufficient tap water for people.
During the Reporting Period, the volume of water sold by the Group
amounted to 212,172,600 m3 and the volume of wastewater treated
by the Group amounted to 679,446,175 m>.

The Group requires all its operating projects to use reclaimed water
to clean and cool down equipment if permitted and to water
plants in factories and office areas, so as to reduce water resource
consumption during the production process.

To further reduce water consumption, water in all the solid waste
treatment facilities is fully recycled and reclaimed water is also used
as flushing water in some toilets. The Group also invests resources to
carry out activities such as posting water conservation signs to remind
staff to save water.
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Indicator BE (32 5 K) BEFLFK)
Total water consumption IKEFEEE 30,960,530 5.63
Total recycled water fEIRAKEE 8,457,601 1.54

For our water supply business, the Group draws water from local
sources with proper government approval. Therefore, the Group does
not have any water sourcing issues.
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PACKAGING MATERIALS
As a water environmental enterprise, the Group does not use

packaging materials during the daily course of its business operations.

A3. Environment impact management

The construction of environmental protection projects will have
certain impact on the environment and natural resources. The
Group considers such impact as one of the key factors when
making investment decisions. The Group performs evaluation of the
abovementioned impact according to relevant laws and regulations.
The Group applies “simultaneous design, construction and operation”
acceptance check after the project has been put into operation to
meet the requirements of the relevant and laws, regulations and
policies. Besides, the Group has also developed relevant systems
and procedures to monitor and manage environmental impact of
all projects in order to avoid excessive use and waste of natural
resources.

As treated wastewater is ultimately discharged to the environment,
the Group strictly adheres to the processing requirements to
guarantee the stable quality of treated water and reduce its impact
on the environment.

The Group attaches great importance to the treatment of pollutants
including exhaust gas, liquid waste, odor and equipment noise
generated in the solid waste treatment process, and takes various
control measures for various pollutants to eliminate the environmental
pollution caused by solid wastes and plays a positive role in protecting

water and soil.

In addition to fly ash in the exhaust gas, pollutants also contain
harmful substances including NOX, SO2, HCI, heavy metals and
dioxins. The major harmful substances are organic substances
including dioxins, which are controlled with the more economical and
effective "3T+E" technology.

After treatment of liquid waste with the professional wastewater
treatment system set up in the plant, the effluent will be reused or

used for greening and road cleaning.
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Environmental, Social & Governance Report

Odor is used as combustion air or effective measures including
adsorption and filtration with adsorption device using activated carbon
are adopted to ensure air quality.

For thermal pollution during production process, the Group has
adopted advanced thermal insulation material to provide the heat
generation equipment with thermal insulation treatment in order to

ensure that the heat source point reaches the operation standard.

For the noise pollution during production process, the Group has also
installed blimps for the equipment that produces noises and utilized
green plants to absorb noise according to function division in order to
ensure the noise emission to reach the standard.

B. SOCIAL

B1.

Employee benefits

Yunnan Water is an enterprise with core technology, aspiration and
social responsibility. It attaches importance to team construction and
employee’s virtues and ethics, introduces talents by multiple channels
and cultivates talents by using incentive mechanism. The Group
has comprehensive human resources policies covering recruitment,

remuneration, staff welfare and performance etc.

The Group strictly complies with applicable laws, regulations and rules
on labour protection to guarantee equal employment. The Group
is against any recruitment discrimination concerning age, marital
status, race, social status, religious belief, disability, gender, sexual
orientation or political background etc. The Group guarantees equal
opportunity and fair treatment for all level of staff and job applicants
in recruitment, internal transfer, training, promotion, performance
evaluation and remuneration. Besides, the Group has the same
remuneration and staff welfare structure for both the male and
female staff.

The Group carries out open recruitment in the market and around the
world following the principles of fairness, equality and competition,
make overall assessment and recruitment on a selective basis. The
Group enters into labour contracts with employees in accordance with
labour laws and regulations to effectively protect rights and interests
of employees.
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With respect to remuneration package, based on the assessment on
values of staff’s posts, guided by the Group’s operation strategy and
with reference to the industry and the region’s salary level, the Group
has established a competitive remuneration system. Besides, the Group
strictly complies with relevant national laws and regulations and
continuously improves staff welfare, reviews staff’'s working hours,
pays various statutory social insurances according to the laws and
ensures that employees are entitled to statutory holidays. Moreover,
employees are also entitled to paid annual leaves, marriage leaves and
maternity leaves.

With respect to performance assessment, the Group has established
a target-oriented employee performance appraisal system covering
various aspects, such as the performance, ability and attitude etc. of
the staff. The performance bonus, promotion and salary adjustment
of staff is determined by the assessment results. In order to create
a healthy, diversified and harmonious working environment, all the
matters concerning promotion, salary review and post transfer will be
considered in an objective way according to staff performance and
the business condition of the Group.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to human resources during the Reporting
Period.

Occupational health and safety

The Group attaches great importance to occupational health and
safety management in the production and operation process. In
accordance with the Safe Production Law, Law on Occupational
Diseases Control, Fire Protection Law, Environmental Protection
Law, Law on the Safety of Special Equipment, Safety Supervision
Regulations on Special Equipment, and Safety Management
Regulations on Hazardous Chemicals of the PRC and other applicable
national regulations, the Group has established a safety management
organization, hired registered safety engineers of the PRC, appointed
safety management personnel, and developed safety, quality,
environmental management guidelines and objectives. In addition,
the Group has prepared the safety management systems, formulated
and released the comprehensive plan on emergency rescue of safety
accidents and emergency plans for safety accidents and established
a safe production committee which held meeting regularly in order
to study, deploy and solve existing problems in the process of safe

production management.
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The Group has implemented the safe production responsibility at
each level, carried out hazard identification and risk assessment, and
strengthened hazardous operation management during the operating
management process. Safety inspection is conducted regularly to
eliminate hidden dangers at the production site and prevent the
occurrence of accidents. During the project construction process,
the Group is committed to fulfilling its safety responsibility and to
enhancing safety monitoring in order to ensure construction safety
and provide the staff with a safe working environment.

The Group actively carries out safety trainings and education for the
staff, regularly enhance the professional skill and safety awareness of
the staff, and strengthen emergency response capability by carrying
out emergency drills on production accidents. The Group also provides
safety equipment as necessary in accordance with the polices of the
Group and organizes regular physical examinations for the staff in
order to prevent them from occupational harm and occupational
diseases.

The Group has obtained the OHSAS18001 International Management
System Certificate to strengthen the operation and management of
the occupational health and safety management system.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to workplace health and safety during the
Reporting Period.

Staff development and training

The Group has built a scientific and effective training programme for
the overall development of the staff. The Group prepares training
programs according to job nature and needs and ensures the
implementation of the plans, which bring positive effect to the Group
and assist the staff in their development. The training programs are
consisted of induction training, business training and continuous
education training etc.

INDUCTION TRAINING
To help new staff to get involved as soon as possible, the Group

provides induction training programs for new staff to introduce the
corporate culture and various internal rules and regulations of Yunnan
Water.
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BUSINESS TRAINING
The Group's staff receives different types of training according to

their roles and responsibilities. For instance during the Reporting
Period, the operation center carried out professional trainings on
MBR engineering, testing knowledge, automatic control system and
online monitoring; the financial center conducted financial business
trainings on financial system and policy and overseas investment etc.;
the human resources department also held professional trainings for
segments on internal control, risk management, system construction
and safety management.

CONTINUOUS EDUCATION TRAINING
The Group provides staff with comprehensive training programs

according to the characteristics of different positions in order to help
employees grow rapidly and realize individual value and to contribute
to the growth and development of the Group.

In addition, to further enhance the communication between the
headquarters and the wholly-owned subsidiaries, and strengthen the
executive power of the team, the Group also organized business
training programs during the Reporting Period.

Preventing child or forced labour

The Group carries out recruitment and employment in strict
compliance with the relevant national and local laws and regulations
and rejects the application from any person that does not meet the
requirements of the laws and regulations. Besides, the Group also
conducts background investigations based on the information provided
by the staff and will reject the application from any person who
provides false information.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with labour
laws and regulations in relation to preventing child or forced labour
during the Reporting Period.
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Supply chain environmental and social
responsibility management

In accordance with the provisions of the “Bidding and Bidding
Law” and the “Regulations on the Implementation of Bidding and
Bidding”,
openness to select qualified suppliers in the form of public bidding

the Group adopts the principle of fairness, impartiality and

on the public resource trading platform where the project is located.
The Group selects qualified suppliers by bid invitation, comparison &
selection or bid negotiation if the tender amount fails to reach the
requirement as stipulated under the Tendering and Bidding Law. The
Group considers the environmental & social performance, qualification
level, goods provided or service quality, service adaptability and
capability as well as quoted price in a comprehensive way when
selecting suppliers.

The Group requires relevant internal departments to conduct
evaluation on all the goods and services suppliers during the year to
retain or disqualify the suppliers.

Service quality and standards

The Group attaches great importance to the impact of the Group’s
products and services on the user’s safety and health. The Group
have developed strict internal management policies and procedures
according to relevant national policies and standards, aiming to
provide high quality services and keep making progress towards
higher standards.

QUALITY CONTROL
The Group has technologies and industrial experience necessary to

maintain the quality of environmental protection projects at each
stage such as design, investment, construction and operation. For
instance, the Group adopt advanced online monitoring systems to
continuously monitor the quality of the treated wastewater and
supplied water during the operating process of the wastewater
treatment and water supply facilities. Specifically, the monitoring data
of the online monitoring system for wastewater treatment will be
transmitted to the government platform for pollution sources of the

authority in a real-time way for 24-hour monitoring.
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Besides, the Group has obtained international management system
certificates such as 1SO9001, 1SO14001 and OHSAS18001, strictly
abides by the above standards during the process of production and
assembly, and enhances the operation of the systems on quality,
environment, occupational health & safety in order to ensure the
quality of the membrane products manufactured.

The Group carries out major businesses by strictly complying with
following relevant national/industrial standards and the details of the

articles are in below:

With regard to the wastewater treatment business of the Group, the
Group is committed to ensuring that the treated wastewater meets
the requirement of Discharge Standard for Pollutants for Municipal
Wastewater Treatment Plant (GB 18918-2002) or Environmental
Quality Standard V for Surface Water or local standards and that
wastewater discharge outlets are built in strict compliance with the
requirements of the environmental impact assessment report approved

by the government for designated discharge.

With regard to the water supply business of the Group, the Group
attaches great importance to water quality control from the water
source to users since the quality of the water supplied directly affects
public health. Water supplied by the Group meets a number of
national standards, including but not limited to Hygienic Standard
for Drinking Water (GB 5749-2006), Standard for Quality of Urban
Water Supply (CJ/T 206-2005), Technical Regulations on Operation,
Maintenance and Safety of Urban Water Supply Plant (CJJ 58-2009),
Technical Regulations on Operation, Maintenance and Safety of Urban
Water Supply Pipeline Network (CJJ 207-2013) and Urban Water
Supply Services (GB/T32063-2015) in order to ensure reliable and safe
water supply. The Group has established strict quality management
systems, tests and inspects against various indexes on production and
operation and conducts real-time monitoring on the water quality to
ensure that the water quality meets the relevant standards.
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With regard to the solid waste treatment business, the services
provided by the Group are governed by Pollution Control Standard
for Domestic Waste Landfill (GB-16889-2008), Pollution Control
Standard for Municipal Waste Incineration (GB-18485-2014), Technical
Requirements on Medical Waste Incinerator (GB-19218-2003) and
Pollution Control Standard for Hazardous Waste Incineration (GB-
18484-2001). The Group has set up internal control systems and set
discharge limits for incineration plants according to strict operation
conditions and technical requirements in order to minimize the impact
of waste incineration to the environment and to the public.

The Group has prepared comprehensive contingency plans and
emergency mechanisms for potential risks and accidents in the
production process and will immediately activate the contingency
plans in case of emergency happens to ensure users’ safety and
health.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with laws
and regulations in relation to services quality during the Reporting
Period.

Anti-bribery and anti-corruption

The Group has established a disciplinary commission and a disciplinary
inspection office dedicated for bribery, blackmail and fraud prevention
as well as relevant investigations and handling; The Group has
established a corruption risk prevention and control system, developed
corruption risk prevention and control measures, and implemented
dynamic management of corruption risk prevention and control; We
also established whistle-blowing channels via telephone and e-mail
to report cases relating to the violation of laws and the code of
conduct. The Group also attaches importance to corruption risk
education, organizes corruption risk training, holds special lectures on
corruption prevention and enhances the anti-corruption awareness of
the staff. Both the management and the staff are required to follow
the rules of moral and conducts of the Group and no cases against
the anticorruption stipulation and code of conducts has so far been
identified.

The Group was not aware of any material non-compliance with
relevant laws and regulations during the Reporting Period.
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Social welfare

Yunnan Water has a strong sense of social responsibility. As an
active advocator for building a learning-oriented enterprise, the
cooperation between the Group and universities is regarded as a
meaningful public welfare activity for both the community as well
as the Group. The Group makes contributions in implementing the
strategy of developing the country through science and education
and reinvigorating the country through talents development as well
as building a harmonious society while actively establishing and

enhancing the reputation of the Group.

In May 2019, the awarding and commendation ceremonies of the
Yunnan Water Scholarship and Assistantship and the Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Project Fund were held at the lecture hall of
the Faculty of Environmental Science and Engineering of Kunming
University of Science and Technology. The Company’s party secretary
Yang Fang and his fellows attended the awarding ceremony, with
more than 150 students receiving awards. In August 2018, Yunnan
Water and the Faculty of Environmental Science and Engineering
of Kunming University of Science and Technology entered into the
Yunnan Water Scholarship and Assistantship and the Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Fund Donation Agreement, to set up the
“Yunnan Water Scholarship and Assistantship and the Innovation
and Entrepreneurship Project Fund”. The purpose is to support the
strategy of rejuvenating the country through science and education,
serving the purpose of rejuvenating Yunnan Province through science
and education, promoting the development of college education while
seeking further and multiple cooperation and communication with
Kunming University of Science and Technology. The Group will donate
RMB500,000 each year and for five consecutive years. The money will
be used by the faculty to fund and reward the outstanding students
with good morality and excellent academic performance, and who are
well-performed in social practice, innovation and entrepreneurship and

comprehensive quality and pursue self-improvement.

The combination of “reverence, thankfulness and confidence” has
always been the cultural concept advocated by the Group since its
inception. The spirit of actively undertaking responsibilities, dedication
and caring heart of staff fully reflects our cohesion. Under the
guidance of this concept, the Group will continue to strive to perform
its social responsibility as well as actively hold and participate in social
charity activities.
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